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Vision, 
mission 
and 
values
are key elements of an  
organisation’s strategic planning.

Vision, Mission and 
Values define the 
character of the 
organisation. While the 
vision statement brings 
out the key purpose of 
the organisation and 
addresses the question 
– ‘Why are we here?’, 
the mission statement 
helps in addressing the 
core deliverables of 
the organisation and 
provides an answer to – 
‘What do we do and how 
do we go about doing 
it?’ The values are the 
inherent strengths of the 
organisation and define 
it’s character. It addresses 
the most important 
question - Who are we?

Let’s take a look at our 
vision, mission and value 
statements and the idea 
behind deriving each of 
them.

Agility
Collaboration DiversityIntegrity ExcellenceInnovation
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Our Vision:
Be the Company of choice in financial services 
for our customers, employees, communities 
and stakeholders, recognised for innovation and 
high ethical standards

The company’s vision is often called its ‘future state’. It is a long-
term goal that sets out what we need to accomplish in the 
future.

Our Mission:
1. We are a responsible financial services partner

2. We drive financial inclusion

3. We  foster innovation in everything we do

4. We deliver products and solutions for 
customer delight 

5. We believe in our people and partner in their 
success

6. We provide long term and sustainable 
shareholder value, balancing risk and reward

7. We are committed to enriching the 
communities we serve

The mission statement describes our ‘current state’. The mission 
statements are more detailed and directional than the vision as it 
outlines how the organisation will go about achieving its vision.

The mission and vision statements play three critical roles 
within an organisation. Firstly, both statements communicate 
the purpose of the organisation to its stakeholders; secondly 
it informs strategy development and lastly they help develop 
measurable goals and objectives by which the company could 
measure the success of the organisation’s strategy.

Our Values:
1. Integrity: We are a transparent and fair 
organisation guided by a strong and clear sense of 
ethics at all times

2. Collaboration: We understand the power of 
alliances and communication in an interdependent 
world and seek new opportunities and 
partnerships to grow with 

3. Innovation: We constantly pursue new ideas 
and approaches to enhance our offering to all 
stakeholders

4. Diversity: We appreciate/celebrate the potential 
and power of difference and welcome multiple 
perspectives, views, ideas and cultures

5. Excellence: We follow the highest quality 
standards and are committed to delivering the best 
to all our stakeholders

6. Agility: We are quick to respond to new ideas 
and situations; we understand change and rise to 
its challenges by remaining open and positive

The values will help us reach our ultimate goal or vision.

The launch of vision, mission, and values of Fullerton India 
will reinstate the purpose, direction and driving forces of the 
company. With help of these meaningful and reflective statements, 
the company can powerfully motivate and inspire teams to 
communicate its objectives across and ensure they understand 
the same to make consistent everyday decisions. Teams within 
the company will gain a sense of pride in working as part of an 
organisation that stands for something and are united by a common 
sense of purpose.

With the help of our clear, concise Mission, Vision and Value 
statements, we can now focus on a common goal; a common 
goal of inclusive and sustained growth for the organisation and its 
people. 

With the individual foundations of strong values illustrated by a 
vision to be undertaken by a mission, Fullerton India is geared to 
succeed in the future. Let’s work together and practice these 6 
values in everything that we do and fulfill that journey.

Strategy
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 Chairman's
Statement

 Fullerton India
 launched several
 initiatives in
 line with the
 Government
 of India’s
 momentum
 to encourage
 digitisation in the
financial sector

Dear Shareholders

The global economy remained fragile in FY 2017, with 
sluggish trade and heightened political uncertainty. The 
Indian economy, however, continued to consolidate, 
reporting a GDP growth of 7.2%, on the back of improving 
macro-economic stability, albeit with somewhat 
challenging micro-economic conditions and tepid private 
investment. T
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The year also witnessed 
transformational interventions 
that carry the potential to 
reshape financial services: 
demonetization, a brave reform 
championed by the Prime 
Minister, aimed at addressing 
the crippling challenge of 
an alternate economy and 
fast-tracking the country’s shift 
to a digital eco-system; RERA, 
which will provide structure to 
a substantially unregulated real 
estate industry, and Goods and 
Services Tax, which will unify, 
simplify and restructure the tax 
regime.

Separately, the Government 
of India continued to progress 
its reforms agenda – Digital 
India, Smart Cities, reducing 
bureaucratic red-tape – 
measures that have resulted 
in the country improving its 
Ease of Doing Business ranking. 
The Government has, with 
RBI, also taken decisive steps 

in addressing the asset quality 
pressures and elevated NPAs in 
the banking industry – much 
needed actions that will, in 
the long term, enhance the 
resilience of the banking sector.

The impacts of these reforms 
are likely to be profound, 
and will be displayed, in full 
measure, over the next few 
quarters.

Fullerton India, as a digitally 
native retail financial services 
institution, with a focus on 
financial inclusion, welcomes 
these changes, and continues 
to invest in the business, with 
the intent of addressing the 
fast-changing needs of the 
Indian consumer, and offering 
meaningful solutions to a 
young, ambitious generation of 
entrepreneurs.

Over the last year, your 
company has made significant 
investments in digitalizing its 

business, in enhancing the 
customer experience, and in 
addressing the fast evolving 
needs of the economy. During 
the year, your company 
expanded its digital distribution 
footprint – customers now can 
seamlessly access our services 
across our portal, our mobile 
channel, our customer service 
contact center and across social 
media messaging platforms. 
ASHA, a chatbot, was launched 
during the year, and was the 
first customer origination 
chatbot launched by a financial 
institution. Capabilities across 
the customer experience cycle 
were further enhanced, and 
core systems strengthened, as 
your company set the platform 
for the next wave of change. 
Over the next year, your 
company will further invest in 
enhancing its digital presence 
and in substantially upgrading 
customer experience.

During the year, your company 
became the first NBFC in the 
country to issue ‘masala bonds’ 
– an issuance that enabled your 
company access international 
pools of liquidity at attractive 
rates, and helped reinforce 
its standing as a leading, 
innovating financial services 
player in the Indian market.

Even as it builds a financial 
services platform for the future, 
your company has remained 
focused on ensuring that 
its asset portfolio remains 
diversified and well-distributed, 
and is constructed with a focus 
on balancing risk and reward, 
through the cycle. The upshot 
has been the manner in which 
your company has dealt with 
the short-term turbulence 

observed in rural portfolios, in 
the immediate aftermath of 
demonetization.

Of equal importance to your 
company is its commitment 
to give back to society and 
participate – beyond the 
letter – in corporate social 
responsibility (CSR). A wide-
ranging suite of CSR initiatives, 
under the brand name ‘Uday’, 
benefit hundreds of thousands 
of individuals through various 
livelihood, health care, 
educational and environmental 
programmes. 

We are excited by the vibrancy 
and speed of change in the 
Indian economy, the strong 
governance and infrastructure 
improvements under way, and 
the opportunities that these 
open up. We will continue 
to commit to long term, 
sustainable growth, and to 
participate in the country’s 
progress.

Finally, let me, on behalf of 
my colleagues and the Board 
of Directors, place on record 
my gratitude to the team at 
Fullerton India for the work that 
they have put in, and to our 
regulators, stakeholders and 
customers for their constant 
support and trust in us.

Gan Chee Yen
Chairman

Fullerton India, as a digitally 
native retail financial services 
institution, with a focus on 
financial inclusion, welcomes 
these changes, and continues 
to invest in the business, with 
the intent of addressing the 
fast-changing needs of the 
Indian consumer, and offering 
meaningful solutions to a 
young, ambitious generation of 
entrepreneurs.
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Corporate Highlights

FY2012

7,13,774 
FY2017

17,02,913 

FY2012

346 
FY2017

526 

FY2012

6,362 
FY2017

10,017 
Customer Account Own Branches Employees

FY2012

33% 
FY2017

48% 

FY2012

3,932  
FY2017

11,597 

FY2012

3,098 
FY2017

7,332 
Secured AUM AUM (H Crores) Disbursement (H Crores)

FY 2012

152 
FY2017

331 

FY 2012

152 
FY2017

214 

FY 2012

990  
FY2017

2,643
PBT (H Crores) PAT (H Crores) Total Revenue (H Crores)

FY 2012

409 
FY2017

1,393 
EBIDTA (H Crores)

FY 2012

4,596  
FY2017

14,673
Balance Sheet Size 
(H Crores)

FY 2012

21.9%  
FY2017

22.5%
Capital Adequacy Ratio
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Competitive AdvantageFY 2012

777  
FY2017

2,504 
Shareholders’ Fund (H Crores)

FY2017

22%
CAGR Growth in revenue  
(5 years)

FY2017

 15 
Products

FY2017

17+
Customers Accounts (lacs)

FY2017

 526 
Reach - Branches

FY2017

57
% of the Company’s 
Board comprised 
Independent Directors

FY 2012

2.0%  
FY2017

2.3%
Net NPA to total Customer 
Outstanding
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Board of Directors*

1 Gan Chee Yen, Chairman 2  Shantanu Mitra, Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director 3  Kenneth Ho Tat Meng, 
Non - Executive Director 4  Sudha Pillai, Independent Director 5 Renu Challu, Independent Director  6 Dr. Milan Robert 
Shuster, Independent Director 7  Premod Paul Thomas, Independent Director

*As on 31 May, 2017

1

3

5

2

4

6 7

1. Gan Chee Yen, Chairman

Mr. Gan has been the Chairman of the Company since November 2011. He is a board member of Fullerton Financial Holdings 
Pte Ltd, Singapore (FFH) and a board commissioner of Bank Danamon since 2003. He is also the CEO of FFH. Prior to his current 
appointment, he was the Co-Chief Investment Officer and Senior Managing Director at Temasek International. He joined Temasek 
in 2003, first as CFO and subsequently in various senior management roles. He has served on several boards and currently sits on 
the Board of several Temasek portfolio companies such as Clifford Capital Pte Ltd, Surbana Jurong Private Limited, ACR Capital 
Holdings, CEI Limited and ST Asset Management. He is a member of the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants. He 
received his Bachelor of Accountancy from the National University of Singapore. He has also attended the Harvard’s Program for 
Management Development in September 2001.

Board of Directors
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2. Shantanu Mitra, Chief 

Executive Officer and Managing 

Director since August 2011 

Mr. Mitra joined Fullerton 
Financial Holdings, Singapore, 
(the Company’s parent entity) 
in 2010 as Head of Consumer 
Risk Management for consumer 
markets across all operational 
entities in various countries 
including India. Mr. Mitra 
has over three decades of 
experience in financial services, 
with about 20 years at Standard 
Chartered and Citibank where 
he had stints in Singapore, 
Thailand and India. He 
completed his articleship with 
Arthur Young & Co, Chartered 
Accountants, UK and is a 
qualified Chartered Accountant 
from the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants, England and 
Wales.

3. Kenneth Ho Tat 
Meng,  
Non - Executive Director

Mr. Kenneth Ho carries more 
than two decades of Consumer 
and Commercial Banking 
experience. He is a Graduate in 
Economics in Flinders University 
of South Australia and a Master 
of Business Administration 
holder form university Putra 
Malaysia. Currently, he is the 
Senior Vice President, Consumer 
Banking for Fullerton Financial 
Holdings (International) Pte 
Ltd. Previously he was with 
Citibank for 10 years covering 
the roles of Regional Director, 
Consumer Secured lending of 
Citibank Asia Pacific regional 
office and in the Citibank 
Singapore Pte Ltd as head of 

Auto business and Citibusiness 
(Commercial Banking). Prior 
to joining Citibank, he also 
held substantial exposure in 
EON Bank Berhad, Malaysia, 
including managing the entire 
Auto loans Business (national) 
and covering numerous roles in 
Branch banking as well. 

4. Sudha Pillai, 
Independent Director

Ms. Pillai, is a 1972 batch IAS 
officer who held numbers 
of senior positions in the 
Government of India and the 
State Government of Kerala 
for 40 years. She handled 
the Industry and Finance 
portfolios for nearly twenty 
years. In Government of India, 
she worked in the Ministries 
of Industry, Corporate Affairs, 
Labour and Employment. 
She contributed notably to 
1991 reforms in Industrial and 
Foreign Direct Investment 
Policies, as also in bringing 
amendments to corporate 
laws and in formulation of the 
National Skill Development 
Policy. In Kerala, as Principal 
Secretary Finance, she 
worked to achieve enhanced 
development outcomes, 
coupled with efficient fiscal 
management. Earlier, as CMD, 
Kerala Finance Corporation, 
she had dealt with the project 
financing to SMEs. Her last 
assignment was as Member 
Secretary (in the rank of Minister 
of State) Planning Commission, 
Government of India. She is 
currently on the Boards of many 
other companies. She holds 
a masters’ degree in Public 

Administration from Kennedy 
School of Government, Harvard 
University.

5. Renu Challu, 
Independent Director

Ms. Renu Challu, is a seasoned 
banker with decades of 
experience in Banking. She was 
associated with the State Bank 
of India (SBI) for more than 
38 years serving in variety of 
positions. Some of the positions 
held at SBI include President & 
COO at SBI Capital Markets, MD 
& CEO as SBI DFHI, MD of State 
Bank of Hyderabad  and Deputy 
MD, Corporate strategy and 
New Business Development 
at SBI. She is on the Board of 
many other companies and she 
is partner in 5th Bridge Data 
Technologies LLP. She is MA in 
Economics (Gold Medalist) from 
University of Lucknow.

6. Dr. Milan Robert 
Shuster,
Independent Director

Dr. Shuster, is a professional with 
several decades of experience 
in the banking sector. He has 
served in various capacities 
at Asian Development Bank, 
ING Bank, National Bank of 
Canada and Nippon Credit 
Bank. After working as the 
President and CEO of P.T. Bank 
PDFCI, Indonesia, he held 
several stints at Bank Danamon 
Indonesia. He became its 
president and CEO and later its 
Independent Commissioner. 
He holds PhD in international 
Law and Economics from 
Oxford University, Master of 
Law from London School of 

Economics, Bachelor of Law 
from University of Western 
Ontario and Bachelor of 
Business Administration from 
Ivey Business School. 

7. Premod Paul 
Thomas,  
Independent Director

Mr. Thomas is currently the 
MD and Head of Corporate 
Strategy at Clifford Capital Pte 
Ltd., a specialist project and 
asset-backed finance company 
in Singapore. He is concurrently 
the Founder and CEO of Capital 
Insights Pte Ltd, an investment 
holding company which 
focuses on private investment 
and strategy consulting. He 
serves as an Independent 
Director and Member of the 
Audit & Risk Committee of 
Mapletree Commercial Trust 
Ltd, Independent Chairman 
of the Investment Committee 
of MGSA Private Trust and 
Independent Director of 
Gemstone Asset Holdings Pte 
Ltd in Singapore. 

Before establishing Capital 
insights Pte Ltd, he served as 
the Group CFO of Hong Leong 
Bank and Executive Director of 
Singapore-listed GuocoLeisure 
Ltd. This was preceded 
by various senior stints in 
Finance and Banking with 
Temasek Holding Ltd, Standard 
Chartered Bank, and Bank of 
America. Mr. Thomas holds an 
MBA from the Indian Institute 
of Management, Ahmedabad 
(PGDM), and a Bachelor of 
Commerce Degree from Loyola 
College, Chennai.

.
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Leadership Team

1. Shantanu Mitra
Chief Executive Officer and 

Managing Director

Shantanu is a Chartered 

Accountant from the 

Institute of Chartered 

Accountants, England 

and Wales. He joined the 

Company’s parent company, 

Fullerton Financial Holdings, 

Singapore, in 2010 as the 

Head of Consumer Risk 

for the Group after nearly 

three decades in Consumer 

Banking and Risk with 

Citibank and Standard 

Chartered Bank. Shantanu 

has worked across various 

Asian markets, including 

Singapore, Thailand and 

India, and was the Regional 

Credit Head for India, Middle 

East, South Asia and Africa. 

He took over as CEO and 

MD of Fullerton India in Aug 

2011.

2. Anand Natarajan
Head of Strategy and Business 

Execution

Anand is a Chartered 

Accountant and a Cost 

Accountant, with an MBA 

from Henley Business 

School. Anand is responsible 

for the overall corporate 

strategy of the Company 

and its subsidiaries - 

covering Risk, Operations, 

Technology, Analytics 

and Digital Initiatives. He 
joined Fullerton India in 
January 2016 from ANZ 
Bank, Indonesia, where he 
served as Chief Operating 
Officer, responsible 
for retail, institutional, 
branch and credit 
operations, technology 
and infrastructure, 
contact centre and 
service, procurement and 
property management and 
enterprise-wide operational 
risk management. 
Previously, Anand was the 
Chief Operating Officer 
for Fullerton India with 
responsibilities of Treasury, 
Finance and Operations. 
Anand has held various 

leadership positions in his 

24 years with Standard 

Chartered Bank, where he 

served as Head of Global 

Markets Operations - India, 

Head Securities Services - 

South Asia, Chief Operating 

Officer Consumer Banking, 

Head Country /BPO 

Operations and Regional 

Credit Officer - Middle East, 

Pakistan and Africa and as 

the Chief Risk Officer for 

Consumer Banking, India 

and South Asia. 

3. Rakesh Makkar
Head of Business,  

Marketing & CSR

Rakesh spearheads Fullerton 

1

4

7

2

5

8

6

3

9

Leadership Team
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India’s Urban and Rural 

business, in addition to 

heading the Marketing & 

CSR functions. He has over 

two decades of valuable 

experience including new 

business and brand launches 

while developing dynamic 

sales teams, product and 

distribution networks. 

Prior to joining Fullerton 

India, Rakesh was the Chief 

Distribution Officer and 

Management Committee 

member at DHFL. His 

earlier stints include Future 

Money as Chief Executive 

Officer, Citigroup and as a 

consultant for a Vietnamese 

Bank on consumer finance. 

Rakesh is a qualified national 

rank holder Chartered 

Accountant and an MBA.

4. Ajay Pareek
Head, Sales & Product - Urban 

Business

Ajay is a Chartered 

Accountant with over 

20 years’ experience in 

audit & financial services 

Starting his career with A.F. 

Fergusons & Co, he moved 

to CitiFinancial as part of 

the start-up team to launch 

their retail finance business 

in India. At CitiFinancial 

he handled the risk and 

operations functions for 2 

years and later took over as 

a Regional Business Head. 

After 5 years at CitiFinancial, 

he joined Fullerton India 

in 2005 as part of the 

start-up team. Ajay is now 

Head - Sales and Product 

for the Urban Business and 

oversees distribution of the 

Company’s key products of 

Personal Loans, Mortgages, 

SME and Commercial 

vehicle.

5. Swaminathan 
Subramanian
Head, Human Capital

Swaminathan is an engineer 

from Jadavpur University, 

Kolkata and an MBA from 

XLRI. He joined Fullerton 

India in May 2013 to lead 

the Human Capital and 

Training function. Swami 

has over 20 years of HR 

experience across Asia, Africa 

and Middle East markets. He 

has held various leadership 

positions including Head 

of HR for Retail Banking, 

Barclays- Africa and Head of 

Compensation & Benefits, 

Standard Chartered Bank, 

South Asia and more 

recently as HR lead for 

Corporate and Investment 

Banking Operations & 

Technology with JP Morgan 

Chase, India.

6. Pankaj Malik
Chief Financial Officer & 

Company Secretary

Pankaj has an experience 

of over 20 years in various 

capacities across finance 

and allied functions. He is 

the Chief Financial Officer, 

Company Secretary & 

Chief Compliance Officer 

for Fullerton India. He is 

responsible for corporate 

planning, accounting, 

finance, taxation, compliance 

and corporate governance 

functions. Prior to joining 

Fullerton India in Sep 2007, 

Pankaj was associated with 

COLT Telecom (“COLT”), 

an affiliate of Fidelity 

international, as the Financial 

Controller-cum-Company 

Secretary. In his earlier stints, 

he had been associated 

with GE Commercial 

Financial and Motherson 

Sumi Systems Limited in 

various capacities. Pankaj 

is a Chartered Accountant, 

Company Secretary and 

Cost Accountant from 

India and Certified Public 

Accountant from the State 

of Colorado, the USA. He 

has also attended the 

Senior Executive Leadership 

Program of Harvard Business 

School.

7. Deepak Patkar
Chief Risk Officer

Deepak is an Electrical 

Engineer with a Masters in 

Management from Jamnalal 

Bajaj Institute, Mumbai. In his 

work experience of 20 years 

he has handled diverse roles 

including Quality Assurance, 

Sales and Distribution, Debt 

Collections, Operational Risk 

and Audit. After successful 

stints at Cable Corporation, 

HCL Infosystems and 

Citibank he joined Fullerton 

India in 2007 as Head – Retail 

Collections. Deepak is the 

Chief Risk Officer at Fullerton 

India in his current profile.

8. Arvind Sampath
Head, Treasury

Arvind is responsible for all 
liabilities strategy, surplus 
management and investor 
relationships. Arvind has 
over two decades of 
experience in financial 
markets. Prior to joining 
Fullerton India, Arvind 
was associated with ICICI 
Securities, where he was 
instrumental in setting up 
the ‘interest rate derivatives’ 
desk. In his earlier stints, he 
had been associated with 
Standard Chartered Bank in 

various capacities.

9. Bikramjit 
Ganguly
Head , Analytics & Digital 

Initiatives

Bikramjit is a Masters in 

Statistics from the Indian 

Statistical Institute and has 

an experience of over 14 

years in various capacities 

across analytics and allied 

functions. He currently 

heads the Digital Initiatives 

and Analytics & Information 

Management for Fullerton 

India. Prior to Fullerton India, 

he was associated with 

Standard Chartered Bank, 

heading the regional credit 

risk analytics unit of South 

Asia. In his earlier stints, he 

had been associated with 

Fair Isaac (FICO) in various 

capacities.
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Management Team

From left to right: Arvind Sampath, Swaminathan Subramanian, Rakesh Makkar, Shantanu Mitra, Anand Natarajan, Pankaj Malik, 

Bikramjit Ganguly, Deepak Patkar, Ajay Pareek.
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Distribution 
Network

Urban 
225 Branches

Rural 
301 Branches
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Functional Overview

Business and 
Marketing

01

Business and Marketing
In order to continue sustainable growth, it is important for 
Business to synergise their processes to the market dynamics. 
The Urban and Rural businesses at Fullerton India have been 
upgrading their business processes to facilitate positive 
growth and ensure enhanced customer experience and 
delivery. 

Fullerton India has a strong distribution network and the 
deep understanding of the under-served markets. The 
Marketing function Company complements the business 
objective of the Company and aids to fuel the growth. 

The Fullerton Differentiator

With an extensive branch 
network of 526 branches, 
Fullerton India continues to 
be one of the leading NBFCs 
of the country. The Company 
has been instrumental in 
enhancing the livelihood 
of the customers in under-
banked and under-served 
markets. The adoption of 
cutting edge technology 
in facilitating the day-to-
day business has helped 
Fullerton India deliver 
superior experience to its 
customers and stay abreast 
the competition.
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RURAL BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Fullerton India’s rural business, which operates under the 
brand name ‘Gramshakti’, strengthened its network by 
foraying into two new states. As on 31 Mar 2017, Gramshakti 
is spread across over 51,000 villages in 11 states of India. 
During FY2017, in wake of demonitisation, Gramshakti 
witnessed a sharp drop of 4% in the disbursals. The States, 
which got affected the most, were Maharashtra, Uttar 
Pradesh, parts of Madhya Pradesh and Karnataka. However 
post remonitisation, in spite of a sluggish industry , 
Gramshakti has resumed momentum . With a growing focus 
from the Government to increase the proposed spends in 
rural areas, infrastructure development, and agricultural 
sector, Gramshakti will serve as a preferred financial partner to 
stimulate growth in rural hinterland, in the years to come.

Highlights
 Operates in 11 states through a network of 301 

rural branches

 Services over 15 lakh customers 

 Wide array of product offerings to serve the varied 
needs of customers

 Digital processes – disbursals and collections done 
through tabs 

  Strong customer ties and robust credit quality

Highlights
 Built strong presence in social 

media through industry opinions and 
product know-hows

 PR campaigns generated H6.39 
crore of advertisement value 

 Established a strong brand connect 
through collateral brandings across 
Fullerton India offices

 Internal campaigns to mobilise sales 
and promote announcements

Strengths
 Increased adoption of technology 

to facilitate business – resulting in 
timely delivery and superior customer 
experience

 Deep understanding of under-served 
and under-banked markets

 Presence across rural and urban 
markets through a vast network of rural 
and urban branches

 Customised marketing solutions to 
build trust and boost sales across the 
geographies

 Credit decisions based on superior 
analytical tools – resulting in a healthy 
portfolio

Marketing
The marketing function at Fullerton India 
supports the brand and its adoption. The 
Company’s increased thrust in social media 
platforms has complemented the online 
business sourcing by influencing the decision 
making of the customers. The marketing 
function helped to build the good will for brand 
across various geographies through customised 
solutions – which means separate marketing 
strategies were adopted for different regions, 
based on the customer behaviour of the 
particular region. Engagement with local media 
continued to be the focus to propel the reach 
of brand to masses. This was done through 
regional activations, outdoor campaigns and PR 
campaigns. 

URBAN BUSINESS OVERVIEW
During FY2017, the urban business of Fullerton India 
enhanced its efficiencies by expanding its digital footprint 
and creating robust platforms for its customers. Seamless 
on-boarding applications, tab based sourcing, e-KYC and 
robotic processes have helped to deliver superior customer 
experiences. Besides, BOT enabled originations, e-loans portal 
and customer self-service mobile applications have facilitated 
the accessibility and ease of operations for the customers. 
Fullerton India’s urban business services 1.71 lakh customers 
with a network of 225 branches across 22 states and three 
Union Territories. In urban India, the Company has built a 
portfolio encompassing personal loans (salaried and self-
employed customers), loans against property, SME loans and 
commercial vehicle loans addressing retail consumers, MSMEs 
and commercial borrowers.

Highlights
 Witnessed a strong growth across all asset classes

 Usage of strong analytical tools to assess the risk 
profile of customers

 Adoption of cutting-edge technology for 
operational excellence

 Broad suite of products to cater to a diverse 
customer base
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Risk Management
Fullerton India has successfully implemented a Risk Management 
framework which leverages on ‘best in class’ domain expertise to 
optimize the risk reward balance across the retail assets portfolio 
and successfully build a sustainable franchise of products across 
geographies and markets 

The Fullerton Differentiator

Fullerton India uses an optimal blend of judgmental criteria and 
analytics driven decision management to acquire and manage diverse 
customer segments across geographies. Credit norms are designed 
towards risk reward optimization with the ultimate objective of 
achieving the predicted levels of Risk Adjusted Returns.

The company has successfully implemented the Recession Loss 
Multiplier (RLM) model which helps the Company in maintaining 
superior portfolio quality and enhancing business profitability by 
controlling portfolio volatility even in case of a likely slowdown in the 
economy.

Cutting edge digital platforms and algorithmic targeting techniques 
ensure prudent and profitable acquisitions.

Overview
Given the geographical 
vastness, diversity of culture, 
restricted access to credit and 
well chronicled vulnerability to 
natural and macro-economic 
factors, risk management 
across both urban and rural 
markets in the retail financial 
sector assumes paramount 
importance.

Fullerton’s key principles of risk 
management comprise the 
following:

 A well-articulated risk appetite 
framework which influences 
and shapes the Company’s 
portfolio mix, thereby ensuring 
desired revenues, optimizing 
enterprise-wide risk-return 
proposition and ensuring 
adequate capital and resource 
deployment.

  Well documented policies 
and programs with robust 
performance guardrails 
supported by constant 
evaluation and necessary 
modifications provide the 
basis of the company’s 
independent and structured risk 
management and governance 
function 

  Extensive use of internal and 
external data (including inputs 
from the credit bureau) across 
marketing and risk analytics 
ensures data driven decision 
management 

  The Company has invested in 
forward-looking risk assessment 
protocols; its pre-emptive credit 
and liquidity interventions 
have translated into proactive 
responsiveness to challenges.
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Risk Appetite 
Framework
A well-defined risk appetite 
framework approved by the 
Board of Directors, covering 
different types of risks 
which the organization is 
exposed to and also defining 
the Company’s risk taking 
perimeters acts as a fulcrum 
for Fullerton India’s risk 
management approach. 

This helps the management 
to decide the entire business 
strategy including desirable 
segments to target, product 
suit to be offered, portfolio 
shape to be built and 
resources to be committed. 

An inherent feature of this 
approach is the fact that it 
presents a holistic view in 
terms of considering Return 
on Equity (RoE) along with 
segmental earnings based 
on various economic, credit 
and market scenarios.

Fullerton India has been 
a pioneer among NBFCs 
in India, to adopt this 
framework, which uses 
extensive statistical models 
that are aligned with 
approaches aligned with 
Internal Ratings Based (IRB) 
norms of Basel II. 

Fullerton India periodically 
derisks itself through 
portfolio-level stress tests 
that assess the impact of 
extreme, though probable, 
stress scenarios (economic, 
credit, market and collateral 
aberrations) and their 
financial impact.

COUNTRY RISK 
ASSESSMENT
Fullerton India takes into 
consideration the various 
macroeconomic and 
portfolio indicators to 
arrive at an overall country 
risk assessment. Post 
discussion and approval by  
the senior management, 
the same is applied for 
decision making across  
the consumer life cycle 
including underwriting, 
portfolio management, 
collections and treasury 
management. 

PRODUCT POLICY, GOVERNANCE AND MONITORING 
FRAMEWORK
Fullerton India has detailed product approval documents that take 
into consideration prevailing market conditions, industry wide 
applicable product norms and sectorial portfolio performances to 
adopt a framework for customer selection, credit acceptance and 
finally credit underwriting processes for sanctioning and booking 
each loan.

These programs are approved at an in-country level and concurred 
by the Risk Oversight Committee (ROC). 

Basis these programs, credit policies are designed which provide 
in-depth guidelines around target market, customer selection and 
credit acceptance criteria, credit approval methodology, verification, 
post disbursement monitoring, collections and remedial portfolio 
management policies. A strong ‘Test and Control’ mechanism helps 
to evaluate the efficacy of each policy.

There is a detailed review mechanism where the effect of the 
implemented policies are reviewed on a periodic basis to ensure 
that they adequately protect the company from credit risk arising 
out of changes in macroeconomic, industry/ segment level and 
other consumer behavioral attributes. 

The Chairman of the Risk Oversight Committee, CEO, Head of 
Business and Chief Risk Officer engage in an ongoing appraisal of 
exposure caps, performance triggers, test programs and country risk 
assessments.

CREDIT UNDERWRITING
A prudent mix of centralized, 
decentralized and Hub-and-
Spoke locations at Fullerton India 
ensures efficient underwriting 
framework where each 
application undergoes rigorous 
credit assessment, approval 
and administration processes. 
Systemic process automations like 
the Business Rules Engine ensure 
fast and efficient implementation 
of Policy rules through minimal 
human intervention. A fully 
integrated digital online lending 
platform is also used by Fullerton 
India to provide loan approvals 
for customers applying through 
online channels. 

OPERATIONAL RISK 
MANAGEMENT
A committee comprising 
of senior officials oversees 
the entire Operational Risk 
Management framework for 
the entire company across 
business groups, credit, 
operations, corporate and 
support functions. 

INFORMATION 
SECURITY RISK 
MANAGEMENT
The IT team manages the 
entire Information Security 
framework at an enterprise 
level and helps to mitigate 
risks that may arise to the 
confidential data stored 
across the Company.

FRAUD RISK 
MANAGEMENT
Fullerton India has adopted 
a neural fraud risk system 
(Hunter) that triggers 
alerts to ensure prudent 
detection, management 
and elimination of fraud risk 
across the company leading 
to significant reduction in 
fraud losses.

LIQUIDITY RISK 
MANAGEMENT
A strong in-house treasury 
team helps to manage 
risks related to liquidity, 
investments, interest rate 
and borrowings through 
implementation of 
policies that articulate the 
governance framework, 
committee responsibilities 
and functions as also the risk 
measurement parameters, 
measures for managing stress 
situations, inbuilt alerts and 
other controls.

Strengths
The robustness of the 
Company’s risk management 
practices is validated through 
the gradual build up of a 
sustainable portfolio across 
Secured and Unsecured 
verticals.

Vigilant monitoring of the 
existing book and prudent 

action in the event of any 
external exigency has been the 
hallmark of the risk department.

The risk team constantly works 
with the product and marketing 
functions to ensure process 
optimization, and ensure 
enhanced customer satisfaction 
without compromising on the 
inherent risk of the portfolio. 

The Company uses the most 
advanced analytical techniques 
to ensure acquiring profitable 
customers, developing and 
implementing prudent portfolio 
management initiatives and 
ensuring intense sustained 
collections activity, all aimed at 
providing maximum value to 
shareholders. 
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Analytics

Data and analytics form the core of a retail lending business 
as it simultaneously increases efficiency and maximises 
profitability of a business through targeted action across the 
length and breadth of the portfolio.

In Fullerton India, analytics is at the forefront of business 
decision making as it drives through a carefully designed 
strategy framework toward the roadmap of the organisation 
and enables fulfillment of the goals set out by the 
management. 

Overview
With over a million strong 
customer base, Fullerton 
India has a large data 
pool and inflow of rich 
information which provides 
the opportunity of in-depth 
learning of a customer’s 
mind-set and presents 
significant scope to develop 
new insights to increase 
business, mitigate risk 
and provide best in class 
customer service.

Apart from the traditional 
sources of data, the digital 

The Fullerton Differentiator

Fullerton India is one of the 
very few NBFC’s to use data 
and analytics extensively in 
all of its business decision 
making processes. A diverse 
and experienced in-house team 
ensures the organisation is 
always on top of its performance 
and key metrics. The capability 
built over time also supports the 
designing and implementing 
of strategies to predict and 
ride out external factors and 
market challenges that provide 
robustness and stability to the 
business. 

Fullerton India Credit 
Company Limited
Annual Report 2016-17

Opportunities
Innovations
Transformation



age today also gives us an 
opportunity to capture a 
lot of non-traditional data. 
The capability is developed 
internally to effectively capture 
this information and analyse 
them to augment traditional 
intelligence and further extend 
the knowledge on customer 
requirements.

Strengths
Starting from short term 
objective oriented activities 
to medium and long term 
strategies on sustainable 
transformational goals, the 
Company’s analytical capability 
is leveraged in all the stages of 
decision making.

From targeting the right 
customer/segment to credit 
decisioning/ verification 
through behaviour 
management, collection 
prioritisation, cross-selling and 
finally attrition management, 
the entire lifecycle of a lending 
customer/borrower is managed 

through data and analytical 
driven strategies.

External and market sources of 
data like the credit bureau and 
rating agencies are regularly 
analysed to gain market 
intelligence. This helps in 
building a customer view that is 
not restricted to Fullerton India 
and also provides an insight 
into the underlying economic 
conditions.

The advanced techniques 
used by the analytical team in 
developing the loss volatility 
models ensured awareness 
of the Company and helped 
maintain a portfolio shape that 
was not significantly impacted 
by an industry wise event like 
demonetisation.

The analytics team uses 
traditional tools like 
segmentation, predictive 
modelling and newer 
techniques like random forest, 
gradient boosting etc. to 
devise strategies implemented 
across different interfaces. 

The key principle behind the 
strategies is to offer the right 
product at the right time at 
the right price and to the right 
customer further providing the 
best in class experience for the 
customer across the product 
lifecycle. 

Highlights, FY2017
The analytics team developed 
and implemented a scorecard 
based underwriting model for 
the high ticket LAP sourcing to 
standardise the on-boarding of 
new customers. Similar models 
were also rolled out for the self-
employed customer segment 
seeking unsecured funding. The 
scorecard based model ensures 
risk management along 
with process efficiency and 
improved customer journey.

A mobile app has been 
developed and rolled out for 
capturing customer information 
in rural geographies through 
the frontline team. This data 
has the potential to build 
significant market intelligence 
given the presence of Fullerton 
India across geographies.

Post demonetisation, to 
ensure smooth collection and 
repayment of existing loans in 
the rural locations, the analytics 
team developed an account 
level strategy combining 
internal and external data to 
prioritise effort and maximize 
performance.

During the year, the company invested 
in its own infrastructure for management 
of the contact center to service the 
customers. For ease of transacting, the 
company launched an industry first 
chatbot – Asha, an interactive bot which 
can help the customers apply for loans 
over Facebook messenger.
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Funding and Treasury Management
Maintaining adequate liquidity to support disbursements 
and ensure an optimal cost of borrowing is a priority at 
Fullerton India. 

The Treasury team at the Company is guided by three 
principles - (i) diversification of funding by instruments, 
lenders, lender types and geographies, (ii) matching the 
asset and liability tenor to minimise refinancing risks and (iii) 
funding for contingencies by maintaining a liquidity buffer. 
These coupled with continuous engagement with funding 
partners, has resulted in quality borrowing at better rates 
during FY2017.

Overview
At Fullerton India, the Treasury 
function is responsible for 
all liability management 
including borrowings and 
liquidity management.

The Treasury team ensures 
that the Company stays well-
funded for normal outflows 
like disbursements, expenses, 
repayments, even in case of 
contingencies. It interacts 
with external financiers, 
rating agencies, lenders 
and other intermediaries, 
and maintains close and 
continuous relationship with 
over a hundred institutional 
investors.

The Fullerton Differentiator

With help of data based 
inputs on regular updates 
on the macro economy, 
global and local market 
movements, the Treasury 
team shapes its key portfolio 
decisions, well in advance 
of evolving circumstances. 
Treasury management plays 
an important role at Fullerton 
India with its expertise 
on stable, renewable and 
efficient funding. Internal 
limits and governances 
ensure that external lender 
interest is ensured and 
decisions are taken from a 
sustainable viewpoint. 
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Highlights, FY2017
During FY2017 Fullerton India became 
the first NBFC to successfully issue 
Rupee Denominated Bonds (Masala 
Bonds), thereby creating a new and 
uncorrelated investor segment which is 
geographically diversified. This can then 
be tapped for further fund raising. The 
overseas bond market has the potential 
to support large fund raising. Hence, 
introducing this source is beneficial as it 
adds another source for supporting the 
next phase of growth of the Company.  

The robust treasury management 
processes and conservative liquidity 

policies have been well recognised 
by lenders and rating agencies. The 
Company’s ratings being re-affirmed by 
all the rating agencies, is a proof to this.

The Treasury continuously engages 
with various lenders and other funding 
partners on to keep them abreast 
of internal developments and plans. 
Regular investor meets are organised 
to increase the interaction with the 
management, discussion of financials, 
strategy and execution plans. 

During FY2017, Fullerton India added 
over 30 new investors including 
Insurance Companies and Foreign 

Portfolio Investors thereby enhancing 
its funding flexibility. Over the next 
few years it is expected that this 
segment would provide long tenure 
stable funding adding to durability. 
Subordinated debt issuance and 
pool sale further improved its capital 
efficiency and overall resources base.

In addition to the above factors, 
continuing stable financial performance 
contributed in better borrowing 
commercial terms and assisted in 
reducing the overall financing cost by 
over 60 basis points.

CREDIT RATING
Fullerton India has a credit rating of AAA from CARE, 
AA+ from ICRA and India Ratings on its long-term debt 
instruments, which are among the highest within the 
country’s retail finance sector.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY
As on March FY2017, the overall capital adequacy stands 
at 22.5%, which is far higher than the RBI’s requirement of 
15%, reflecting its confidence in investing and growing 
the business. Similarly, the Tier 1 Capital is comfortable at 
16.3% compared to an RBI requirement of 10%. 

MATCHED ASSET-LIABILITY TENOR
During FY2017, the Company maintained an average 
borrowing tenor of 35 months matching its asset tenor 
well. This reduces mismatches and interest rate risks. 
A selective mix of funding sources including bank 
borrowings and capital markets were used to maintain 
optimal tenor.

LIQUIDITY BUFFER
The Company maintained adequate liquidity coverage 
to stay well funded even in the event of a contingency 
by owning high quality liquid assets. These include cash 
and cash-equivalent instruments which can be easily 
liquidated, which means no dependence on external 
borrowing. A cushion of fee paying committed lines and 
unavailed bank lines is additionally maintained to add 
resilience to the various lines of defense.

DIVERSIFIED LENDER BASE
To maintain low dependence on one lender or even one 
lender type the Company seeks to constantly diversify 
its lenders. During FY2017, Fullerton India diversified its 
funding to over 175 institutional lenders including Banks, 
Insurance Companies, Foreign Portfolio Investors, Mutual 
Funds, Pension and Provident Funds. The funding profile 

analysed by way of instruments shows term loans from 
Banks, which are considered the most stable source, 
constituted the largest component of total borrowings. 
This is followed by Non-Convertible Debentures and 
Commercial Papers which added efficiency and balance 
to the funding book. Overall, the funding profile remains 
resilient to market volatility and provides optimally costing 
renewable relationships.
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Fullerton India has implemented several state-of-the-art 
technologies to deliver superior customer experience.

Overview
Fullerton India has been 
investing in advanced 
technology platforms and 
systems to provide a cutting 
edge in its products and 
services to electronically-
linked branches. We have 
implemented a strong 
technology platform for our 
products and services . Our 
platforms are scalable and 
support the rapid growing 
transaction volumes. 

At Fullerton India, our 
continuous endeavor has 
been to use technology 
to further improve the 

The Fullerton Differentiator

The Company has upgraded its 
Rural Lending Platform to further 
improve the customer service 
and thus have increased its 
capability to enable transactions 
digitally, thereby reducing 
the overall Turn-Around-Time. 
Fullerton India has been 
investing and adopting the 
latest technologies with an 
endeavor to provide top class 
service to its customers and has 
been stepping up the digital 
momentum. Platforms like Insta-
loan and chatbot – Asha allow 
the customers to apply for a loan 
online and receive in-principle 
approvals within minutes. 
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customer’s experience. 
Customer Relationship 
Management (CRM) helps us 
target existing and potential 
customers in a cost-effective 
manner and offers them 
products that are relevant 
based on their profile and 
needs. Apart from reducing 
costs of acquisition, this multi-
channel platform has also 
helped to deepen customer 
relationships through superior 
service and tap better business 
opportunities through cross-
sell.  

Fullerton India recognises 
the need to provide a unified 
customer experience that cuts 
through various customer 
touch points, products and 
geographies. Speedy solutions 
to customers is increasingly the 
critical factor, while ensuring 
high asset quality and business 
continuity. Automation at 
every level is therefore the 
key to enhanced efficiency. 
The Company has always 
been investing in advanced 
technology translating into 
cutting edge product and 
service offerings and has been 
stepping up its digitisation 
momentum.

A revamped and responsive 
Customer Portal has been 
launched thus enabling the 
existing customers to login and 
register through their social 
media account like Facebook 
and Google. This portal allows 
customers to transact and track 
their loan accounts online and 
also helps them addresses 
queries related to their loan 
account. Furthermore, now 
the customers can also view 
documents online and send 
service requests, which are 
integrated with the CRM 
solution. This is coupled 
with the Interactive Voice 
Response (IVR) solution at the 
call center, which also allows 
the customers to send service 
requests over a call.

Strengths
The Company’s data 
warehouse, Customer 
Relationship Management 
(CRM), approval-in-principle 
engine and analytics solutions 
has helped target existing 
and new customers in a 
cost-effective manner and 
offer customised solutions. In 
addition to moderating the 
cost of customer acquisition, 

the Company’s proactive 
technology investments helped 
deepen customer relationships 
and drive higher efficiencies.

The Company has 
implemented Desktop 
Virtualisation, a Cloud 
Technology solution, to run all 
its core operations across Urban 
and Rural markets. Through 
this deployment, Fullerton 
India moved from a physical 
desktop PC environment to a 
private cloud-based Hosted 
Shared Desktop environment. 
The application delivery as a 
service (ADaaS) solution works 
on the central server, derives 
server-based processing power, 
provides instantaneous boot 
up, reduces machine downtime 
and facilitates employee 
mobility. The Company 
has around 3,000 virtual 
machines that run over much 
smaller physical technology 
infrastructure footprint to 
power numerous IT enabled 
business services.

The Disaster Recovery 
management strategy by the 
Company ensures the state-
of-the-art Business Continuity 
to secure the live systems. The 
Company performs periodic 
switch-over and switch-back 
drills of major IT applications, 
thereby preparing for the 
readiness in responding to 
emergency situations.

Fullerton India has 
implemented a framework 
for the measurement of 
Customer Experience (internal 
and external) to ensure that 
customer feedback across 
each touch point (including 
customer complaints, customer 

satisfaction surveys, telephonic 
surveys and employee 
feedback) is analysed and acted 
upon.

Highlights, FY2017
During the year, Fullerton India 
invested in upgrading the core 
infrastructure in its data center 
to the state of art network 
switches and other related 
infrastructure which can cater 
to the its digital journey.

During the year, the 
company invested in its own 
infrastructure for management 
of the contact center to service 
the customers. For ease of 
transacting, the company 
launched an industry first 
chatbot – Asha, an interactive 
bot which can help the 
customers apply for loans 
over Facebook messenger.  In 
order to increase the reach 
to customers, the company 
implemented a gateway 
enabling alliances/partners to 
connect to the core systems 
for providing an in-principle 
approval for customers 
applying through partner 
channels. The company also 
implemented an Insta Loan 
product wherein customers 
can apply for loans through 
the mobile application 
implemented.  During the year, 
the company implemented a 
mobile collection application 
through which receipts are 
issued through SMS and email.

Fullerton India has also invested 
in Robotic Process Automation 
for automation of its internal 
processes thus increasing the 
efficiency and productivity. 

During the year, the company invested 
in its own infrastructure for management 
of the contact center to service the 
customers. For ease of transacting, the 
company launched an industry first 
chatbot – Asha, an interactive bot which 
can help the customers apply for loans 
over Facebook messenger.
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At Fullerton India, Human Capital function enables to 
create an environment of growth and development for its 
employees. With a vision to be the ‘Company of Choice’, for its 
employees, Fullerton India has demonstrated commitment in 
believing in its people and partnering in their success.

The various Industry awards and recognition in several areas 
including Golden Peacock for HR Excellence, a top decile 
ranking in the Times Ascent “Dream Companies to work 
for ”bear testimony to our approach in harnessing talent to 
achieve excellence.

Overview
Fullerton India has created 
a culture that underpins the 
Company’s values – Integrity, 
Diversity, Agility, Innovation, 
Collaboration and Excellence. 
The Company launched a 
successful “Finnopreneurs” 
programme which gives 
internal talent an opportunity 
to develop and execute 
new business proposals 
and receive recognition for 
their success. Additionally, to 
extend the opportunity for 
budding talent at campuses, 
the Company has launched 
“Finnovatica”, a platform 

The Fullerton Differentiator

In its growth journey, Fullerton 
India has recruited selectively, 
trained comprehensively, 
engaged effectively and paid 
meritocratically. This has resulted 
in a highly engaged workforce 
which consistently delivers 
superior business results.
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for idea generation and 
development at participating 
campuses.

Strengths
Fullerton India provides an 
inclusive and caring work 
environment. The Company’s 
Code of Conduct sets high 
standards of integrity, conduct 
and workplace behavior. People 
policies are designed to ensure 
a healthy and safe workplace, 
free from discrimination or 
harassment where employees 
can raise complaints without 
fear of retribution.

Over the years, the Company 
has institutionalised sharp 
performance metrics at all 
employee levels, tied to 
its overall corporate goals 
and follows a strict ‘Pay for 
Performance’ philosophy 
through short and long-
term incentives that are 
benchmarked competitively.

The Company has laid 
emphasis towards building a 
learning organisation through 
various interventions including 
“#knowledge adda” focused 
on learnings from the industry, 
comprehensive eLearning 

and targeted Management 
and Executive development 
through its “Back 2 School” 
programmes held at the 
Temasek Business Leadership 
Centre and at Ivy league 
schools including Harvard 
Business School. 

The Company has a tie up 
with leading institutions such 
as IRMA (Institute of Rural 
Management, Ahmedabad) 
instituting customised 
Management Development 
Programs to groom its middle 
management for leadership 
roles. Several senior managers 
enhanced their professional 
exposure through international 
assignments including full time 
senior appointments in other 
international companies of 
Fullerton Financial Holdings.

Highlights, FY2017
  Increased people strength 

from 8,738 as on 31 March 2016 
to 10,017 as on 31 March 2017;

  Continuing with its 
commitment to take quality 
fresh talent, the Company 
expanded its presence in 

premier campuses like the 
IIMs and ISBs while continuing 
to recruit from other premier 
institutes such as IRMA and IITs. 

  Recognised over 1,700 
employees under the ‘Fullerton 
India Recognition of Excellence’ 
program (FIRE), which 
recognises the top-performing 
employees at various intervals 
through the year, culminating 
in the prestigious, annual CEO’s 
Elite List.

  Invested 35,000 person-days 
in employee training including 
career path programs for 
key functions, programs on 
Management and Personal 
effectiveness and personalised 
programs.

  During FY2017, our key 
talent attended Executive 
Development Programmes 
from global renowned business 
schools through the Fullerton 
India Recognition of Excellence 
– Back to School (FIRE B2S) 
programme.

  Invested in employee 
welfare (including healthcare, 
life insurance and emergency 
financial aid).

  The Company successfully 
continued the rural skills 
development program 
“Gurukul” under its CSR brand 
‘UDAY’ to impart employability 
skills amongst the youth in 
rural India. During FY2017, the 
Company successfully launched 
4 centres. The programme has 
already trained more than 885 
youth and employed 139 such 
trainees in its rural branches. 

  Several staff engagement 
programs were organised 

including fun at workplace 
activities like corporate 
sports tournaments, quiz 
competitions and talent hunts. 
During FY2017, 78 employees 
represented the Company in 
the inter corporate events.

  In line with the current 
trends, the introduction of a 
Social HCM forum enables 
timely, continued and 
consistent communication, and 
employee engagement across 
geographies. 

  The adoption of digital 
practices for employee life cycle 
management continued during 
the year with the employee 
portal - eConnect which 
features internal social media 
for employee interaction and 
engagement. 

Invested 35,000 person-days in 
employee training including career path 
programs for key functions, programs on 
Management and Personal effectiveness 
and personalised programs.
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Dear members,

Your Directors have the pleasure in presenting the 22nd Annual Report of Fullerton India Credit 

Company Limited along with the audited statement of accounts for the financial year ended 31 March, 

2017.

1. Financial highlights (Standalone and Consolidated)    
The standalone financial performance for FY 2017 is summarised hereunder:

On a consolidated basis, the performance of the Company is as follows:

(B crores)

Particulars  FY 2016 FY 2017

Total income 2,277 2,643

Less: Expenditure 1,642 1,806

Less: Net credit losses including provisions 205 506

Profit/(Loss) before tax 430 331

Tax 32 117

Net Profit/(Loss) after tax   398 214

Add: Balance brought forward from previous year  (442) (124)

Less: Transfer to Reserve Fund under Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 

1934

  80 43

Balance carried to Balance Sheet  (124) 47

Paid up capital  1,921 1,980

* Previous year’s figures have been regrouped based on current year’s classification.

(B crores)

Particulars  FY 2016  FY 2017

Total income 2,279 2,667

Less: Expenditure 1,649 1,837

Less: Net credit losses including provisions 205 511

Profit/(Loss) before tax 425 319

Tax 32 117

Net Profit/(Loss) after tax 393 202

Add: Balance brought forward from previous year (442) (129)

Less: Transfer to Reserve Fund under Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 

1934

80 43

Balance carried to Balance Sheet (129) 31

Paid up capital 1,921 1,980

* Previous year’s figures have been regrouped based on current year’s classification.
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2. Financial performance and overview
Your company continued to progress its agenda of 

responsible, diversified growth, with a strong business 

momentum for the first half of the year. This growth was aided 

by a benign credit environment and government reforms and 

economic stimulus.

The announcement of demonetisation of high value currency 

notes on 8 November, 2016 impacted momentum briefly in 

the urban business, which resumed shortly thereafter. Rural 

momentum was impacted longer, as customers dealt with 

the temporary disruption deriving from this initiative. While 

most of the rural markets now appear to have returned to near 

normalcy, there remain pockets where conditions have still 

some distance to travel.

Disbursals for FY2017 stood at H7,332 crores, (~14% lower over 

the previous fiscal). Customer assets stood at H11,597 crores 

as at 31 March, 2017 (H11,508 crores as at 31 March, 2016). 

Secured products now account for 47.6% of assets.

Gross income increased by 16% to H2,643 crores (FY 2016:  

H2, 277 crores), while finance costs stood at H1,034 crores (H951 

crores in FY 2016). Net interest income was at H1,328 crores, 

a 22% increase y-o-y. (H1,087 crores in FY2016). Non interest 

expenditure was at H771 crores (H691 crores in FY 2016).

Profit before tax was lower at H331 crores (H430 crores in FY 

2016). FY2017 was the first financial year where your Company 

did not have the benefit of offsetting unabsorbed losses, 

resulting in a higher income tax obligation compared to prior 

years. As a result, Profit after tax decreased by 46% to H214 

crores (H398 crores in FY 2016).

The focus on liquidity management continued as your 

Company further diversified its funding sources. The total 

bank borrowings stood at H4,538 crores (H5,490 crores as at 

31 March, 2016); non-convertible debentures aggregated to 

H5,363 crores (H3,590 crores as at 31 March, 2016), including 

long term subordinated bonds eligible for Tier-II capital 

aggregating H691 crores (H620 crores as at 31 March, 2016). 

The Company successfully concluded its maiden issuance of 

Rupee Denominated Offshore Bonds (Masala Bonds) of value 

H500 crores. These bonds are listed on the Singapore Stock 

Exchange.

Please also refer the ‘Management discussion and analysis’, 

enclosed as Annexure I to this report, for more details.

3. State of Company’s affairs and future 
outlook
A detailed overview of the state of affairs of the Company and 

future outlook is provided in the ‘Management discussion and 

analysis’ section, enclosed as Annexure I to this report.

4. Share Capital
During the year, 5.89 crore Equity Shares of H10/- each at 

premium of H23.95/- per share, aggregating to H200 crores, 

were allotted to M/s. Angelica Investments Pte. Ltd. on rights 

basis.

The issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company as 

at 31 March, 2017, stood at H1,980.07 crores. The Equity Shares 

of H10 each, were held as under:

 

Name 
Number of 

shares
%

Angelica Investments Pte Ltd 189,48,15,162 95.69

Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte Ltd 8,52,56,357 4.31
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5. Capital adequacy
The details on ‘Tier-I’, ‘Tier-II’ capital and capital adequacy ratio 

are given under the ‘Management discussion and analysis’ 

section of this Report. 

6. Dividend
In spite of the Company having reported distributable surplus, 

with a view to conserve resources, your Directors do not 

recommend any dividend on equity shares of the Company for 

the year ended 31 March, 2017. 

7. Debt position
During the year under review, the Company placed H1,155 

crores in commercial papers (H1,160 crores repaid during 

the year) and H2,010 crores in non-convertible secured and 

unsecured debentures (H237 crores repaid during the year) 

with various mutual funds and financial institutions on a 

private placement basis. The Company availed long-term and 

short-term loans worth H1,090 crores (and repaid H2,067 crores 

during the year) from banks.

8. Change(s) in the nature of business, if any
There were no material changes in the nature of the business 

of the Company or its subsidiaries. One of the Company’s 

subsidiary, Fullerton India Foundation for Social & Economic 

Development, has applied for conversion to regular private 

limited company, to the Regional Director, Western Region, 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, during the year. 

9. Transfer to reserves
During the year, the Company transferred 20% of its profits for 

the year amounting to H43 crores to reserves created as per of 

the norms laid down under Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank 

of India Act, 1934.

10. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
The Company’s Board lays down the strategic objectives of the 

Company and guides the management in meeting its goal 

of aligning the interests of the shareholders with that of the 

promoters. 

No new Directors were appointed since the last annual general 

meeting. Further, there were no changes in the Board during 

the financial year FY2017. Mr. Rajeev Kakar, Non-Executive 

Director, resigned from the Board in April, 2017. 

Mr. Gan Chee Yen is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting of the Company. He being eligible; 

has offered himself for reappointment. The Board recommends 

his reappointment to the members of the Company.

The tenure of Dr. Milan Shuster, Ms. Renu Challu and  

Ms. Sudha Pillai is scheduled to expire on 30 September, 

2017. It is proposed to reappoint Dr. Milan Shuster, Ms. Renu 

Challu and Ms. Sudha Pillai for the period from 1 October, 

2017 till 30 September, 2020. Your Directors recommend their 

reappointment as independent directors on the board of the 

Company.

The tenure of Mr. Shantanu Mitra, Managing Director of 

the Company is scheduled to expire on 24 August, 2017. 

It is proposed to reappoint him further for the period from 

25 August, 2017 to 31 December, 2017. Your Directors 

recommend his re-appointment as Managing Director of the 

Company.

The shareholders of the Company may refer to the 

accompanying notice of annual general meeting of the 

Company and the corporate governance report for brief 

profiles of Mr. Gan Chee Yen, Dr. Milan Shuster, Ms. Renu 

Challu, Ms. Sudha Pillai and Mr. Shantanu Mitra.

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they 

meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 

149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The following were the key managerial personnel of the Company during the year:

Key managerial personnel Designation

Mr. Shantanu Mitra Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

Mr. Pankaj Malik Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
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11. Number of meetings of the Board of 
Directors
There were four Board meetings held during the year on;

i. 19 May, 2016

ii. 8 September, 2016

iii. 2 December, 2016 and

iv. 14 March, 2017

The time gap between any two meetings was less than 120 

days with at least one meeting being held every quarter.

12. Board evaluation
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 

the Independent Directors met separately to review the 

performance of Non-Independent Directors, Chairperson 

of the Company, the Board as a whole and the flow of 

information between the Board and the management.

The Board completed the annual evaluation of its own 

performance, the individual Directors (including the 

Chairman) as well as an evaluation of the working of all Board 

Committees. The Board was assisted by the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”). The performance 

evaluation was carried out by seeking inputs from all the 

Directors/Members of the Committees. 

13. Managerial remuneration 
In terms of the provisions of Section 197 read with Rule 5 of 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014, the details of remuneration and 

compensation of the employees are to be set out in the 

annexure to the Directors’ Report. However, having regard to 

the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is being 

sent to the members of the Company. Any member interested 

in obtaining such particulars may write to the Company 

Secretary of the Company at the Corporate Office.

14. Details of subsidiaries
The Company has two subsidiary companies, both of which 

are wholly-owned:

a.  Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited; and 

b. Fullerton India Foundation for Social & Economic 

Development (a Section 8 company)

Fullerton India Home Finance Company Ltd (FIHFCL), engages 

in home loans and loans against property. In FY2017, the 

Company made further capital infusion in FIHFCL, subscribing 

to 13,76,54,395 equity shares, taking the total equity 

investment in FIHFCL to H195.27crore from H57.62 crore. 

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2017, which was 

its first full year of operations, FIHFCL built a portfolio of H475 

crores.

Fullerton India Foundation for Social & Economic 

Development did not conduct any operations during the year. 

It applied for conversion to regular private limited company, to 

the Regional Director, Western Region, Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs, during the year.

15. Statutory Auditors 
M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, the auditors of the Company retire 

at the forthcoming AGM. The Audit Committee, after review, 

has recommended the appointment of M/s BSR & Co. LLP, 

Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No. 101248W/

W-100022) as the new statutory auditors to hold office from 

the conclusion of the ensuing 22nd Annual General Meeting 

until the conclusion of the 27th Annual General Meeting of 

the Company. The auditors have provided their consent for the 

appointment and provided the certificate as per the relevant 

provisions of Chapter X of the Companies Act, 2013 vide their 

letter dated 25 November, 2016. 

16. Secretarial Auditors
M/s. Vinod Kothari & Company continued to act as the 

Secretarial Auditors of the Company during the year. They had 

conducted secretarial audit as per the provisions of section 

204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and issued a Secretarial 

Audit Report. Copy of their report is attached to this report as 
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Annexure IV.

17. Certificate on compliance with the 
regulations as regards downstream 
investment and other FEMA Regulations 
Due to change in legislative framework, your Company is no 

longer required to obtain certification from the Auditors of the 

Company to the said effect and therefore no certification was 

obtained by the Company.

18. Response to the Auditors’ Report
There were no qualifications, reservation or adverse remark or 

disclaimer, made by the statutory or the secretarial auditors in 

their reports.

19. Disclosure on ESOPS
The Company does not have any employee stock option/

purchase scheme. The details of share appreciation rights are 

mentioned in Note 32 of the notes to accounts. 

20. Audit Committee 
The details of the constitution, terms of reference, etc., of the 

Audit Committee are mentioned in the Corporate Governance 

Report, enclosed as Annexure II to this report.

21. Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee
The details of the constitution, terms of reference, etc., of the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee are mentioned in 

the Corporate Governance Report, enclosed as Annexure II to 

this report.

The Company has clearly laid out guidelines approved by the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) for Fit and 

Proper Criteria for appointment of Directors in accordance 

with the Companies Act, 2013 and the Reserve Bank of India.

Further, there is also a policy framed by NRC for remuneration 

for directors, KMPs and employees incorporating principles of 

fairness, pay for performance, a sufficient balance in rewarding 

short and long term objectives reflected in the pay mix of 

fixed and variable pay, meeting the financial viability of the 

Company.

22. Vigil mechanism 
The Company has a whistle-blower policy in place as part of 

the vigil mechanism for reporting of genuine concerns by 

any stakeholder about any other one. The policy, displayed 

on the website of the Company, provides an opportunity for 

anyone to report their concerns to the management about 

any actual or suspected unethical behaviour, fraud or violation 

of the Company’s Code of Conduct. This policy also provides 

safeguards against victimisation of stakeholders, who report 

their concerns. The whistle-blower policy comprehensively 

covers processes for receiving, analyzing, investigating, 

inquiring, taking corrective action and reporting of the issues 

raised. An update on whistleblower cases and investigation 

conducted thereon is presented to the Audit Committee on a 

quarterly basis.

 23. Risk management policy
In line with the RBI regulations, the Company has a Board 

Committee known as the Risk Oversight Committee. The 

Committee oversees the processes of risk assessment and 

minimization, monitors risk management plans and carries 

out such other functions as may be directed by the Board. 

Please refer the Corporate Governance report for the terms of 

reference of the Committee.

The Company has adopted several policies for risk 

management. The management reports to the Committee on 

risks identified and the action taken to mitigate those risks. 

The specific objectives of the Risk Oversight Committee of the 

Company include:

   To ensure that all the current and future material risk 

exposures of the Company are identified, assessed, quantified, 

appropriately mitigated and managed;

   To establish a framework for the Company’s risk 

management process and ensure Companywide 

implementation;

   To ensure systematic and uniform assessment of risks 

related to the Company;

   To enable compliance with appropriate regulations, 

wherever applicable, through the adoption of best-in-class 

practices; and,

   To assure business growth along with financial stability.

Please also refer the ‘Management discussion and analysis’, 

enclosed as Annexure I to this report, for more details on the 

subject.
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24. Extract of the annual return
In terms of the provisions of Section 197 read with Rule 5 of 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014, the details forming part of the extract 

of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 are enclosed as part of 

the Directors’ Report.  

25. Material changes and commitments, if 
any, affecting the financial position of the 
Company which have occurred between the 
end of the financial year of the Company to 
which the financial statements relate and the 
date of the report
There have been no such material changes and commitments 

affecting the financial position of the Company which have 

occurred during the said period.

26. Details of significant and material orders 
passed by the regulators/courts/tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and the 
Company’s operations in future
There were no significant and material orders passed by the 

regulators/courts/tribunals impacting the going concern 

status of the Company and its operations in future.

27. Statement in respect of adequacy of 
internal financial controls with reference to 
the financial statements

The members may note that:

   Systems have been laid to ensure that all transactions are 

executed in accordance with management’s general and 

specific authorization. There are well-laid manuals for such 

general or specific authorisation.

   Systems and procedures exist to ensure that all transactions 

are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 

statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 

principles or any other criteria applicable to such statements 

and to maintain accountability for aspects.

   Access to assets is permitted only in accordance with 

management’s general and specific authorization. No assets 

of the Company are allowed to be used for personal purposes, 

except in accordance with terms of employment or except as 

specifically permitted.

   The existing assets of the Company are verified/checked 

at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with 

respect to differences, if any.

Based on the above, your Board is of the view that adequate 

internal financial controls exist in the Company.

28. Particulars of loans/advances/investments outstanding during the financial year
The disclosures relating to particulars of loans/advances/investments outstanding as per Regulation 53(f ) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are as under:

A. With respect to Holding and Subsidiary companies

B. Cash Flow statement has been included in the financial statements for FY2017.

Sr. 
No.

In the books of 
FICCL in capacity of 

Disclosures of amounts at the year end and the maximum amount of loans/
advances/investments outstanding during the year

Disclosure

1. Holding Company

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries by name and amount.

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to associates by name and amount.

(i) No repayment schedule or repayment beyond seven years; or

(ii) No interest or interest below section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 by 

name and amount.

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which 

Directors are interested by name and amount.

Nil

2. Subsidiary
Same disclosures as applicable to the parent company in the accounts of 
subsidiary company

Nil

3. Holding Company
Investments by the loanee (borrower) in the shares of parent company and 
subsidiary company, when the company has made a loan or advance in the 
nature of loan.

Nil
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29. Deposits 
The Company despite being registered as a ‘Deposit-taking 

NBFC under the regulations of the RBI, did not accept any 

public deposits during the year under review (Nil during FY 

2016), under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.

30. Particulars of loans, guarantees or 
investments under Section 186
The Company is exempt from the provisions laid down under 

Section 186 as regards to loan and advances made, guarantees 

given or security provided. The Company made an equity 

investment in one of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, details 

of which are provided under ‘Details of subsidiaries’ section 

herein above. 

31. Particulars of contracts or arrangements 
with related parties
There were no related party transactions falling under Section 

188 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.

32. Corporate Governance  
A detailed report on Corporate Governance and copy of the 

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial 

Officer of the Company are provided as Annexures II and III to 

this report respectively.

33. Management discussion and analysis
A detailed review of the operations, financial performance, 

risk management, outlook, among others, is provided under 

the section ‘Management discussion and analysis’ enclosed as 

Annexure I to this report. 

34. Fraud reporting
The Company reports occurrence of frauds to the Reserve 

Bank of India every quarter in terms of the RBI regulations. The 

details of the frauds occurred during the quarter are placed 

before first Audit Committee meeting held after the end of 

each quarter. There were 28 instances of fraud cases, which 

were duly reported to the Board. The Company has taken 

appropriate action in these cases.

No frauds were reported by the Auditors, during the year.

35. Revision of financial statements or 
Board’s Report
There have been no revisions in the financial statements or 

Board’s Report as approved by the shareholders and published 

in the annual report.

Sr. No. Trustee Contact details

1. Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

GDA House, Plot No.85, Bhusari Colony,

Paud Road, Pune – 411038

Phone: 020 – 25280081 Extension: 107  

Fax: 020 – 25280275

2. Vistra ITCL (India) Limited

The IL&FS Financial Centre, 

Plot C- 22, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, 

Bandra(E), Mumbai 400051

Phone: 022 - 26593226

Fax: 022 - 26533038

36. Details of debenture trustees
The details of the entities which acted as the debenture trustees for the debenture holders of the Company during the year are as 

under:
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Rating Agency Facility Type Rating

ICRA
LT NCD/TL/SD [ICRA] AA+ with stable outlook

ST STD/CP [ICRA] A1+

India Ratings
LT NCD/SD IND AA+ with stable outlook

ST STD/CP IND A1+

CARE LT NCD/SD/TL CARE (AAA) (Triple A) with stable outlook

37. Credit rating
The credit ratings’ details of the Company as on 31 March, 2017 were as follows:

LT  – Long-term ST  – Short-term   

NCD  – Non-convertible debentures SD  – Subordinate debt  

CP – Commercial paper TL  – Term loan

STD  – Short-term debt

   The ratings mentioned above were reaffirmed by the rating agencies (ICRA, India Ratings and CARE) during the FY2017. 

38. Disclosures under the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013
Pursuant to the legislation on the Sexual Harassment of 

Woman at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal)

Act, 2013, the Company had framed a Policy on Prevention of 

Sexual Harassment at Workplace. During the year FY2017, two 

cases were reported under the provisions and guidelines of 

this policy and were disposed off through conciliation. 

39. Conservation of energy, technology 
absorption and foreign exchange earnings 
and outgo
The provisions relating to conservation of energy and 

technology absorption do not apply to the Company, since it 

is an NBFC. 

However, FICCL adopts the usage of information technology 

extensively and is prudent in utilising non-renewable 

resources. 

The Company has been taking steps towards environment 

conservation by adopting alternate and clean methods of 

energy generation. The Company has been investing in solar 

power hybrid systems since 2012, and till date has made 

investments worth H5.57 crores for this initiative. 

The Company aims to drive energy efficiency at its branches 

through an increased use of solar/wind hybrid systems. The 

Company has installed wind and solar systems in 186 rural 

branches across 10 states, thereby saving 1,45,000 litres of 

diesel as on FY2017. In next 5 years, with the help of this 

initiative, the Company plans to further save 7,25,000 litres 

of diesel. FICCL is the first NBFC in India that has used solar 

energy to power its branches, thereby eliminating the need 

for diesel powered generator backup. Through this initiative, 

the Company, as of FY2017, has generated 347 MWh of clean 

energy, reducing its carbon footprint by 310 tons due to the 

non-consumption of fossil fuels 

There were foreign exchange outflows of H11 crores during the 

year (H5 crores in FY 2016), pertaining to travel, training and 

professional fees.

40. Corporate social responsibility  
The details of the composition of CSR Committee and its 

terms of reference are given in Corporate Governance report. 

The Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects is 

enclosed as Annexure V to this report.

41. Directors’ responsibility statement
As per the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 

134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that:

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year 

ended 31 March, 2017, the applicable accounting 

standards had been followed along with proper 

explanation relating to material departures;

(ii) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and 

applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at 

the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of 
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the Company for that period;

(iii) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for 

the maintenance of adequate accounting records 

in accordance with the provisions of this Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a 

going concern basis; 

(v) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure 

compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 

and that such systems were adequate and operating 

effectively;

(vi) the Directors had laid down internal financial controls 

to be followed by the Company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and were operating 

effectively.

42. Acknowledgement  
Your Directors would like to place on record, their gratitude 

for the cooperation and guidance received from all the 

statutory bodies, especially the RBI. The Directors also thank 

the shareholders, clients, vendors, investors, banks and 

other stakeholders in placing their faith in the Company and 

contributing to its growth. We would also like to appreciate 

the hard work put in by all our employees, and we look 

forward to their continuing patronage, going forward.

 On behalf of the Board of Directors

Mumbai  Gan Chee Yen  

18 May, 2017  Chairman
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II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated.

Sl. 
No.

Name and Description 
of main products / 

services

NIC Code of the 
Product/service

% to total turnover of the company

1 Other credit granting

- Providing Loans 65923 100

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

Sl. 

No.

Name and Address of the 

Company
CIN/GLN

Holding/ 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of shares 
held

Applicable 
Section

1. Angelica Investments Pte. Ltd - Holding 95.69 Section 2(46)

2. Fullerton India Home Finance 

Company Limited

U65922TN2010PLC076972 Subsidiary 100 Section 2(87)(ii)

3. Fullerton India Foundation For 

Social & Economic Development

U85100MH2009NPL191341 Subsidiary 100 Section 2(87)(ii)

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS 
1. CIN U65191TN1994PLC079235

2. Registration Date 30/08/1994

3. Name of the Company Fullerton India Credit Company Limited

4. Category/Sub-category of the Company: Category: Company Limited Shares

Sub-category: Indian Non- Government company

5. Address of the Registered office & contact details Megh Towers, Third Floor, Old No-307,New No-165, 
Poonamallee High Road, Maduravoyal, Chennai, Tamil Nadu- 
600095. 
Ph: 022 - 67491234 
email: secretarial@fullertonindia.com 
Website: www.fullertonindia.com

6. Whether listed company Yes

7. Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar & 
Transfer Agent, if any.

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. 
C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, L.B.S.Marg, Bhandup 
(West), Mumbai - 400078. Phone No.: 22 25963838

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
as on the financial year ended on 31 March, 2017 

[Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1)  

of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014]
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i. Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change 
during the 

year  
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian

a) Individual/ HUF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f ) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total (A)(1) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 (2) Foreign

a) NRIs -Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Other -Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) Bodies Corporate 0 192,11,61,357 192,11,61,357 100 0 198,00,71,519 198,00,71,519 100 0

d) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total (A)(2) 0 192,11,61,357 192,11,61,357 100 0 198,00,71,519 198,00,71,519 100 0

Total shareholding of 
Promoter (A)=(A)(1) + (A)(2)

0 192,11,61,357 192,11,61,357 100 0 198,00,71,519 198,00,71,519 100 0

B. Public Shareholding
(1) Institutions
a) Mutual Funds/ UTI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f ) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

g) FIIs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 h) Foreign Venture Capital 
Funds

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total (B)(1) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share capital 
upto H1 lakh

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ii) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share capital 
in excess of H1 lakh

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) Others (specify)
Non Resident Indians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Overseas Corporate Bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change 
during the 

year  
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
Foreign Nationals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Foreign Portfolio Investor 
-Corporate

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Market Maker 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Clearing Members 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Directors/ Relatives 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Trusts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total (B)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Public Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

C. Shares held by Custodian 
for GDRs & ADRs

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Grand Total (A+B+C) 0 192,11,61,357 192,11,61,357 100 0 198,00,71,519 198,00,71,519 100 0

ii. Shareholding of Promoters
Sl. No. Shareholder’s 

Name
Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % change in 

share

holding during 
the year

No. of Shares % of total Shares 
of the company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares

No. of Shares % of total Shares 
of the company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares

1 *M/s. Angelica 
investments Pte. 
Ltd

183,59,05,000 95.56 0 189,48,15,162 95.69 0 0.13

2 M/s. Fullerton 
Financial Holding 
Pte. Ltd

8,52,56,357 4.44 0 8,52,56,357 4.31 0 (0.13)

* 6 (Six Shares) held by Individuals as nominees on behalf of M/s. Angelica investments Pte. Ltd

iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
Sl. 

No.

Particulars Shareholding at the beginning of the 

year

Cumulative Shareholding during the 

year
No. of shares % of total shares 

of the company

No. of shares % of total shares 

of the company
1. At the beginning of the year 192,11,61,357 100 192,11,61,357 100

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 

Shareholding during the year specifying the 

reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment 

/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

5,89,10,162 

(Shares allotted 

on 29 March 2017 

through rights 

issue.)

2.98 198,00,71,519 100

At the end of the year 198,00,71,519 - 198,00,71,519 100
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iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: 
 (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
 There are no Shareholders other than Promoters.

Sl. 

No.

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year

Shareholding at the end of the year

No. of shares % of total shares 

of the company

No. of shares % of total shares 

of the company
1. - - - - -
2. - - - - -
3. - - - - -

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:  
 Directors or Key Managerial Personnel do not hold any shares in the company 

Sl. 

No.

Shareholding of each Directors and each 
Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the beginning  
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during the 
year

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company 

No. of shares % of total shares 

of the company
1. - - - -

At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 

Shareholding during the year specifying the 

reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment 

/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

- - - -

At the end of the year - - - -
2. - - - -

At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 

Shareholding during the year specifying the 

reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment 

/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

- - - -

At the end of the year - - - -
3. - - - -

At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 

Shareholding during the year specifying the 

reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment 

/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

- - - -

At the end of the year - - - -

V.  INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment (in H)

Secured Loans exclud-
ing deposits

Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the 
beginning of the 
financial year

i) Principal Amount 83,852,355,458 17,450,000,000 - 101,302,355,458

ii) Interest due but not 

paid

- - -
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Secured Loans exclud-
ing deposits

Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness

iii) Interest accrued but 

not due

1,507,499,171 274,922,044 - 1,782,421,215

Total (i+ii+iii) 85,359,854,629 6,474,922,044 - 91,834,776,673

Change in Indebtedness 

during the financial year

* Addition 30,293,000,000 12,260,000,000 - 42,553,000,000

* Reduction 23,037,591,954 11,600,000,000 - 34,637,591,954

Net Change 7,255,408,046 660,000,000 - 7,915,408,046

Indebtedness at the end 

of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 91,107,763,504 18,110,000,000 - 109,217,763,504

ii) Interest due but not 

paid

- - - -

iii) Interest accrued but 

not due

2,714,805,968 315,176,215 - 3,029,982,183

Total (i+ii+iii) 93,822,569,473 7,225,176,215 - 101,047,745,688

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (in H)
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount

Shantanu Mitra, CEO & MD 

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 

section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

66,243,439 66,243,439

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) In-

come-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 

17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option 50,042,100 50,042,100

3 Sweat Equity

4 Commission 

- as % of profit 

- others, specify…

5 Others, please specify-  

(i) Co’s Contribution to PF

(ii) Incentive Accrued 

(iii) Superannuation  

920,100 920,100

Total (A) 117,205,639 117,205,639
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B. Remuneration to other directors
1. Independent Directors

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount

Dr. Milan 
Robert 
Shuster

Mr. Premod 
Paul Thomas

Ms. Sudha 
Pillai

Ms. Renu 
Challu

Fee for attending Board Commit-

tee Meetings

7,75,000 5,75,000 7,25,000 8,25,000 29,00,000

Commission 10,00,000 10,00,000 10,00,000 10,00,000 40,00,000

Others, please specify - - - - -

Total (B)(1) 17,75,000 15,75,000 17,25,000 18,25,000 69,00,000

2. Other Non-Executive Directors

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount

Gan Chee Yen Kenneth Ho Rajeev Kakar

Fee for attending Board/ Committee 

Meetings

- - - -

Commission - - - -

Others, please specify - - - -

Total (B)(2) - - - -

Total (B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2) - - - -

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel*

Mr. Pankaj Malik, CFO & CS Total

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 

Income-tax Act, 1961

11,769,972 11,769,972

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax 

Act, 1961

2 Stock Option 2,006,784 2,006,784

3 Sweat Equity

4 Commission

- as % of profit

- others, specify.

5 Others, please specify 

Co’s Contribution to PF 265,536 265,536

Total 14,042,292 14,042,292

*Mr. Shantanu Mitra is both CEO and Managing Director of the Company. His remuneration details are given in VI (A) above. 
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the Com-
panies Act

Brief Description Details of Penalty 
/ Punishment/ 
Compounding fees 
imposed

Authority [RD / 
NCLT/ COURT]

Appeal made, if any 
(give Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty  NIL

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty  NIL

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty  NIL

Punishment

Compounding
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Management
Discussion 
and Analysis

Global economic overview
Global economic growth showed signs of consolidation in FY2017 following a sluggishness in global 

trade, subdued investments and political uncertainties in advanced economies. World Bank estimates 

global growth to rise from 2.3% in 2016 to 2.7% in 2017. Growth in emerging markets and developing 

economies is expected to revive in 2017 on the back of sustained demand from commodity importers.  

However, weak investment and productivity growth are weighing on medium term prospects across 

many developing economies. Although fiscal stimulus in major economies, if implemented, could 

provide upside momentum, downside risks to global growth remain on account of increasing policy 

uncertainties in major economies and financial market disruptions. (Source: World Bank, Euromonitor).

Indian economic review
Although India’s GDP growth moderated in FY2017, the country continues to be a ‘bright spot’ in the 

world economy, with strong GDP growth. The economy estimated to have grown 7.1% in FY17 (8% in 

FY16) as the country adjusted to demonetization impacts. While investments declined in the private 

sector, the economy was buoyed by Government consumption, as the 7th Pay Commission salary 

recommendations were implemented, modest pick-up in agricultural growth on the back of improved 

monsoons and also on account of recovery in exports as demand in advanced countries began to 

accelerate. 

The services sector is expected to grow at 8.8% in FY2017, according to the Central Statistics Office 

(CSO). The service sector is the key driver of India’s economic growth. Out of overall services sector, the 

sub-sector comprising financial services, real estate and professional services contributed US$ 305.8 

billion or 20.5% to the GDP. 

Outlook 
The economic activity is projected to pick up pace in 2017 and 2018. India’s fundamentals are 

expected to emerge stronger following the implementation of the GST. The proposed GST 

implementation should catalyse inter-state trade, enhance investments, reduce supply chain-related 

gaps, enhance economies-of-scale, moderate overheads and add to the GDP growth. Moreover, 

favourable monsoons, stable oil prices and stronger supply chain linkages are expected to renew 

consumer confidence. In view of these realities (and the fact that the Chinese economy continues 

to remain sluggish), India is likely to retain its position as the fastest-growing major economy with a 

projected GDP growth of 7.2% in FY2018. (Source: IMF, ICRA).

An unified indirect tax regime, Goods and Services Tax, is expected to launch on 1 July, 2017. This 

is a transformational reform, with far-reaching reforms, and long term benefit. There is likely to be 

a short term period of adjustment, but we believe these impacts will be temporary and of limited 

consequence in the overall economic cycle.

Indian financial services 
The services sector accounts for 56.9% of the GDP, wherein the financial services segment has been a 

major contributor growing at a rate of ~8.5% per year. India has a diversified financial sector exhibiting 

strong growth from the existing financial services firms as well as addition of new entities entering the 
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market. The sector comprises commercial banks, insurance 

companies, non-banking financial companies, co-operatives, 

pension funds, mutual funds and other smaller financial 

entities. New entities such as payments banks and small 

finance banks are now entering the sector. The financial 

sector in India is dominated by banking, with commercial 

banks accounting for more than 64% of the total assets held 

by the financial system. The Government and Reserve Bank 

of India (RBI) have introduced several measures to liberalise, 

regulate and enhance this sector.  These measures include 

launching Credit Guarantee Fund Scheme for Micro and Small 

Enterprises, issuing guideline to banks regarding collateral 

requirements and setting up a Micro Units Development and 

Refinance Agency (MUDRA). NBFCs are vital intermediaries 

and have driven the last mile transmission of credit to sectors 

that have not had meaningful access to formal banking 

credit. Over the last few decades, they have developed and 

supported important infrastructural requirements driving 

economic growth – especially in the areas of transportation 

(commercial vehicle and auto finance), rural industry (tractors, 

small equipment, and small sector finance), medium and small 

scale industry, consumption financing and home finance. 

NBFCs finance more than 80% of equipment leasing and hire 

purchase activities in India. (Source: IBEF)

Indian retail credit scenario
Banks today contribute to 56% of retail credit in the industry. 

Given challenges in corporate lending, and the opportunity 

provided by a growing consumption class, banks have 

increased their focus on retail lending. NBFCs continue to be 

meaningful contributors to last mile connectivity, inclusive 

lending and affordable housing, and are proving to be more 

resilient in digitizing their ecosystems. 

Housing finance companies are likely to increasingly focus on 

affordable housing (small ticket) for growth, as they are facing 

increasing competition from banks in large ticket housing 

segment - ticket size above H5 million, about 20% of housing 

portfolio of large HFCs could be higher than H5 million.

NBFCs GROWTH 
OVERTAKES BANKS
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Indian MSME sector 
The MSME sector in India continues to demonstrate resilience in 

the face of testing global and domestic economic circumstanc-

es. The sector has sustained an annual growth rate of over 10% 

for the past few years. With its agility and dynamism, the sector 

has shown innovativeness and adaptability to survive economic 

shocks. The significance of MSMEs is attributable to their caliber for 

employment generation, low capital and technology requirement, 

promotion of industrial development in rural areas, use of tradition-

al or inherited skill, use of local resources, mobilisation of resources 

and exportability of products.

2017 is expected to be a year of progressive changes in the Indian 

SME sector. Several policy interventions along with technology 

and innovation will continue to play a pivotal role in creating a 

business-friendly atmosphere for the SMEs. The flow-through of 

demonetisation and digitalization, and a migration to a GST regime 

are likely to create disruptive opportunities to this sector. (Source: 

msme.gov.in, The Economic Times, EY)

Loan profile in India
Loan against property
Asset quality appears to have deteriorated in the market, driven 

by a combination of stagnant property prices especially in metros 

and large cities, slowdown in project execution and a squeeze on 

refinancing. Loans against property remain a vital source of liquidity 

to the MSME sector, and while we expect a moderation to the 

aggressive asset growth observed in the last few years, to about 

22%, this remains a lucrative business. Strong customer selection, 

end-use focused lending and collateral selection will increasingly 

differentiate portfolio quality in the market.

Commercial vehicle loans
Total CV sales were 65,569 units, up 11.9 %, against the sale of 

58,596 units in the corresponding month last year. This was despite 

the industrial production in India indicating a decline of 1.9 % over 

October 2015. The pick-up in commercial vehicle sale in FY2015 

and 1HFY2016 was driven by replacement of older vehicles than to 

the addition in the overall capacity. However, sales decline of 2% in 

9MFY2017 reflects the sluggishness in the overall economy, which 

is well reflected in Index of Industrial Production numbers. Trans-

portation business will increasingly transform as the flow-through 

of GST will influence transportation efficiency, and warehousing 

and distribution dynamics.

Opportunities 
Rural demand: India’s 6.5 lakh villages are inhabited by about 85 

crore consumers making up for about 70% of the country’s popu-

lation and contributing around half of the nation’s GDP. Consump-

tion patterns in these areas are gradually changing to increasingly 

resemble the consumption patterns of urban areas. With various 

government initiatives, rural income is expected to get a boost in 

the coming years. A report by McKinsey forecasts the annual real 

income per household in rural India to rise to 3.6% in 2025, from 

2.8% in the last 20 years. (Source: IBEF)

Rising proportion of the working age population: India, with 

132 crore people, is the second-most populous country in the 

world. More than 50% of India’s current population is below the 

age of 25 years and over 65% below the age of 35. The median age 

of the country is 27 years, making it one of the youngest nations in 

the world with a larger working population base. According to a UN 

study, India is expected to have the largest employable population 

in the world by 2050.

Urbanisation: India has the highest urban population rate change 

among the BRIC nations. In 2001, only 28% of the population lived 

in the urban areas of the country while it is expected that 40% of 

the population of India will be living in urban areas by 2030. This 

migration will throw up opportunities for large scale housing and 

infrastructure development in the coming years.

Rising consumer class: Growth in India’s middle class and the 

emerging middle class segment is expected to drive consumption 

demand and commercial finance in the country. The largest house-

hold group by income category by 2020 will be the emerging 

middle class group with an annual income range of between H1.5 

lakh to H5 lakh per annum.

Threats
One of the potential threats is the growing competition amongst 

the financial services entities. The recent measures of currency 

demonetisation has had its short term effects on dampening of 

collections, an increase in non-performing assets in the rural sector 

and has slowed down business in the urban markets. 

Apart from this, attracting and retaining the right talent continues 

to be a challenge.  

Urban Business
Fullerton India’s distribution network comprises 225 branches (Met-

ro to Tier-IV) across 22 states and three Union Territories, serving 

1.7 lakh customers A strong tier II – tier IV presence has enabled 

your company build a diversified portfolio of secured and unse-

cured loans, supporting their consumption and income generation 

requirements. The portfolio includes personal consumption loans, 

business loans, loans against property and commercial vehicle 

loans. Analytics, technology enablement, strong service focus and 

cross-sell as a differentiator are key components of our presence in 

this segment.

Personal loans
With a wide spread distribution network, Fullerton India services 

the personal and business needs of customers across different 

segments, income streams and geographies. Your company saw 

its personal loan portfolio grow by 8% growth last year, with a 

continuing strong credit quality. Analytics and technology-enabled 
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delivery continue to drive this business. 

During the year, Fullerton India expanded its digital footprint 

and created robust platforms for its customers. Multi-channel 

availability of lending solutions, seamless on-boarding, digit-

ised sourcing, inhouse customer service platforms supported 

by technology and robotic process automation (RPA) have 

helped build efficiencies. 

Going ahead, your Company intends to continuously leverage 

its robust delivery platform and wide product range to 

enhance cross-sell (beyond up-sell), forge strategic alliances 

and integrate payment mechanisms. 

Loans against property (LAP)
During the year under review, your company consolidated its 

LAP business, with a strong focus on select markets, end-use 

and collateral quality. LAP continues to be a strategic product 

offer and will continue to grow this business in a calibrated 

manner, alongside a more comprehensive suite of solutions to 

your Company’s MSME customers.

Commercial vehicles
The commercial vehicle (CV) business witnessed a good start 

during the first half (Apr – Sep) of FY2017. It also witnessed 

a 33% growth, as compared to FY2016, but slowed tempo-

rarily in the immediate aftermath of demonetisation. During 

this period, your Company continued to operate, but under 

prudential guardrails, to ensure the portfolio continued to 

remain healthy and profitable. Structural reforms underway 

will transform this market, and , your Company is focusing on 

being ready to take advantage of the emerging opportunities.

Fullerton India Gramshakti
Fullerton India operates its rural business under the brand 

- Gramshakti. The Gramshakti business has been built with 

a wide array of product offerings, strong customer ties and ro-

bust credit quality. It offers mortgage loans, two wheeler loans, 

group loans, equipment loans, business loans and micro-en-

trepreneur loans, among others. 

Gramshakti is present in 11 states (Tamil Nadu, Andhra 

Pradesh, Maharashtra, Karnataka, Gujarat, Rajasthan, Chhattis-

garh, Madhya Pradesh, Uttar Pradesh, Uttarakhand and Hary-

ana) through 301 branches, servicing over 15 lakh customers 

and connecting more than 51,000 villages (as on 31 March, 

2017).

Your Company saw a temporary slowdown in disbursals in 

the immediate aftermath of demonetization, which pulled 

back on the robust momentum witnessing in the first half of 

the year. Maharashtra, Uttar Pradesh, parts of Madhya Pradesh 

and Karnataka were particularly impacted. Momentum has 

since reverted, and portfolios written thereafter have shown 

pre-demonetisation levels of performance. Gramshakti 

remains a formidable brand in the markets that it operates in, 

and continues to offer a broad range of solutions that it offers 

its customers. Digitalisation, and further broad-base of lending 

solutions are key agenda items for the business, in the coming 

year. Your Company believes that rural India represents a major 

opportunity, and the Government’s increase in budgetary 

allocations to rural development, infrastructure development, 

and agricultural sector will further catalyse this sector.

Digitalisation
Your Company continues to invest in technology, analytics and 

in digitalising the lending ecosystem. Far-reaching changes to 

the payments infrastructure, establishment of a GST Network 

and India Stack – Aadhaar, Digilocker etc. – provide substan-

tive platforms to a digital transformation of the Indian financial 

services sector, and your Company is well poised to leverage 

these capabilities.

This year your Company launched a self-learning Chatbot – 

‘ASHA’, aimed at simplifying loan applications.. ASHA is an 

interactive medium, on Facebook messenger, for customers to 

apply and submit documentation and receive loan approvals 

instantaneously, without the need to download any additional 

application. 

Your Company also launched “Finnovatica”, a platform that 

seeks to nurture innovative ideas from talented students from 

leading colleges of the country. 

Finnovatica provides a collaborative platform for innovative 

and bright young minds to incubate and develop innovative 

ideas, and leverage financial and mentorship support from 

your Company to convert these to meaningful and practical 

solutions. 

Some of the initiatives launched last year were refreshed and 

upgraded in FY2017. The web based e-Loans platform now has 

a mobile companion,  “InstaLoan” – which offers immediate 

access to loans, to eligible salaried individuals.

Your Company also launched a tablet based approach for 

assisted sales in smaller markets, empowering relationship 

managers to completing a loan application and approval 

process on-the-fly. 

In line with the Government’s push for the use of Aadhaar 

cards by all Indian citizens, the Company tied up with UIDAI 

allowing the organisation to conduct electronic KYC using 

specialised IRIS scanner integrated tablet devices. 
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With digital channels being rolled out for customer acquisi-

tion and engagement, the Company also realised the need 

for its operations and collections support to be digitised. The 

Company launched a mobility solution for its field collection 

staff. This mobile app leverages smart phones for receipt 

management and customer account management enabling 

transformation from manual, conventional and time consum-

ing activities to a paperless, online and automated Collections 

Management process. 

The Company in FY2017 also introduced Robotic Process 

Automation for internal process efficiency. This technology 

automates routine, standardised and repetitive processes 

performed by employees through the use of multiple data 

sources/systems and applying complex rules without human 

intervention. 

As Fullerton India enters into the new financial year, the Com-

pany looks to deliver meaningful customer centric innovations 

leveraging the Company’s advanced technology platforms. 

Risk Management
Risk Management in the BFSI sector continued to be an 

important aspect in FY2017 for both urban and rural markets. 

The primary challenges emanated from strong competition, 

stagnant real estate prices, fluctuating commodity prices and 

the industry wide turbulences arising from demonetisation 

which affected both liquidity and demand.

Fullerton India has an independent well developed risk team 

that collaborates with cross functional units to manage credit 

risk, market risks, operational risks, and legal and compliance 

risks. While the Company has a strong policy and portfolio 

management team that is responsible for overall management 

of credit risk for the respective portfolios to ensure risk reward 

optimisation; a strong underwriting vertical ensures prudent 

credit acquisitions. The Operational, InfoSec and Fraud Risk 

team ensures process efficiency and adequate mitigation/

avoidance of operational and fraud risk while the collections 

team leverages on analytical tools and advanced systems to 

manage delinquency and flows through targeted campaign 

management. The extension of benefits regarding SARFEASI 

laws to NBFCs in India is likely to have a positive impact on the 

reduction of secured portfolio delinquencies. The Company 

has a well-defined risk appetite framework that optimises 

capital and resource deployment. Furthermore, a diversified 

portfolio mix helps the Company avoid serious business im-

pacts arising from pressure on a specific product/segment.

The Company actively leverages information from the credit 

bureau to understand market dynamics and then uses key 

industry learnings to design and implement robust credit 

policies. 

Prompt measures taken against the uncertainties posed by 

demonetisation helped the Company insulate the portfolio 

from liquidity and credit risk related vulnerability. While the 

urban business remained largely unimpacted by demonetiza-

tion, the rural business faced some collections pressure due 

to unavailability of currency notes - some of the credit loss 

impacts have been reflected in the current year financials, 

where your Company took additional conservative provisions 

to fairly reflect inherent impairments deriving from collections 

slow down.  

With resumption of liquidity, the portfolio quality has since 

shown improvement and expectations are of a revert to nor-

mal by the second half of FY 2018.

Fullerton India has also made underlying structural changes in 

its rural business. Your company has progressively moved away 

from cash disbursements to electronic payments. Additionally, 

your Company is taking a series of initiatives to minimize the 

use of cash as a disbursement / repayment mechanism, lever-

aging the improvements in the payments infrastructure.

Funding / Liquidity Management 
Your Company has focused on ensuring conservative and 

diversified liquidity. Conservative liquidity management is 

measured by several metrics, including long term to short 

term ratio, liquidity buffer (in number of months), single lender 

limit, pricing and gap mismatches. This continued with an 

oversight from the Board and its relevant committees. 

Across several benchmarks, additional measures were added 

this year as well to mitigate liquidity risk.

During FY 2017, your Company concluded a maiden Rupee 

denominated bond (Masala Bond) issuance aggregating to 

H500 crore. Your Company was the first NBFC to leverage this 

funding source, and the issuance was successfully subscribed 

by off-shore investors uncorrelated with domestic lenders. The 

company also raised long tenure Subordinated Bonds eligible 

for Tier II capital aggregating to H71 crore augmenting the 

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR). Consequently the subordinated 

debt outstanding for the year was H620 crore. 

During FY2017, several insurance companies, foreign banks 

and cash rich corporates were introduced as lenders. This 

segment is traditionally seen as durable with medium-term fi-

nancing partners. Overall a total of over 40 institutional lenders 

were added, further diversifying the borrowing profile. 

About half of the Company’s borrowing is sourced from banks. 
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Despite uneven economic conditions, a healthy pipeline of 

bank funding was maintained at all times, adding to the qual-

ity of the funding profile. To maintain the cost reduction and 

efficiency of the Company, over half the incremental borrow-

ing for FY2017 came from the capital markets indicating an 

increasingly strong endorsement of the Company’s fundamen-

tals. Several funding cost reduction initiatives were taken this 

year resulting in an overall decrease of about 70 basis points 

in borrowing cost. These included retiring of high cost debt by 

prepayment and spread reduction through negotiation with 

lenders. 

The company maintained adequate liquidity buffers in liquid 

assets to remain funded for lending and repayments. In times 

of anticipated volatility that was observed this year, these buff-

ers were dynamically increased to reduce funding risks. During 

the year under review, the liquidity maintained was well in 

excess of the regulatory requirements. The liability tenure 

currently stands at 38 months – matching the asset profile.

Capital Adequacy and Resources 
The Company received an additional equity capital (including 

share premium) of H200 crore from its parent group to support 

its growth plan.

The Company proactively manages its capital keeping in mind 

the interests of its shareholders, regulators, lenders, rating 

agencies and other stakeholders. The Company also takes into 

account extraneous factors that could adversely affect earn-

ings and capital. The RBI mandates a minimum total capital to 

risk-weighted assets ratio of 15% and a minimum Tier-1 ratio 

of 10%. The Company continues to report benchmarks well 

above stipulation.

Internal controls
Fullerton India has instituted adequate internal control 

systems commensurate with the nature of its business and 

size of operations. These systems ascertain that transactions 

are authorised, recorded and reported correctly. The company 

ensures adherence with all internal control policies and pro-

cedures as well as compliance with all regulatory guidelines 

in respect of business, risk, branches and support functions. 

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors reviews the 

adequacy of these systems. All significant audit observations of 

the Internal Auditors and follow-up actions were duly reported 

upon and discussed at the Audit Committee.

During the year under review, the Management initiated an 

enhanced “Internal Control Framework” which was designed 

and implemented by the Independent Risk Advisory Con-

sultant. The Operational Risk Unit evaluated the design and 

operating effectiveness of the framework and the same was 

in accordance with the requirements of the Internal Financials 

Controls requirement of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Human resource management
Fullerton India has resolutely continued with its HR Philosophy 

– Hire Selectively, Train Comprehensively, Engage Effectively 

and Reward Meritocratically in its journey to be the Best Em-

ployer. The Company received the Golden Peacock award for 

HR Excellence and was also featured amongst top companies 

in the Dream Companies to Work for awarded by Times Ascent.

In FY2017 the Company created capabilities for its future along 

several revenue streams; The Company expanded its home 

finance business and brought in-house Customer Service 

teams. These measures necessitated the inclusion of fresh 

talent; the Company added over 1,500 employees across a 

diverse workforce. Fullerton India continues to partner its 

employees in their success and have successfully groomed in-

ternal talent to comprise of 75% of its supervisory and Country 

leadership roles.

Fullerton India is an established recruiter at premier institutes, 

including IITs, ISB and IRMA. The Company successfully started 

recruitments at the IIMs this year. 

During the year, the Company invested over 35,000 per-

son-days of training - an increase of 13% over the previous 

year. In addition to the existing Management Development 

programmes, the Back2School program with Ivy League busi-

ness schools, including Harvard Business School was launched 

with an objective to develop senior talent.

The Fullerton India Engagement Committee comprising senior 

cross-functional leaders focused on various staff engagement 

activities through the following pillars – Communication, CSR, 

Fun@Work, Recognition and Wellness. All employees had an 

opportunity to participate in over 70 engagement pro-

grammes conducted during the year. 

Under the Fullerton India Recognition of Excellence (FIRE) pro-

gramme, over 1,600 employees were recognised. Employees 

who exhibited exceptional corporate excellence were includ-

ed in the ‘CEO’s Elite List’ and felicitated. The Company this year 

presented 57 awards to employees who have completed over 

10 years of service. 

The Company continues to leverage off new technologies in 

its HR service delivery. “LetzTalk”, a unique digital communica-

tion forum was launched in FY2017, where employees across 

states could chat with the Leadership Team on topics of their 

choice. The Company’s Social HR system functionality enables 

timely, continued & consistent communication among 

employees across geographies. These forums have enabled 
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assessment of employee involvement and feedback on a real 

time basis. 

Fullerton India continues to promote meritocracy, integrity 

and governance in matters of legality and compliance. The 

Company has rolled out policies to encourage employees to 

raise complaints without the fear of retribution or discrimina-

tion. The Company’s Code of Conduct comprises of relevant 

statutes pertaining to prevention of sexual harassment and a 

whistleblower policy to escalate and redress issues with speed.

Standalone financials as per Indian GAAP
Analysis of the Financial Statements 
The Company continued its growth momentum during 

FY2017, building upon initiatives taken over the past few years 

until November 2016. The announcement of demonetization 

of high value currency notes on 8 November, 2016 impacted 

momentum briefly in the urban business, which resumed 

shortly thereafter. Rural momentum was impacted longer, as 

customers dealt with the temporary disruption deriving from 

this initiative. While most of the rural markets now appear to 

have returned to near normalcy, there remain pockets where 

conditions have still some distance to travel. FICC’s profit after 

tax decreased 46.1%, to H21,429 lakhs in FY2017 from H39,758 

lakhs in FY2016.

Operating Results Information 

Particulars FY2016 FY2017 % change

Interest Income 2,03,785 2,36,285 15.9

Interest Expense 95,076 1,03,437 8.8 

Net interest income  1,08,710  1,32,848 22.2

Non-interest income

- Fee income 12,048 13,749 14.1 

- Assignment Income 1,161 3,156 171.9

- Profit on Sale of Investment 3,798 3,060 (19.4)

- Other income1 6,901 8,008 16.0

Operating income 1,32,618 1,60,820 21.3

Operating expenses 69,088 77,083 11.6

Operating profit 63,530 83,738 31.8

Provisions and write-offs (net of write-backs and 
recoveries)

20,516 50,617 146.7

Profit before tax 43,014 33,121 (23.0) 

Tax, including deferred tax  3,256  11,692 259.1

Profit after tax 39,758 21,429 (46.1)

H in lakh, except percentages

Note:
1. Includes Commission on Life Insurance / General Insurance / Sale of Third Party Products and Ancillary Income from operations 
e.g. foreclosure, bounce, penal etc.
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Net interest income and spread analysis
The following table sets forth the net interest income and spread analysis.

Particulars FY2016 FY2017 % change

Interest income 2,03,785 2,36,285 15.9

Interest expense 95,076 103,437 8.8

Net Interest income 1,08,710 132,848 22.2

Average interest-earning assets1 11,28,512 13,02,059 15.4

Net interest margin2 9.6% 10.2% 0.6

H in lakh, except percentages

Note:
1. Average daily balances of interest-earning assets includes loans (net of write-offs) and interest bearing investments

2. Net interest margin equals net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets.

Net interest income for the FY2017 was H1,32,848 lakh (H1,08,710 lakh in FY2016) on the back of a 15.4% increase in average 
interest-earning assets. 

The yield on interest-earning assets has remained steady at 18.15% in FY2017 (18.06% in FY2016). Average cost of funds have 
reduced to 9.6% in FY2017 from 10.2% in FY2016, resulting in an increase in interest margin by 67 bps.

The following table sets forth the trend in average interest-earning assets and average interest-bearing liabilities. 

Particulars FY2016 FY2017 % change

Advances 9,58,484 11,33,423 18.3

Interest earning investments 1,12,617 96,668 -14.2

Other interest earning assets 57,411 71,968 25.4

Total interest earning assets 11,28,512 13,02,059 15.4

H in lakh, except percentages

Note:
Average balances are the daily averages of balances.

Average advances increased 18.3%, from H9,58,484 lakh in FY2016 to H11,33,423 lakh in FY2017. Growth was contributed by retail 

secured businesses and rural loans. Increase in average interest earning investments, to support enhanced liquidity measures and 

growth in advances.

Non-interest income
The following tables set forth the principal components of non-interest income.

Particulars FY2016 FY2017 % change

Fee income1 12,048 13,749 14.1

Assignment Income 1,161 3,156 171.9

Profit on Sale of Investment 3,798 3,060 -19.4

Other income2 6,901 8,008 16.0

Total Non-Interest Income 23,908 27,973 17.0

H in lakh, except percentages

Notes:
1. Fee Income includes Processing Fees, Document Fees and Stamping Fees.

2. Other Income includes Commission on Life Insurance / General Insurance / IHO / Sale of Third Party Products and other ancillary 
income from operations.
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Increase in Fee income by 14.1% represents increase in average earning assets by 15.4% and recognizing upfront income of H187 lakh, 

on account of Assignment/Securitization during FY2017. 

Profit on Sale of Investment (Investment income) was lower due to rising yields.

Assignment income increased from H1,161 lakh in FY2016 to H3,156 lakh in FY2017, in line with new assignment deals done during 

FY2017 (more explained in the Funding and Liquidity management section).

Non-interest expense
The following table sets forth the principal components of non-interest expense.

Particulars FY2016 FY2017 % change

Employee benefit expense 35,942 43,613 21.3 

Depreciation 2,434 2,778 14.1

Other administrative expenses 30,712 30,691 -0.1

Total non-interest expense 69,088 77,083 11.6

Provisions and write-offs 20,516 50,617 146.7

H in lakh, except percentages

Employee expenses for FY2017 increased 21.3% over FY2016 due to an increase in employees from 8,738 to 10,017. Employee costs ac-

counted for 56.6% of total non-interest expense for FY2017 which is higher than the same in previous year (52%). Other administrative 

expenses have remained flat at H30,691 lakh in 2017 (H30,712 lakh in FY2016).

Provisions and write-off consisting of bad debt write off (net of recoveries), specific provisions for non-performing assets, provisions 

for standard assets and provision for diminishing investment value, increased from H20,516 lakh for FY2016 to H50,617 lakh for FY2017. 

Write offs during the year increased by H17,273 lakhs, majority of these write offs happened as an after effect of demonetisation.

During the year, RBI had provided a dispensation on prudential norms in the form of short-term deferment of classification of loan ac-

counts as sub-standard. Accordingly, the Company has availed the said dispensation for certain categories of its loan products whereby 

loan accounts aggregating H17,602 lakhs continue to be classified as standard assets as at 31 March, 2017. 

However, the Company has performed a qualitative assessment of its loan portfolio and accordingly, revised its estimates of provision-

ing for standard assets, whereby creating a provision of H16,327 lakhs. The said amount is included standard asset provision.

Financial condition
Assets
The following table sets forth the principal components of assets.

Assets 31 March, 2016 31 March, 2017 % change

Cash and Bank Balances 80,862 53,327 -34.1

Investments 95,501 202,525 112.1

- Certificate of Deposits / NCD’s 69,075 116,977 69.3

- Equity / Preference investment 6,005 36,105 501.2

- Other investments 20,422 49,443 142.1

Advances 11,03,736 1,127,869 2.2

Fixed assets (including leased assets) 5,377 7,355 36.8

Other assets 59,158 76,359 29.1

Total assets 13,44,634 1,467,346 9.1

H in lakh, except percentages
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Total assets increased 9.1% from H13,44,634 lakh at 31 March, 2016 to H14,67,346 lakh at 31 March, 2017, primarily due to an in-

crease in Investments. Investments have increased 112.1% from H95,501 lakh at 31 March, 2016 to H202,525 lakh at 31 March, 2017.

Total Advances have grown 2.2 % from H11,03,736 lakh in March 2016 to H11,27,869 lakh in March 2017.

Asset quality and composition
The following table sets forth, at the dates indicated, the composition of outstanding portfolio.

Particulars

31 March, 2016 31 March, 2017

Total Retail 
Advances

% of Total Retail 
Advances

Total Retail 
Advances

% of Total Retail 
Advances

Personal Loans1 573,193 51.9 591,980 52.5 

Loan Against Property 438,500 39.7 434,701 38.5 

Two Wheeler 17,425 1.6 15,527 1.4 

Commercial Vehicle 70,265 6.4 81,256 7.2 

Others 4,353 0.4 4,404 0.4 

Total portfolio 1,103,736 100.0 1,127,868 100.0

H in lakh, except percentages

Notes:
1. Personal Loans includes Group Loans

Classification of loans
The Company classifies assets as performing and non-performing more conservatively than RBI guidelines for NBFCs. An asset is 

classified as non-performing if any amount of interest or principal remains overdue for 90 days and above.

Once an account becomes non-performing due to delinquency, the Company treats it as non-performing until the status for all 

loans of the customer comes to 0 days past due. For the accounts tagged as non-performing due to settlement/ restructuring, 

than that account will continue to be treated as non-performing irrespective of the delinquency status till the closure of loan / 

recognition of loss.

The following table sets forth, at the dates indicated, information regarding the asset classification of gross non-performing assets.

H in lakh

Particulars 31 March, 2016 31 March, 2017

Non-performing assets

Sub-standard assets 20,381           33,920

Doubtful assets              1,111            3,795

Total non-performing assets           21,492 37,715

The following table sets forth information regarding non-performing assets (NPAs).

H in lakh, except percentages

Year Ended Gross NPA Net NPA Total customers 
outstanding

% of net NPA to 
total Customer 

outstanding

31 March, 2016 21,492 14,086 1,103,736 1.28%

31 March, 2017 37,715 25,583 1,127,868 2.29%
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The ratio of net NPAs to total customer outstanding have increased from 1.28% at 31 March, 2016 to 2.29% as at 31 March, 2017. During 

FY2017, the Company wrote-off NPAs with an aggregate outstanding of H41,369 lakh compared to H24,210 lakh during FY2016.

FICCL’s provision coverage ratio (i.e. total provisions made against NPAs and prudential write-offs as a percentage of gross NPAs and 

prudential write-offs) at 31 March, 2017 is 71.9%. At 31 March, 2017, total general provision held against standard assets was H23,864 lakh 

compared with H8,460 lakh at 31 March, 2016. This includes provision of H16,327 lakhs created after qualitative assessment of loan portfolio. 

Liabilities
The following table sets forth the principal components of liabilities (including capital and reserves).

H in lakh, except percentages

Liabilities At 31 March, 2016 At 31 March, 2017 % change

Equity Share Capital 1,92,116 198,007 3.1

Reserves 19,377 52,395 170.4

Borrowings (excluding subordinated debt) 9,55,213 1,028,413 7.7

- Bank Loans 5,49,036 453,810 -17.3

- Non-Convertible Debentures 2,96,990 467,230 57.3

- Commercial Paper 1,09,187 107,372 -1.7

Subordinated debt (included in Tier-2 capital) 62,000 69,100 11.5

- Non-Convertible Debentures 62,000 69,100 11.5

Other liabilities 1,15,928 119,431 3.0

Total liabilities  13,44,634 1,467,346 9.1

Total liabilities (including capital and reserves) increased 9.1% from H13,44,634 lakh at 31 March, 2016 to H14,67,346 lakh at 31 March, 2017 

following additional capital infusion and increase in borrowings. 

Key ratios 
The following table sets forth key financial ratios:

Particulars FY2016 FY2017

Capital Adequacy – Total (%) 21.9 22.5

Return on average equity (%)1 22.0 9.4

Return on average assets (%)2 3.4 1.5

Earnings per share 2.1 1.1

Book value per share 10.3 12.1

Cost to income (%)3 52.1 47.9

Notes

1. Return on average equity is the ratio of the net profit after tax to the averages of monthly balances of equity share capital and reserves.

2. Return on average assets is the ratio of net profit after tax to average monthly balances of total assets. 

3. Cost represents operating expense. Income represents net interest income plus non-interest income.

The total capital adequacy ratio, computed in accordance with RBI guidelines, improved by 0.6% and was at a 22.5% as at 31 March, 2017, 

with a Tier-1 capital adequacy ratio of 16.3% compared to a total capital adequacy ratio of 21.9% and Tier-1 capital adequacy ratio of 16.1% 

as at 31 March, 2016. Additional equity infusion by parent company during the year amounted to H20,000 lakh

Return on average equity (ROE) decreased to 9.4% as compared to 22.0% previous year, indicating a contraction of 1,260 basis points, 

majorly due to increase in tax and provisions on loans. 
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Report on
Corporate Governance

I. Corporate Governance Philosophy and Practice
Fullerton India Credit Company Ltd (FICCL) believes that Corporate Governance encompasses a set 

of systems and practices to ensure that the Company’s affairs are being managed in a manner which 

ensures accountability, transparency and fairness in all transactions. It also understands and respects 

its fiduciary role and responsibility towards its shareholders, customers, employees and bankers and 

strives hard to meet their expectations.

The Company has infused the philosophy of corporate governance into all its activities. The Board of 

Directors of the Company provides strategic supervision and the Company’s leadership team performs 

strategic management activities. In addition to compliance with regulatory requirements, FICCL 

endeavors to ensure highest standards of ethical and responsible conduct.

The Company continually focuses on upgrading its governance practices and systems to effectively 

meet the new challenges faced by the Company. It is also committed to achieve and maintain the 

highest standards of corporate governance by timely and accurate disclosure of information regarding 

the performance of the Company. 

The constitution of the Board and its committees are in compliance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the RBI regulations. Although all the corporate governance guidelines as 

prescribed by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter 

“LODR, 2015”) are not applicable to FICCL, as its equity shares are not listed on any stock exchange, the 

Company voluntarily follows the spirit of the entire regulations to the extent possible.

II. Board of Directors 
The Corporate Governance principles of the Company ensure that the Board remains informed, 

independent and provides guidance to the Company. Further the Board is fully aware of its fiduciary 

responsibilities and recognizes its responsibilities to stakeholders to uphold the highest standards in all 

matters concerning FICCL.

All the Directors of the Company are well qualified persons of proven competence and possess the 

highest level of personal and professional ethics, integrity and values. The Directors exercise their 

objective judgment independently. The Board is committed towards representing the long term 

interests of its stakeholders. The Board members actively participate in all strategic issues which are 

crucial for the long term development of the organization.

As on date, the Board comprises seven Directors, with one Executive Director (Managing Director), four 

Independent Directors and two Non-Executive Directors. The Chairman of the Board is a Non-Executive 

Director. 

ANNEXURE II TO THE 
DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Director seeking reappointment
A. Mr. Gan Chee Yen
Mr. Gan Chee Yen will be retiring at the forthcoming AGM. 

He being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment. The 

profile of Mr. Gan Chee Yen is as under: 

Mr. Gan has been the Chairman of the Company since 

November 2011. He is a board member of Fullerton Financial 

Holdings Pte Ltd, Singapore (FFH) and a board commissioner 

of Bank Danamon since 2003. He is also the CEO of FFH. Prior 

to his current appointment, he was the Co-Chief Investment 

Officer and Senior Managing Director at Temasek International. 

He joined Temasek in 2003, first as CFO and subsequently in 

various senior management roles. He has served on several 

boards and currently sits on the Board of several Temasek 

portfolio companies such as Clifford Capital Pte Ltd, Surbana 

Jurong Private Limited, ACR Capital Holdings, CEI Limited and 

ST Asset Management. He is a member of the Institute of 

None of the Independent and Non-Executive Directors have 

any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the 

Company. 

Four Board meetings were held during the year on;
i. 19 May, 2016 

ii. 8 September, 2016 

iii. 2 December, 2016 and

iv. 14 March, 2017

The time gap between any two meetings was less than 120 

days and at least one meeting was held every quarter.

As a matter of good governance the dates of the Board 

meetings are fixed in advance for the full calendar year to 

enable maximum attendance and participation from all the 

Directors. The relevant background materials of the agenda 

items are distributed well in advance of the meetings. All 

material information is presented for meaningful deliberations 

at the meeting. The Board on a continuous basis reviews the 

actions and decisions taken by it and by the Committees 

constituted by it. 

The Board members meet the senior management personnel 

from time to time.

The names of the Directors, attendance at Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting during the year, the number of other 

Directorships and Committee Memberships held by them as on 31 March, 2017 are as follows: 

Name of the Director
Category of 
Directorship 
(i)

Board 
meetings 
attended out 
of 4 held 

Attendance at 
the last AGM 

held on 14 
July, 2016

Number of  
other Directorships 

Number of 
Committee 
memberships
(iv)

in other Indian 
public limited 
companies (ii)

in other 
Companies 
(iii)

Mr. Gan Chee Yen, Chairman NED 4/4 No Nil 13 Nil

Mr. Rajeev Kakar* NED 3/4 No 1 1 1

Mr. Kenneth ho NED 4/4 No 1 Nil Nil

Mr. Shantanu Mitra  CEO & MD 4/4 Yes 1 2 1

Dr. Milan Robert Shuster ID 4/4 No 1 Nil 1

Ms. Sudha Pillai ID 4/4 No 6 Nil 3

Ms. Renu Challu ID 4/4 No 7 1 9

Mr. Premod Thomas ID 4/4 No Nil 3 Nil

Notes:  *”Others” excludes the Company itself

MD – Managing Director

ED – Executive Director 

NED – Non Executive Director 

ID – Independent Director

ii.    Comprises public limited companies incorporated in India.

iii.  Comprises private limited companies incorporated in India, foreign companies and Section 8 companies.

iv.  Only membership/chairmanship of the Audit Committee and Shareholders’/Stakeholders Relationship Committee held in other public limited 
companies have been considered. 

v. None of the Directors of the Company hold Directorship in more than 10 Public Companies or is a member in more than 10 Committees or acts 
as Chairman of more than 5 Committees across all companies in which he or she is a Director.

*Resigned with effect from 11 April, 2017
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Singapore Chartered Accountants. He received his Bachelor 

of Accountancy from the National University of Singapore. 

He has also attended the Harvard’s Program for Management 

Development in September 2001.

B. Dr. Milan Shuster
The tenure of Dr. Milan Shuster is scheduled to expire on  

30 September, 2017. It is proposed to re-appoint Dr. Shuster for 

the period from 01 October, 2017 till 30 September, 2020. The 

profile Dr. Milan Shuster is as under:

Dr. Shuster, is a professional with several decades of experience 

in the banking sector. He has served in various capacities at 

Asian Development Bank, ING Bank, National Bank of Canada 

and Nippon Credit Bank. After working as the President and 

CEO of P.T. Bank PDFCI, Indonesia, he held several stints at 

Bank Danamon Indonesia. He became its president and CEO 

and later its Independent Commissioner. He holds PhD in 

international Law and Economics from Oxford University, 

Master of Law from London School of Economics, Bachelor 

of Law from University of Western Ontario and Bachelor of 

Business Administration from Ivey Business School   .

C. Ms. Renu Challu
The tenure of Ms. Renu Challu is scheduled to expire on  

30 September, 2017. It is proposed to re-appoint Ms. Challu for 

the period from 01 October, 2017 till 30 September, 2020. The 

profile Ms. Renu Challu is as under:

Ms. Renu Challu, is a seasoned banker with decades of 

experience in Banking. She was associated with the State Bank 

of India (SBI) for more than 38 years serving in the variety of 

positions. Some of the positions held at SBI includes President 

& COO at SBI Capital Markets, MD & CEO as SBI DFHI , MD of 

State Bank of Hyderabad  and Deputy MD, Corporate strategy 

and New Business Development at SBI. She is on the Board of 

many other companies and she is partner in 5th Bridge Data 

Technologies LLP. She is MA in Economics (Gold Medalist) from 

University of Lucknow.

D. Ms. Sudha Pillai 
The tenure of Ms. Sudha Pillai is scheduled to expire on  

30 September, 2017. It is proposed to re-appoint Ms. Pillai for 

the period from 01 October, 2017 till 30 September 2020. The 

profile Ms. Sudha Pillai is as under:

Ms. Pillai, is a 1972 batch IAS officer who held numbers of 

senior positions in the Government of India and the State 

Government of Kerala for 40 years. She handled the Industry 

and Finance portfolios for nearly twenty years. In Government 

of India, she worked in the Ministries of Industry, Corporate 

Affairs, Labour and Employment. She contributed notably 

to 1991 reforms in Industrial and Foreign Direct Investment 

Policies, as also in bringing amendments to corporate laws 

and in formulation of the National Skill Development Policy. 

In Kerala, as Principal Secretary Finance, she worked to 

achieve enhanced development outcomes, coupled with 

efficient fiscal management. Earlier, as CMD, Kerala Finance 

Corporation, she had dealt with the project financing to SMEs. 

Her last assignment was as Member Secretary (in the rank of 

Minister of State) Planning Commission, Government of India. 

She is currently on the Boards of many other companies. She 

holds a masters’ degree in Public Administration from Kennedy 

School of Government, Harvard University.

E. Mr. Shantanu Mitra
The tenure of Mr. Shantanu Mitra, Managing Director of 

the Company is scheduled to expire on 24 August, 2017. 

It is proposed to reappoint him further for the period from 

25 August, 2017 to 31 December, 2017. The profile of Mr. 

Shantanu Mitra is as under:

Mr. Mitra joined Fullerton Financial Holdings, Singapore, (the 

Company’s parent entity) in 2010 as Head of Consumer Risk 

Management for consumer markets across all operational 

entities in various countries including India. Mr. Mitra has 

over three decades of experience in financial services, with 

about 20 years at Standard Chartered and Citibank where he 

had stints in Singapore, Thailand and India. He completed his 

articleship with Arthur Young & Co, Chartered Accountants, UK 

and is a qualified Chartered Accountant from the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants, England and Wales.

III. Board Committees
(a) Audit Committee

Terms of Reference 
The powers and terms of reference of the Audit Committee 

are comprehensive and include the requirements as set by 

Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee 

is vested with necessary powers as defined in its charter to 

achieve its objectives. The role of the Committee in brief 

includes the following:

  To review appointment and removal, of Internal and 

external auditors

  To monitor the auditors’ independence and performance, 

and effectiveness of internal and external audit process

  To formulate the scope, functioning, periodicity and 

methodology for conducting the internal audit and to approve 

the internal audit plans  

  To review financial statements, oversee the financial 

reporting process

  Examination of the internal and external auditors’ reports 

and findings

  Reviewing the adequacy of internal control systems

  To review related Party Transactions of the company

  To conduct scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and 
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investments

  To approve valuation of undertakings or assets or net worth 

of a company or its liabilities

  To oversee the vigil mechanism for directors and employees

  To approve provision of any other services by auditors apart 

from audit 

 Composition 

The Audit Committee currently comprises of two Independent 

Directors and one Non-Executive Director. All the members 

of the Audit Committee are financially literate and persons of 

proven competence and integrity. The Company Secretary 

acts as the Secretary to the Committee. The Statutory Auditors 

and Internal Auditors are invited to the meeting to bring 

out the issues which they may have with regards to finance, 

operations, processes, systems and other allied matters.

The Audit Committee Meetings were held on the following 

dates and the necessary quorum was present at all the 

meetings: 

 i. 19 May, 2016 

 ii. 08 September, 2016 

 iii. 14 November, 2016

 iv. 02 December, 2016 and

 v. 14 March, 2017

The details of the composition of the Committee and 

attendance at its Meetings are set out in the following table:

Name of Member Number of Meetings

Dr. Milan Robert Shuster, Chairman 5/5

Mr. Rajeev Kakar 4/5

Ms. Sudha Pillai 5/5

The proceedings of the Audit Committee Meetings were 

noted by the Board of Directors at their meetings. 

(b) Risk Oversight Committee
The Company has a comprehensive, well-established and 

detailed risk management framework. The Company especially 

focuses on improving sensitivity to assessment of risks and 

improving methods of computation of risk weights, processes 

and procedures. The Company has constituted a Risk 

Oversight Committee to identify, review and control key risk 

areas, across the entire organization as per the requirements of 

RBI guidelines.

Terms of Reference 
Risk Oversight Committee is a dedicated Board-level 

committee that monitors the risk management in the 

Company. The risk assessment and mitigation procedures are 

reviewed by the Board periodically. The role of the Committee 

in brief includes the following:

 Oversee the development of risk policies and strategies

 Implement risk policies relevant to all business units

 Ensure that all activities are in compliance with the 

Prudential Regulations and also within the framework of the 

policies and controls established by the relevant units of the 

Company

 Formulate the policy for the consideration of the Board on 

client profile, products and risk return matrix on the asset side

 Studying the market with regards to interest rate risk, 

currency risk and other financial risks

 Formulating the policy on raising the resources based on the 

perceived risk parameters

 Sanction of the credit limits within ceiling prescribed by the 

Board

 Determining the terms of the sanction such as the interest 

rate, security, repayment, documents, etc. within the overall 

credit policy of the company

The Risk Oversight Committee (ROC) controls and manages 

the inherent risks relating to the Company’s activities in the 

following categories:

 Credit Risk 

 Market Risk / Liquidity Risk 

 Liquidity Risk Management

 Currency Risk

 Interest Rate Risk

 Operational Risk 

 Regulatory / Reputational Risk, etc.

Composition 
The Risk Oversight Committee currently comprises of two 

Independent Directors and one Non-Executive Director. 

Meetings
The Risk Oversight Committee meetings were held on the 

following dates and the necessary quorum was present at all 

the meetings: 

 i. 19 May, 2016

 ii. 08 September, 2016 

 iii. 02 December, 2016 and

 iv. 14 March, 2017 

The details of the composition of the Committee and 

attendance at its Meetings are set out in the following table:

Name of Member
Number of Meetings 

Attended

Mr. Gan Chee Yen, Chairman 4/4

Mr. Rajeev Kakar 3/4

Ms. Renu Challu 4/4

Mr. Premod Thomas 4/4
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The proceedings of the Risk Oversight Committee Meetings 

were noted by the Board of Directors at its meetings. The 

Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Committee.

(c) Nomination and Remuneration Committee  
The Company has a Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

(NRC) pursuant to the requirements of Section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. The Committee is vested with necessary 

powers, as per its Charter approved by the Board.

The Terms of Reference of Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee in brief are as under:

Nomination Functions:

 Review the structure, size and composition of the Board

 Formulate the criteria for evaluation for determining 

qualifications, positive attributes and independence of 

directors

 Be responsible for identifying and nominating for the 

approval of the Board, persons who are qualified to become 

directors and who are “fit and proper as director” and may 

be appointed in senior management in accordance with the 

criteria laid down

 Carry out evaluation of the directors’ performance

 Evaluate suitable candidates and approve the appointment 

of the CEO and the Company’s Leadership Team members

 Formulate plans for succession for the CEO and the 

Leadership Team members

 Re-appoint any non-executive director at the conclusion of 

his or her specified term of office

Remuneration Functions:

 Recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the 

remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and 

other employees

 Determine and recommend to the Board the remuneration 

payable to the directors

 Recommend the compensation for the CEO & MD, and each 

of the Leadership Team members

 Recommend the compensation strategy and budget 

covering all employees of the Company

 Review deployment of key Human Capital strategies and 

tools.

Composition 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee currently 

comprises of two Independent Directors and one Non-

Executive Director. 

Meetings 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings were 

held on the following dates and the necessary quorum was 

present at all the meetings:

 i. 20 May, 2016

 ii. 08 September, 2016 and

 iii. 14 March, 2017  

The Committee meets on need basis. 

The details of the composition of the Committee and 

attendance at its meetings are set out in the following table:

Name
Number of Meetings 

Attended

Dr. Milan Robert Shuster, Chairman 3/3

Mr. Gan Chee Yen 3/3 

Ms. Renu Challu 3/3 

The proceedings of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee meetings were noted by the Board of Directors at 

its meetings.

(d) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
The Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

Committee to comply with the requirements of Section 135 

of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee is vested with 

necessary powers, as laid down in its charter to achieve its 

objectives.

Terms of Reference  
The Terms of Reference of the CSR Committee in brief are as 

under:

  To recommend to the board the Company’s CSR policy

  To monitor implementation of the CSR Policy of the 

Company, to review CSR programs, reports on CSR activities, 

recommend changes or alterations if any; 

  To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred 

on different CSR activities

  To institute a transparent monitoring mechanism for 

ensuring implementation of the projects / programs / activities 

proposed to be undertaken by the company and review the 

amount spent on them

  To review synergy or alignment for various CSR activities 

along with partners

  To review and finalise the Annual CSR Report reflecting 

fairly the Company’s CSR approach, policies, systems and 

performance.

Composition 

The CSR Committee currently comprises of two independent 

directors and one Non-Executive Director.

Meetings
The CSR Committee meetings were held on the following 

dates and the necessary quorum was present at all the 

meetings:

 i. 08 September, 2016

 ii. 14 March, 2017

The Committee meets on need basis. 
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The details of the composition of the Committee and 

attendance at its Meetings are set out in the following table:

Name of Member
Number of Meetings 

Attended

Mr. Gan Chee Yen (Chairman) 2/2

Ms. Sudha Pillai 2/2

Ms. Renu Challu 2/2

The proceedings of the CSR Committee Meeting were noted 

by the Board of Directors at its meeting.

Your Company has other management committees such as 

Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) formed as per the NBFC’s 

Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998, as amended 

from time to time.

IV. Code of Conduct
The Company adopted the code of conduct approved by the 

Board of Directors which is binding on the employees of the 

Company and the same has been complied with. Code of 

conduct is signed off on an annual basis every year.

V. Directors & Officers Liability Insurance 
coverage
The Company has obtained Directors and Officers Liability 

Insurance coverage from HDFC Ergo General Insurance 

Company Ltd to the extent of H20 crores along with entity 

cover under Employees’ Practices Liability and any other legal 

action that might be initiated against the Directors.

VI. General Body Meetings
The details of the General Body Meetings held in the last three financial years are given below:

General Body Meeting Day and Date Time Venue

Extra-Ordinary General Meeting
Tuesday, 29 April, 

2014

11.30 

a.m.

Board Room, Floor 6, B wing, Supreme IT Park, Supreme 

City, Behind Lake Castle, Powai, Mumbai 400 076

Extra-Ordinary General Meeting
Tuesday, 10 June, 

2014

11.30 

a.m.

Board Room, Floor 6, B wing, Supreme IT Park, Supreme 

City, Behind Lake Castle, Powai, Mumbai 400 076

Nineteenth AGM
Wednesday, 20 

August, 2014

11.30 

a.m.

Megh Towers, Third Floor, Old No.307, New No.165, 

Poonamallee High Road, Maduravoyal, Chennai – 

600095

Extra-Ordinary General Meeting
Tuesday,  30 

December, 2014

11.30 

a.m.

Board Room, Floor 6, B wing, Supreme IT Park, Supreme 

City, Behind Lake Castle, Powai, Mumbai 400 076

Extra-Ordinary General Meeting Friday, 24 April, 2015
11.30 

a.m.

Board Room, Floor 6, B wing, Supreme IT Park, Supreme 

City, Behind Lake Castle, Powai, Mumbai 400 076

Twentieth AGM
Thursday, 16 July, 

2015

11.30 

a.m.

Megh Towers, Third Floor, Old No.307, New No.165, 

Poonamallee High Road, Maduravoyal, Chennai – 

600095

Extra-Ordinary General Meeting
Friday, 09 October, 

2015

11.30 

a.m.

Board Room, Floor 6, B wing, Supreme IT Park, Supreme 

City, Behind Lake Castle, Powai, Mumbai 400 076

Twenty First Annual General 

Meeting

Thursday, 14 July, 

2016

3:00  

p.m.

Megh Towers, Third Floor, Old No.307, New No.165, 

Poonamallee High Road, Maduravoyal, Chennai – 

600095
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All the resolutions were passed by show of hands and no resolutions were passed by postal ballot.

VII. Disclosures
i. Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests of company 

at large:

 The particulars of the transactions between the company and ‘related parties’ are provided at point 27 of Notes to accounts, of 

both standalone and consolidated financials, published elsewhere in the Annual Report. None of the transactions are likely to 

have any conflict with Company’s interest.

ii.  Details of non-compliance by the company, penalties, strictures imposed on the company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any 

statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years - NIL

VIII. CEO/CFO Certificate:
The CEO and the CFO of the Company have certified to the Board with regard to the financial statements and other matters. This 

certificate is included as Annexure III to the Directors’ Report.

The details of the special resolutions passed in the General Meetings held in the previous three financial years are given below:

General Body Meeting Day and Date Resolution

Extra-Ordinary General 

Meeting
Tuesday, 29 April, 2014

To approve changes in the terms and conditions of the 

appointment of Mr. Shantanu Mitra as the Managing Director

Extra-Ordinary General 

Meeting
Tuesday, 10 June, 2014

Offer of Long Term Non Convertible Redeemable Debentures up to 

H5,000 crores on private placement basis

Nineteenth AGM
Wednesday, 20 August, 

2014

I.  To approve payment of commission to Non-Whole time directors 

of the company. 

II. Offer of Long Term Non Convertible Debentures up to H5000 

crores on private placement basis

Extra-Ordinary General 

Meeting
Friday, 24 April, 2015

  I. To approve increase in the Borrowing limits of the company from 

existing H10,000 Crores to H 20,000 Crores

II. To create charge on Company’s properties

Twentieth AGM Thursday, 16 July, 2015

I. To re-appoint Mr. Shantanu Mitra as Managing Director of the 

Company

II. To approve offer of Long Term Non Convertible Redeemable 

Debentures up to H5,000 crores on private placement basis

Twenty First Annual General 

Meeting
Thursday, 14 July, 2016

I. To approve offer of Long Term Non- Convertible Redeemable 

Debentures up to H5,000 crores on private placement basis
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Certification by Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
and Chief Financial Officer (CFO)  

To,

The Shareholders and the Board of Directors

Fullerton India Credit Company Limited

We, Shantanu Mitra, Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director and Pankaj Malik, Chief Financial 

Officer, of Fullerton India Credit Company Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:

a. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statements for the year ended  

31 March, 2017 (hereinafter referred to as the year) and that to the best of our knowledge and 

belief:

 i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 

contain statements that might be misleading;

 ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

b. There are no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, 

illegal or violative of the Company’s internal policies 

c. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting 

and we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining 

to financial reporting and have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies 

in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and have taken 

requisite steps to rectify these deficiencies.

d. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee;

 i. Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year and

 ii. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and the same have been disclosed 

in the notes to the financial statements.

e. There have been 28 instances of fraud reported by the Company to the Board. The Company has 

taken appropriate legal action against the same. Although the Company is registered as deposit-

taking NBFC, it has not accepted deposits from the public.

   Sd/-  Sd/-

   Shantanu Mitra  Pankaj Malik

   Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director  Chief Financial Officer  

   

Date:  18 May, 2017

Place: Mumbai

ANNEXURE III TO THE 
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Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2017 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no.9 of the Companies  

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 

The Members, 

Fullerton India Credit Company Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the 

compliance of applicable statutory provisions 

and the adherence to good corporate practices 

by Fullerton India Credit Company Limited 

(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial 

Audit was conducted in a manner that provided 

us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 

expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company’s 

books, papers, minute books, forms and 

returns filed and other records maintained by 

the Company (as per Annexure 1, hereinafter 

referred to as “Books and Papers”)and also the 

information provided by the Company, its 

officers, agents and authorized representatives 

during the conduct of secretarial audit, we 

hereby report that in our opinion, the Company 

has, during the period covered by our audit, 

that is to say, from 01 April, 2016 to 31 March, 

2017 (hereinafter referred to as “Audit Period”), 

complied with the statutory provisions listed 

hereunder and also that the Company has 

proper board-processes and compliance-

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 

and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the Books and Papers 

maintained by the Company for the Audit Period 

according to the provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the 

rules made thereunder;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) 

Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made 

thereunder; 

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the 

regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder; 

4. The following Regulations and Guidelines 

prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI 

Act”):- 

 i. The Securities and Exchange Board 

of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 

Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

 ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)   

Regulations, 2015; 

 iii. The Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

5. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 

1999 and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 

Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowing; 

6. Laws specifically applicable to the industry 

to which the Company belongs, as identified 

by the management, that is to say:  

ANNEXURE IV TO THE 
DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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 i. Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934; 

 ii. Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - 

Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company 

and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) 

Directions, 2016 (‘Directions, 2016’); 

 iii. Miscellaneous Instructions to all Non-Banking Financial 

Companies; 

 iv. Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of 

Public Deposits (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016; 

 v. Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies 

Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016; 

 vi. Master Direction - Monitoring of frauds in NBFCs 

(Reserve bank) Directions, 2016; 

 vii. Master Direction - Know Your Customer (KYC) 

Directions, 2016; 

 viii. Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company 

Returns (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016; 

 ix. The Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority 

of India (Registration of Corporate Agents) Regulations, 

2015. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable 

clauses of the following:

a.  Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India;

We report that during the period under review the Company 

has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, etc. mentioned above. 

Management Responsibility:

i. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of 

the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these secretarial records based on 

our audit; 

ii. We have followed the audit practices and the processes 

as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 

the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. 

The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 

correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe 

that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 

reasonable basis for our opinion; 

iii. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness 

of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company 

or examined any books, information or statements other 

than Books and Papers; 

iv. We have not examined any other specific laws except as 

mentioned above; 

v.  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management 

Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 

regulation and happening of events etc.; 

vi. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and 

other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of management. Our examination was 

limited to the verification of procedure on test basis; 

vii. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to 

the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted 

the affairs of the Company. 

We further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with 

proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors 

and Independent Directors. There were no changes in the 

composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 

the Audit Period.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the 

Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 

sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for 

seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 

on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 

participation at the meeting.

Resolutions have been approved with unanimous consent.

We further report that there are adequate systems and 

processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance 

with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit Period, the Company 

has not incurred any specific event/ action listed below 

that can have a major bearing on the company’s affairs in 

pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, 

guidelines, standards, etc., except as follows:
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i. Rights Issue of Equity Shares:

 During the Audit Period, 5,89,10,162 equity shares of face value H10 and premium of H23.95 per share were allotted to Angelica 

Investments Pte Ltd on March 29, 2017, by way of rights issue. Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte Ltd renounced the shares 

offered to them in favour of Angelica Investments Pte Ltd.

ii. Private Placement of Secured Non-Convertible Debentures and Subordinated debt:

 During the Audit Period, the Company has issued secured NCDs amounting to H1439.30 crores for series 38 to series 55 and 

subordinated debt amount to H71 crores for series 11 and 12.

Thanking You, 

Yours sincerely 

For M/s. Vinod Kothari & Company 

Practising Company Secretaries 

UIN P1996WB042300 

Sd/-

Vinita Nair 

Partner 

C. P. No. 11902 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 02 May, 2017
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List of Documents

1. Corporate Matters 

1.1 Minutes books of the following were provided:

1.1.1 Board Meeting; 

1.1.2 Audit Committee; 

1.1.3 Nomination and Remuneration Committee; 

1.1.4 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee; 

1.1.5 Risk Oversight Committee; 

1.1.6 Asset Liability Management Committee; 

1.1.7 General Meeting; 

1.2 Agenda papers for Board and Committee Meetings along with Notice; 

1.3 Annual Report, 2016; 

1.4 Memorandum and Articles of Association; 

1.5 Disclosures under Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder; 

1.6 Policies framed under Act, 2013 and RBI regulations for NBFCs; 

1.7 Documents pertaining to Listing Regulations; 

1.8 Forms and returns filed with the ROC & RBI; 

1.9 Documents under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

1.10 Documents relating to issue of Non-Convertible Debentures, Masala Bonds; 

1.11 Documents relating to Commercial Paper issuances; 

1.12 Registers maintained under Companies Act, 2013; 

1.13 Loan Agreement

Annexure I
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ANNEXURE V TO THE 
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy.

CSR policy of Fullerton India (brief outline)

i. Introduction
As a part of its Corporate Social Responsibility, Fullerton India Credit Company Ltd. (“Fullerton India”) 

enables sustainable development and inclusive growth across communities. The Company has 

implemented certain innovative socio-economic and environmental initiatives, in fulfilment of its 

role as a socially responsible corporate citizen. Fullerton India reaches out to the under-banked and 

unbanked by not just providing them with financial services but also by enabling the communities 

with services and skills that would help improve their standard and quality of living. 

Fullerton India’s Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) projects operate under the brand name - ‘Uday – 

ek nayi subhah’, which signifies hope, thus fulfilling the Company’s commitment in making a change in 

lives of the under privileged.

Every CSR initiative of Fullerton India is branded to build mass connect both for internal as well as external 

stakeholders.

ii. Uday Vision
Fullerton India’s CSR Vision – Uday, is to enable sustainable development and inclusive growth across 

communities through innovative socio-economic and environmental interventions, in fulfillment of its 

role as a socially responsible corporate citizen.

iii. Uday Objectives
Fullerton India’s Uday Initiative focuses on the three keys aspects of the community’s development 

- social, economic and environment. To achieve long-term sustainable impact on the community, 

Fullerton India’s Uday objectives are: 

Advance livelihoods through 

• Identification of technical expertise for guidance and facilitation of programmes

• Skill development and capacity building initiatives

• Income enhancement through market linkages, across value chains 

• Education programmes focusing on enhancement of knowledge leading to up-gradation of skills 

Livelihood 
enhancement and 

training programmes

General health care

Cattle Care 
Camps 

(Livelihood)

Financial literacy

Education 
programmes 

programmesye 
health

Eye care 
programme

Environment 
and Organic 

Farming

Skill development 
for youth
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and empowerment  

Improve the social wellbeing of the community through

  Health awareness and intervention programmes for community and the under-privileged, with a focus on eye-care and 

nutrition. 

  Women and children - focused health interventions through awareness and implementation of programmes enabling adoption 

of best health practices 

  Awareness about preventive healthcare, with a focus on hygiene and clean drinking water.

Adoption of sustainable environmental practices through   

  Promotion and adoption of environmentally sustainable practices, such as organic farming  

  Awareness and adoption of green technology and alternative energy through programmes / interventions  

iv. Scope
The CSR Policy (the “Policy”) shall be applicable to all CSR initiatives and activities undertaken by Fullerton India and all its 

employees for the welfare and sustainable development benefit of different segments of the society at large. 

This Policy is in line with the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules made thereunder.

Website link http://www.fullertonindia.com/community-initiatives/our-csr-mission.aspx

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee.
The CSR committee consists of 3 members, as below:

a) Mr. Gan Chee Yen (Chairman FICCL)

b) Mrs. Renu Challu  (Independent Director)

c) Mrs. Sudha Pillai (Independent Director)

3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years:

Average net Profit for last three financial years (H) in crore

Company/Year FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 Average for last 3 years

Fullerton India 188 301 431 306.7

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent. of the amount as in item 3 above)
H6.2 crore (2% of H306.7 crore)

5. Details of CSR expenditure during the financial year.
a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year:
As per Companies Act, the amount to be spent (average net profit for last three financial years) for the FY2017 was H6.2 Crores. 

b) Amount unspent, if any:
     Nil. Company spent the entire amount prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
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FULLERTON INDIA CSR REPORT FY2017

S. 
No.

CSR project or 
activity identified

Sector in which the project is 
covered

Projects or programmes local 
area or other specify the state 
and district where projects or 
programmes was undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(Budget) 
project or 

programme 
wise (J)

Amount spent on the 
projects or programmes sub 

heads Cumulative 
expenditure 

upto the 
reporting 
period (J)

Amount 
spent: direct 
or through 

implementing 
agency*

1.  Direct 
Expenditure 
on projects 

and 
programmes 

(J)

2. Overheads 
(J)

1 Mobile Medical 

clinics

Schedule VII, Item (i)- promoting 

preventive health care

3-locations-: 50 villages in Hubli, 

50 villages and 25 urban slums 

of Belgaum, 40 villages in Haveri, 

30 villages in Gadag (Karnataka); 

50 village and 60 urban slums in 

Jaipur, 30 villages in Phulera,  20 

villages in Sikar (Rajasthan);  100 

villages in Hoshangabad, 100 

villages in Sagar (Madhya Pradesh) 

5,963,400 5,963,400 0 5,963,400 Implementing 

agency

2 Mobile Health 

Van

Schedule VII, Item (i)- promoting 

preventive health care

4-locations: Godhra, Limkheda, 

Lunawada, Thasra (Gujarat)

2,260,000 2,260,000 0 2,260,000 Implementing 

agency

3 Mobile Medical 

Camps

Schedule VII, Item (i)- promoting 

preventive health care

Location: Tamil Nadu 1,530,000 1,530,000 0 1,530,000 Implementing 

agency

4 Mobile Medical 

Camps

Schedule VII, Item (i)- promoting 

preventive health care

4- locations: Bareilly, Shahjapur 

(Uttar Pradesh), Rudrapur, 

Haldwani (Uttarakhand)

500,000 500,000 0 500,000 Implementing 

agency

5 Vision Care 

Center-1 & 2

Schedule VII, Item (i)- promoting 

preventive health care

2-Locations-:20 slums in 

Rajamundry (Andhra Pradesh); 

25 villages Ramchandrapuram, 

Rajamundry (Andhra Pradesh)

760,016 760,016 0 760,016 Implementing 

agency

6 Vision Care 

Center-3-9

Schedule VII, Item (i)- promoting 

preventive health care

7- locations-: 300 slums in Indore 

(Madhya Pradesh), 12 villages 

in Chennai (Tamil Nadu);  Patna 

(Bihar); 60 slums in Bhubaneshwar 

(Odisha);  25 villages in Siliguri 

(West Bengal); 50 slums in 

Raipur, 25 villages in Saraipali 

(Chattisgarh)

6,620,000 5,870,000 0 5,870,000 Implementing 

agency

7 Vision Care 

Center-10

Schedule VII, Item (i)- promoting 

preventive health care

1-location-: 12 villages in 

Dharapuram block, Coimbatore 

(Tamil Nadu)

525,000 525,000 0 525,000 Implementing 

agency

8 Vision Care 

Center- 11-12

Schedule VII, Item (i)- promoting 

preventive health care

2-location-: 100 villages in 

Kopargaon, N block, Ahmednagar 

(Maharashtra); 50 villages in Vyara, 

Mandvi (Gujarat)

3,700,000 3,700,000 0 3,700,000 Implementing 

agency

9 Mid-Day Meal Schedule VII, Item (i)- promoting 

preventive health care

Locations-: Mathura (Uttar 

Pradesh), Jodhpur (Rajasthan), 

Hubli (Karnataka)

2,100,000 2,100,000 0 2,100,000 Implementing 

agency

10 School Health / 

WASH

Schedule VII, Item (i)- promoting 

preventive health care

2-locations-: Dehradun 

(Uttarakhand), Shimla (Himachal 

Pradesh)

923,442 831,098 0 831,098 Implementing 

agency

11 Disaster Relief Schedule VII, Item (i)- promoting 

preventive health care, 

eradicating hunger, poverty

Location-: Tamil Nadu 700,000 700,000 0 700,000 Implementing 

agency

12 Disaster Relief Schedule VII, Item (i)- promoting 

preventive health care, 

eradicating hunger, poverty

Location: Urban slums of Mumbai, 

Latur (Maharashtra)

490,000 0 490,000 Implementing 

agency

c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:
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S. 
No.

CSR project or 
activity identified

Sector in which the project is 
covered

Projects or programmes local 
area or other specify the state 
and district where projects or 
programmes was undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(Budget) 
project or 

programme 
wise (J)

Amount spent on the 
projects or programmes sub 

heads Cumulative 
expenditure 

upto the 
reporting 
period (J)

Amount 
spent: direct 
or through 

implementing 
agency*

1.  Direct 
Expenditure 
on projects 

and 
programmes 

(J)

2. Overheads 
(J)

13 Livelihood 

Enhancement- 

Commercial 

Stitching and 

tailoring / Beauty 

and Hair Care

Schedule VII, Item (ii)- promoting 

employment enhancing 

vocational skills  especially 

among women

Locations: Indore, Ujjain, Dhar, 

Dewas, Jabalpur, Katni, Chindwara, 

Balaghat, Sagar (Madhya Pradesh); 

Mathura, Agara, Bareilly (Uttar 

Pradesh); Rudrapur (Uttra Khand); 

Oganj, Junagarh, Rajkot (Gujarat); 

Aurangabad, Ahmednagar, 

Kolhapur (Maharashtra)  

7,488,244 7,229,548 0 7,229,548 Implementing 

agency

14 Livelihood 

Enhancement- 

Schedule VII, Item (ii)- promoting 

employment enhancing 

vocational skills  especially 

among women

Location: Sardarshahar (Rajasthan) 208,058 208,058 0 208,058 Implementing 

agency

15 Livelihood 

Enhancement- 

Schedule VII, Item (ii)- promoting 

employment enhancing 

vocational skills  especially 

among women

Locations: Jaipur, Ajmer 

(Rajasthan)

1,478,738 978,738 0 978,738 Implementing 

agency

16 Livelihood 

Enhancement- 

Commercial 

Stitching and 

tailoring

Schedule VII, Item (ii)- promoting 

employment enhancing 

vocational skills  especially 

among women

Locations: Nammakul, Omalur, 

Rashipuram (Tamil Nadu)

800,000 800,000 0 800,000 Implementing 

agency

17 Livelihood 

Enhancement- 

Schedule VII, Item (ii)- promoting 

employment enhancing 

vocational skills  especially 

among women

2 locations: Jodhpur (Rajasthan), 

Bilaspur (Chattisgarh)

7,805,496 7,296,892 0 7,296,892 Implementing 

agency

18 Livelihood 

Enhancement- 

Schedule VII, Item (ii)- promoting 

employment enhancing 

vocational skills  especially 

among women

Location: Shimoga (Karnataka) 5,752,749 3,449,749 0 3,449,749 Implementing 

agency

19 Livelihood 

Enhancement- 

Schedule VII, Item (ii)- promoting 

employment enhancing 

vocational skills  especially 

among women

Location: Nagpur (Maharashtra) 3,650,000 2,737,500 0 2,737,500 Implementing 

agency

20 Vocational 

training program

Schedule VII, Item (ii)- promoting 

employment enhancing 

vocational skills  especially 

among women

250 locations in 10 states 

(Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh, 

Tamil Nadu, Karnataka, Rajasthan, 

Gujarat, Chattisgarh, Uttar 

Pradesh, Uttarakhand, Haryana)

500,000 526,656 0 526,656 Direct

21 Livelihood 

Enhancement- 

Integrated 

Livestock 

Development

Schedule VII, Item (ii)- Livelihood 

Enhancement projects

Locations-: 142 villages in 5 

blocks in Hoshangabad (Madhya 

Pradesh); 65 Villages in 5 blocks 

of Khandwa (Madhya Pradesh); 

37 villages in 5 blocks of Kolhapur 

(Maharashtra); 41 villages in 5 

blocks of Nippani (Karnataka)

4,879,000 4,718,300 0 4,718,300 Implementing 

agency

22 Livelihood 

Enhancement- 

Cattle Care 

Camps

Schedule VII, Item (ii)- Livelihood 

Enhancement projects

30 locations in 5 states 

(Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh, 

Tamil Nadu, Karnataka, Rajasthan)

2,500,000 819,180 0 819,180 Direct
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S. 
No.

CSR project or 
activity identified

Sector in which the project is 
covered

Projects or programmes local 
area or other specify the state 
and district where projects or 
programmes was undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(Budget) 
project or 

programme 
wise (J)

Amount spent on the 
projects or programmes sub 

heads Cumulative 
expenditure 

upto the 
reporting 
period (J)

Amount 
spent: direct 
or through 

implementing 
agency*

1.  Direct 
Expenditure 
on projects 

and 
programmes 

(J)

2. Overheads 
(J)

23 Enviornment 

Sustainability- 

Krish Mitra 

Program

Schedule VII, Item (iv)- 

Conservation of natural resources 

and maintaining quality of soil

Location: 5 blocks in 2 

district-Nashik, Ahmednagar 

(Maharashtra); 2 blocks of Erode 

district (Tamil Nadu); Durg, 

Dhamtari district (Chattisgarh)

3,690,419 3,733,938 0 3,733,938 Implementing 

agency

24 Education Schedule VII, Item (ii)- Promoting 

education, including special 

education and employment 

enhancing vocational skills

Locations: Alwar, Khairtal 

(Rajasthan)

1,592,000 922,000 0 922,000 Implementing 

agency

25 Education  Schedule VII, Item (ii)- Promoting 

education, including special 

education and employment 

enhancing vocational skills

Location- Shimoga  (Karnataka) 325,500 162,750 0 162,750 Implementing 

agency

26 Education  Schedule VII, Item (ii)- Promoting 

education, including special 

education and employment 

enhancing vocational skills

Location-Amravati, Aurangabad 

(Maharashtra)

472,000 236,000 0 236,000 Implementing 

agency

27 Education  Schedule VII, Item (ii)- Promoting 

education, including special 

education and employment 

enhancing vocational skills

Locations: Dhamond, Sanawad 

(Madhya Pradesh)

750,000 325,000 0 325,000 Implementing 

agency

28 Education  Schedule VII, Item (ii)- Promoting 

education, including special 

education and employment 

enhancing vocational skills

Locations: Indore (Madhya 

Pradesh), Bhilwara (Rajasthan), 

Ranchi (Jharkhand), Hubli 

(Karnataka), Mumbai 

(Maharashtra), Vishakhapatnam 

(Andhra Pradesh), Raipur 

(Chattisgarh),Coimbatore (Tamil 

Nadu)

2,000,000 2,000,000 0 2,000,000 Implementing 

agency

29 Administrative 

cost

   0 3,068,691 3,068,691  

   Grand Total 61,373,823 3,068,691 64,442,514*  

* Total CSR allocated budget and spend for FY2017 was H6.2 crore, and a spend of H0.24 crore from FY2016 shortfall.
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S. 
No.

CSR Project
Name of the 

Implementing 
Agency

Details

1 Mobile Medical 
clinics

Udyogini Udyogini is registered as a society under the ‘Indian Societies Registration Act’, 
1860. Udyogini was set up to co-ordinate and help poor women, mainly illiterate in 
remote and backward areas of India to improve their skills as producers and their 
knowledge of the markets they operate in, so as to ensure long-term returns to build 
microenterprises and become entrepreneurs

2 Mobile Medical 
clinics

Tamil Nadu 
Voluntary Health 

Association 

Tamil Nadu Voluntary Health Association is the largest health network of voluntary 
organizations in the state of Tamil Nadu. It is a state level federation of more than 100 
NGOs which are engaged in health and developmental related activities

3 Mobile Medical 
clinics

Society for Pragati 
Bharat

The Society for Pragati Bharat was registered in the year 1996 with the aim to work 
around overall community development. 

4 Vision Care 
Center-1 & 2

Divine Eye 
Foundation (DEF)

DEF is a renowned trust (Not for profit), located in Rajahmundry, A.P. Its mission is to 
provide excellent eye care to all in a caring and Compassionate manner with a focus 
on extending efficient eye care to the underserved rural poor. DEF is engaged in 
providing eye care services as a part of its nature of business.

5 Vision Care 
Center-3-9

Royal 
Commonwealth 

Society for the Blind 
(SIGHTSAVERS)

SIGHTSAVERS is a renowned international not for profit organization, working 
in developing countries to combat avoidable blindness and promote equal 
opportunities for disabled people.

6 Vision Care 
Center- 10

Kanchi Kamakoti 
Medical Trust 

(Sankara)

Sankara is a renowned trust (Not for profit), located in Coimbatore, T.N. SEF initiates 
and drives community eye care activities in India by working with Sankara Eye Care 
Institutions (SECI), India, which runs the "Gift of Vision" rural outreach programme 
through Sankara Eye Hospitals. The Gift of Vision programme is based on an "80/20" 
model, i.e., four free eye surgeries are performed for each paid surgery. Thousands of 
rural poor have received free eye surgeries

7 Vision Care 
Center- 11-12

Mission for Vision Mission for Vision is a NGO working with partners to combat avoidable blindness and 
promote a disability inclusive world, MFV works with 21 eye hospitals and centers 
across 14 states which have performed over 170,000 free eye surgeries annually

8 Mid-Day Meal Akshaya Patra 
Foundation

Akshaya Patra's mission is to eradicate child hunger and promote education for 1.4 
under-served children in India by providing nutritious school meals. Akshaya Patra 
implements the Mid- Day Meal programme in 23 locations of 10 states of India. Each 
day the foundation feeds 1.4 million children covering more than 10,000 Government 
schools. The foundation follows both centralised and decentralised kitchen formats to 
implement the programme

9 School Health/ 
WASH

Enable Health 
Society

Enable Health Society (EHS) is a registered national NGO which works to influence the 
health behavior of individuals and communities as well as their living environment 
through educating communities on health issues- focusing on prevention and 
motivating them to maintain healthy lifestyles.

10 Health HelpAge India HelpAge India is a leading registered national level NGO, established in 1978, with 
a mission “to work for the cause and care of disadvantaged aged persons and to 
improve their quality of life”. It is a secular, not-for-profit organisation registered 
under the Societies' Registration Act of 1860. Set up in 1978, the organisation 
works to protect the rights of India's elderly and provide relief to them through 
various interventions and endeavors to make significant changes in the lives of the 
disadvantaged older persons, so as to enable them to live better and healthier lives.

11 Health St. Jude St. Jude India Child Care Centers currently runs 18 Centers in Mumbai, Delhi, Kolkata, 
Hyderabad and Jaipur. It provides free accommodation and holistic support to 
children travelling with their parents for treatment of cancer from villages and small 
town to cities.

Details of Implementing Agency
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S. 
No.

CSR Project
Name of the 

Implementing 
Agency

Details

12 Disaster Relief Save the Children One of the leading organisations working in disaster relief during national calamities. 
Key thematic areas include child health and nutrition, vocational skills and early 
childhood education

13 Livelihood 
Enhancement- 
Stitching and 

tailoring

Society for 
Technology and  
Action for Rural 
Advancement 

(TARA Livelihood 
Academy)

TARA is part of the Development Alternatives group with its headquarters New Delhi.  
TLA provides skills to youth, women and community groups with an aim of providing 
trained workforce to the market. Headquartered in Orcha in Jhansi district of U.P., TLA 
have good presence in central India.

14 Livelihood 
Enhancement- 

Urmul Setu 
Sansthan

Urmul Setu is a member of Urmul network of organisations, working in western 
Rajasthan for last 25 years with focus on drought mitigation and disaster 
management, livelihoods, women empowerment, child rights, early childcare and 
development, improving access to basic amenities, with priority emphasis on food, 
fodder and water

15 Livelihood 
Enhancement- 

Vatsalya Vatsalya has been working in Child rehabilitation, Women empowerment and Health 
including HIV/AIDS.  Women empowerment is mainly to enhance their skills for their 
sustained livelihood. These women belong to the deprived and marginalized sections 
of the community including many women who are in sex trade have now given the 
alternative opportunity. Vatsalya now has a strong group about 90 women who were 
once trapped in sex trade but now are free and happily earn their living through a 
decent means. They are trained in Kantha work; a traditional stitch craft and also in 
tailoring. 

16 Livelihood 
Enhancement- 

Anirban Rural 
Welfare Society

Anirban Rural Welfare Society is a voluntary social service organization for social action 
and economic development in a integrated way. The organization was established by a 
group of committed volunteers from Teachers, Doctors, Social workers, Statistician, for 
providing assistance and support towards betterment of the landless poor people, who 
are deprived, exploited and lead to their life in deplorable condition.

17 Livelihood 
Enhancement-

International 
Association of 
Human Values 

(IAHV)

International Association for Human Values (IAHV) is a humanitarian, nonprofit, non-
governmental organization dedicated to the development and promotion of human 
values throughout the world. To pursue its mission, IAHV implements grassroots, 
sustainable programs for socioeconomic development of rural and impoverished 
areas, humanitarian relief to those affected by natural and man-made disasters and 
post disaster rehabilitation and reconstruction, conflict management through dialogue 
between cultures, value based education and works to foster global peace and 
Harmony

18 Livelihood 
Enhancement- 

Integrated 
Livestock 

Development

J K Trust Gram Vikas 
Yojana

J.K. Trust is one of the leading organisations working in the animal husbandry and 
holistic cattle care management with focus on Cattle Breed Improvement through 
Integrated Livestock Development Centers (ILD). They are partnering with the 
veterinary departments of state government in M.P., Maharashtra, Gujarat and Rajasthan 
on implementing the ILD model across villages.

19 Enviornment 
Sustainability- 

Krish Mitra 
Programme

Lokpanchayat, Lokpanchayat is a NGO engaged in community organisation for enhancing 
development based on the principles of participation, sustainability and social justice. 
Their major focus is in sustainable agriculture with promotion of organic farming across 
several villages in Maharashtra
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6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last 
three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending 
the amount in its Board report.
Not applicable.

7. Responsibility Statement
We hereby certify that the implementation and monitoring of Uday projects are in compliance with the CSR objectives and policy of 

Fullerton India.

   Sd/- Sd/-

   Shantanu Mitra   Gan Chee Yen

   (Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director)              (Chairman CSR Committee)

   Sd/- Sd/-

   Rakesh Makkar Pankaj Malik

   (Head Business, Marketing and CSR) (Chief financial Officer and Company Secretary)

Date: 18 May, 2017

Place: Mumbai

S. 
No.

CSR Project
Name of the 

Implementing 
Agency

Details

20 Enviornment 
Sustainability- 

Krish Mitra 
Programme

MYRADA Myrada was started in 1968. Myrada at present is directly managing 18 projects 
in 20 backward and drought prone Districts of Karnataka, Tamil Nadu and Andhra 
Pradesh. There are other States where it has collaborated with Government, Bilateral 
and Multilateral Programmes, by contributing to programme design and supporting 
implementation through regular training, exposure and deputation of staff

21 Education ChildFund India ChildFund India is a child development organisation representing the voice of 
deprived, excluded and vulnerable children in India regardless of their race, creed and 
gender, since 1951. Presently, we are assisting more than 1.73 million children and 
families across the country with our unique child-centric intervention programmes

22 Education Indian Institute of 
Natural Resource 

Management 
(IINREM)

Indian Institute of Natural Resources Management (IINREM) is a Pan India NGO and 
working for building livelihoods and making youth employable through training and 
placement. IINREM is a two decades old organization and has implemented prestigious 
projects like Swarm Jayanti Gram Swarozgar Yojana, Ambedkar Hastshilp Vikas Yojana, 
Deen Dayal Upadhayay Grameen Kaushal Yojan, etc. 

23 Education Round Table India 
Trust

Round Table is an organization of young men aimed at promoting community 
service and goodwill in National & International Affairs. Round Table is present in 67 
Countries worldwide with over 65,000 members. In India there are more than 280 
Chapters/ Tables spread across 105 Cities and Towns with over 4000 members who are 
entrepreneurs, technocrats & professionals.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements of Fullerton India Credit Company Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”), its 
subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 
together referred to as “the Group”), comprising of the 
consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the 
consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and consolidated 
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated 
financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements 
in terms of the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated 
financial position, consolidated financial performance and 
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included 
in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the 
Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. While 
conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions 
of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters 
which are required to be included in the audit report under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 

on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give 
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made 
by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by 
us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors 
in terms of their reports referred to in paragraph (a) of the 
Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration 
of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements 
and on the other financial information of the subsidiaries, 
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the 
information required by the Act in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state 
of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2017, their consolidated 
profit, and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on 
that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit 
and on the consideration of report of the other auditors 
on separate financial statements and the other financial 
information of subsidiaries as noted in the ‘other matter’ 
paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We and other auditors whose reports we have relied 
upon have sought and obtained all the information and 

To the Members of Fullerton India Credit Company Limited

Fullerton India Credit 
Company Limited
Annual Report 2016-17

Opportunities
Innovations
Transformation



explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by 
law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidation 
of the financial statements have been kept so far as 
it appears from our examination of those books and 
reports of the other auditors;

(c) The consolidated Balance Sheet, consolidated Statement 
of Profit and Loss, and consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of 
the consolidated financial statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from 
the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2017 
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors 
who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its 
subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the 
directors of the Group’s companies incorporated in India is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from being appointed as 
a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy and the operating 
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of the Holding Company and its 
subsidiary companies incorporated in India, refer to our 
separate report in “Annexure 1” to this report;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the 
impact of pending litigations on its consolidated 
financial position of the Group– Refer Note 30 to the 
consolidated financial statements;

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable 
losses in long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts during the year ended March 31, 2017;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 
incorporated in India during the year ended March 31, 
2017.

iv. The Holding Company and its subsidiaries have 
provided requisite disclosures in Note 37 in the 

financial statements as to the holding of Specified 
Bank Notes on November 8, 2016 and December 
30, 2016 as well as dealings in Specified Bank 
Notes during the period from November 9, 2016 to 
December 30, 2016. Based on our audit procedures 
and relying on the management representation 
regarding the holding and nature of cash 
transactions, including those in Specified Bank Notes, 
we report that these disclosures are in accordance 
with the books of accounts maintained by the Group 
and as produced to us by the management. However, 
as stated in note 37 in the financial statements and 
as represented to us by the Management, the Group 
has received amount aggregating H31,50,92,500 from 
transactions which are not permitted.

Other Matter
(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other 

financial information, in respect of two subsidiaries 
whose financial statements include total assets of Rs 
8,31,18,72,567 and net assets of Rs 3,43,34,71,008 as at 
March 31, 2017, and total revenues of Rs 25,65,44,558 and 
net cash inflows of Rs 10,43,52,152 for the year ended 
on that date. These financial statements and other 
financial information have been audited by other auditors, 
which financial statements, other financial information 
and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the 
management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and 
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and 
our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of 
the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, 
is based solely on the reports of such other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, 
and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
above, is not modified in respect of the above matters with 
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the 
other auditors and the financial statements and other financial 
information certified by the Management.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
ICAI Firm’s Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
per Viren H. Mehta
Partner
Membership Number: 048749

Mumbai
18 May 2017
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In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of Fullerton India Credit Company Limited as of 
and for the year ended March 31, 2017, we have audited the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting of Fullerton 
India Credit Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as the 
‘Holding Company’) and its subsidiary companies, which are 
companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The respective Board of Directors of the of the Holding 
Company, its subsidiary companies, which are companies 
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Holding Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) and the Standards on 
Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India, and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of 
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 

controls.  Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the 
audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their 
reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is 
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 

Annexure 1 to the independent auditor’s report of even date on 
the consolidated financial statements of fullerton india credit 
company limted 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act”)

To the Members of Fullerton India Credit Company Limited
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provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, 
which are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained 
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial 

controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as 
at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Holding Company 
considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters
Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy 
and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting of the Holding Company, insofar 
as it relates to subsidiary companies  is based on the 
corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiary 
companies incorporated in India.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
ICAI Firm’s Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
per Viren H. Mehta
Partner
Membership Number: 048749

Mumbai
18 May 2017
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(B lakhs)

Notes 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
 Share capital 3  198,007  192,116 
 Reserves and surplus 4  50,729  18,929 
Non-current liabilities
 Long-term borrowings 5  829,681  686,001 
 Other long term liabilities 6  10,949  8,491 
 Long-term provisions 7  28,119  13,183 
Current liabilities
 Short-term borrowings 8  119,711  121,690 
 Other current liabilities 9  268,706  301,755 
 Short-term provisions 7  8,509  2,827 
TOTAL  1,514,411  1,344,992 
ASSETS
Non-current assets
 Fixed assets
   Tangible assets 10  4,421  2,983 
   Intangible assets 11  2,639  2,040 

Assets under development 10 & 11  360  389 
 Non-current investments 12  105  5 
 Deferred tax asset (Net) 13  15,804  8,613 
 Long-term loans and advances 14  801,149  772,284 
 Other non-current assets 15  16,947  8,944 
Current assets
 Current investments 16  195,005  92,022 
 Trade receivables 17  381  657 
 Cash and bank balances 18  54,931  82,287 
 Short-term loans and advances 14  397,398  352,850 
 Other current assets 15  25,271  21,918 
TOTAL  1,514,411  1,344,992 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017

S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm Registration number : 301003E/E300005 Fullerton India Credit Company Limited
Chartered Accountants

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
per Viren H. Mehta Gan Chee Yen Shantanu Mitra
Partner Chairman  CEO and Managing Director
Membership No. 048749
 Sd/-
 Pankaj Malik
 Chief Financial Officer and
 Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 18 May 2017 Date : 18 May 2017
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(B lakhs)

Notes 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

 Income

 Revenue from operations 19  260,162  221,357 

 Other income 20  6,546  6,568 

Total revenue (I)  266,708  227,925 

 Expenses

 Employee benefit expense 21  45,135  36,211 

 Other expenses 22  31,692  31,160 

 Depreciation and amortisation expense 10&11  2,799  2,438 

 Finance costs 23  104,084  95,076 

 Provisions and write-offs 24  51,095  20,526 

 Total expenses (II)  234,805  185,411 

 Profit before tax (III) =(I)-(II)  31,903  42,514 

 Tax expenses

 Current tax  18,641  11,869 

 Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods  242  -   

 Deferred tax credit  (7,191)  (8,613)

 Total tax expense (IV)  11,692  3,256 

 Profit for the year (III)-(IV)  20,211  39,258 

 Earnings per equity share (H) 25

 Basic (Computed on the basis of total profit for the year)  1.05  2.09 

 Diluted (Computed on the basis of total profit for the year)  1.05  2.09 
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March 2017

S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm Registration number : 301003E/E300005 Fullerton India Credit Company Limited
Chartered Accountants

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
per Viren H. Mehta Gan Chee Yen Shantanu Mitra
Partner Chairman  CEO and Managing Director
Membership No. 048749
 Sd/-
 Pankaj Malik
 Chief Financial Officer and
 Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 18 May 2017 Date : 18 May 2017
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017

(B lakhs)

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

A. Cash flow from operating activities:

 Net Profit before taxation  31,903  42,514 

 Adjustment for computing operating profit before working capital changes:

 Depreciation and amortisation  2,799  2,438 

 Interest on fixed deposits and bonds  (6,466)  (5,395)

 Interest on investments  (2,814)  (5,264)

 Profit on sale of fixed assets  (18)  (22)

 Write off of fixed assets and intangible assets  4  265 

 Discount on Commercial Paper  59  -   

 Profit on sale of investments  (3,297)  (3,918)

 Unrealised loss on investments  314  -   

 Provision for standard/sub standard assets and bad debts written off  50,781  20,535 

 Provision for employees benefits  (13)  (179)

 Amortisation of ancillary borrowing costs  590  1,490 

 Operating profit before working capital changes  73,842  52,464 

 Movements in working capital :

 (Increase)/decrease in long term loans and advances  (46,020)  (182,068)

 (Increase)/decrease in short term loans and advances  (54,830)  (80,182)

 (Increase)/ decrease in other non current assets  (76)  (1,500)

 (Increase)/decrease in other current assets  (3,300)  (2,951)

 (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables  276  (403)

 Increase/(decrease) in current liabilities  (6,581)  24,527 

 Increase/(decrease) in other long term liabilities  2,492  1,976 

 Cash generated from operations  (34,197)  (188,136)

 Income taxes paid  (10,545)  (10,615)

 Net cash from operating activities (A)  (44,742)  (198,751)

B. Cash flow from investing activities:

 Purchase of fixed assets and intangibles  (4,357)  (3,674)

 Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  39  28 

 Purchase of non-current investments  (100)  -   

 Purchase of current investments  (2,703,003)  (2,311,242)

 Sale/maturity of investments  2,595,441  2,278,273 

 Fixed deposit placed during the year  (55,141)  (70,311)

 Fixed deposit matured during the year  69,367  47,154 

 Interest received on fixed deposits and bonds  5,537  4,274 

 Interest received on investments  185  820 

 Net cash from investing activities (B)  (92,032)  (54,678)
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(B lakhs)

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

C. Cash flow from financing activities

 Proceeds from issuance of share capital (including share premium)  20,000  15,000 

 Proceeds from long term borrowings from banks and financial institutions  342,280  441,300 

 Proceeds from short term borrowings from banks and financial institutions  117,817  119,967 

 Repayment of long term borrowings from banks and financial institutions  (225,375)  (227,564)

 Repayment of short term borrowings from banks and financial institutions  (119,855)  (88,692)

 Payment of ancillary borrowing costs  (1,551)  (2,307)

 Net cash used in financing activities (C )  133,316  257,704 

 Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)+(C)  (3,458)  4,275 

 Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year  13,220  8,945 

 Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  9,762  13,220 

 (refer note 29 )

 Components of cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

 Cash and cheques on hand  948  1,127 

 With banks  - on current account  7,714  12,093 

   - on deposit account  1,100  -   

 Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  9,762  13,220 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017

S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm Registration number : 301003E/E300005 Fullerton India Credit Company Limited
Chartered Accountants

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
per Viren H. Mehta Gan Chee Yen Shantanu Mitra
Partner Chairman  CEO and Managing Director
Membership No. 048749
 Sd/-
 Pankaj Malik
 Chief Financial Officer and
 Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 18 May 2017 Date : 18 May 2017
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information
 Fullerton India Credit Company Limited (‘FICCL’ or ‘the Company’) is a public limited company domiciled in India and 

incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company is a non-banking financial company (‘NBFC’) 
registered with the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’). The Company provides loans to small and medium enterprises for working 
capital and growth, loans for commercial vehicles and two-wheelers, home improvement loans, loans against property, 
personal loans, working capital loans for urban salaried and self-employed and loans for rural livelihood advancement and 
financing of various rural micro enterprises.

 Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited (‘FIHFCL’) has been incorporated on 12 August 2010, with the main object 
of providing finance for purchase, repairs, construction, and enlargement, erection of house or apartments or building. The 
Company is registered with the National Housing Bank of India (‘NHB’) vide Registration number 07.0122.15 dated 14 July 2015.

2. (a) Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements
 The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise of the financial statements of FICCL and its subsidiaries (hereinafter 

collectively referred to as the ‘Group’).

 The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
in India (‘Indian GAAP’). The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the 
Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and the provisions of the RBI as 
applicable to an NBFC. The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost 
convention except as detailed in note 2.1(i). The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are 
consistent with those of the previous year, except for the change in accounting policy mentioned in point 2.3 below.

(b) Principles of Consolidation
 (i) The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard 21 - Consolidated 

Financial Statements (AS-21) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). The financial 
statements of the group companies are prepared according to uniform accounting policies, in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The effects of inter-company transactions are eliminated on 
consolidation.

  The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding 
together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group balances and intra-
group transactions resulting in unrealised profits or losses.

  The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and 
events in similar circumstances and necessary adjustments required for deviations, if any to the extent possible 
unless otherwise stated, are made in the Consolidated Financial Statements and are presented in the same manner 
as the Company’s standalone financial statements.

  The financial statements of the FIHFCL have been prepared in accordance with and in the manner prescribed by 
National Housing Bank regulations. Due to the lack of homogeneity of the businesses, the financial statements of 
the FIHFCL have been consolidated, to the extent possible in the format as adopted by the parent, as required by AS-
21 and as prescribed under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013.

 (ii) The subsidiary companies considered in preparation of Consolidation Financial Statements are:

Particulars Country of 
Incorporation

Proportion of ownership 
as on 31 March 2017

Proportion of ownership 
as on 31 March 2016

Financial Year 
ends on

Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited India 100% 100% March 31

Fullerton India Foundation for Social and 
Economic Development

India 100% 100% March 31

For the purpose of Consolidated Financial Statements, the results of FICCL and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 
March 2017 have been derived from the respective Company’s audited financials of the year ended 31 March 2017.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

2.1  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

 (a)  Use of estimates
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make judgments, 

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent liabilities at the end of reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management’s knowledge 
of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring 
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in future periods.

(b) Tangible fixed assets
 All tangible assets are carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost includes 

purchase price and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

 Gain or loss arising from de-recognition of a fixed asset is measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is 
derecognised.

(c)  Intangible assets
 Costs relating to acquisition and development of computer software are capitalized in accordance with the AS 26 

‘Intangible Assets’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and are amortised using the straight line 
method over a period of five years, which is the management’s estimate of its useful life.

(d) Depreciation on tangible fixed assets
 Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided using the Straight Line Method (‘SLM’) as per the useful life of the asset 

estimated by the management.

Useful life estimated by the 
Group (in years)

Useful Life as per Schedule II 
(in years)

Building 50 60

Computer Server and Other Accessories 4 6

Computer Desktop and Laptops 3 3

Furniture and Fixtures 5 10

Office Equipments 5 5

Handheld devices 2 5

Vehicles 4 8

 Leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of the lease subject to a maximum lease period of 66 months.
 Tangible assets having an original cost up to H 5,000 individually are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

(e) Impairment
 The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment, based 

on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the asset. 

 After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

(f) Investments
 Investments, which are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which 

such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term 
investments. Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined in 
accordance with the NBFC/NHB directions. Investments in the units of mutual funds in the nature of current investments 
are valued at the net asset value declared by the mutual fund in respect of each particular scheme, in accordance with the 
NBFC/NHB directions. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to 
recognise a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.

Financials
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(g) Asset classification and Provisioning/write-off of Assets
(i) Loans including housing loans are classified as standard and non-performing assets in accordance with Company’s 

policy. A loan is  classified as NPA, where interest/ installment is overdue for a period of 90 days and above, from the 
day it becomes due.

(ii) Loans are provided for/written off, in accordance with Company’s policy, subject to the minimum provision required 
as per Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking 
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

(iii) Housing loans are provided for/written off, in accordance with Company’s policy, subject to the minimum provision 
required as per the National Housing Bank (NHB) Housing Finance Companies Directions, 2010 as amended from 
time to time.

 (h) Leases
 Where the Company is the lessor
 Assets given on operating leases are included in fixed assets. Lease income is recognised in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation are recognised as an expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognised immediately in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Where the Company is the lessee
 Lease arrangements where the Lessor effectively retains, substantially, all the risks and benefits of ownership of the 

leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Revenue recognition
 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 

revenue can be reliably measured.

i) Interest Income
 Interest income on loans given is recognised under the internal rate of return method.
 Such interest, where installments are overdue for 90 days and above, is recognised only when actually realised. Any 

such income, recognised and remaining unrealised after the installments have become overdue for 90 days and 
above, is reversed.

 Interest income on deposits with banks is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount 
outstanding and the applicable interest rate.

ii) Income from assignment / securitisation of loans and receivables
 Profit/premium arising at the time of securitisation / assignment of loan portfolio is amortised over the life of the 

underlying loan portfolio/securities and any loss arising therefrom is accounted for immediately. Income from 
interest strip (excess income spread) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss net of any losses when 
redeemed in cash. Interest retained under assignment of loan receivables is recognised on realization basis over the 
life of the underlying loan portfolio.

iii) Fee income
 Loan processing fee/document fee/stamp fee are recognised over the term of the loan in proportion to the interest 

accrued during the year. For the agreements foreclosed or transferred through assignment/securitisation, the 
unamortised portion of the fee is recognised as income to the Statement of Profit and Loss at the time of such 
foreclosure/transfer through assignment.

 Additional charges such as penal, dishonour, foreclosure charges, etc. are recognised on realisation basis.

iv) Income on discounted instruments
 Income on discounted instruments is recognised over the tenor of the instrument on straight line basis.
v) Commission and brokerage income
 Commission and brokerage income earned for the services rendered are recognised on accrual basis.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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vi) Dividend Income
 Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established by the balance sheet 

date.

vii)  Profit/Loss on sale of investments
 Profit/loss on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis. On disposal of an investment, the difference 

between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(j) Foreign currency transactions

i) Initial recognition
 Foreign currency transactions are recorded at exchange rate prevailing on date of transaction.

ii) Conversion
 Foreign currency monetary balances are reported using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.
 Non-monetary balances, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are 

reported using the exchange rate on the date of the transaction.

iii) Exchange differences
 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary balances or on the restatement of the Company’s 

monetary balances at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in 
the previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as expense in the year in which they arise.

(k) Retirement and Other Employee benefits

i)  Short Term Employee Benefits
 All short term employee benefits are accounted on undiscounted basis during the accounting period based on 

services rendered by employees.

ii)  Defined Contribution Plans
a) The contributions as specified by law are made to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and charged to 

the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contribution to the respective fund is due. There are no 
other obligations other than contribution payable to the provident fund.

b) Superannuation is provided for on accrual basis, in accordance with the Company’s policy.

iii) Defined Benefit Plans
 Gratuity liability is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end 

of each financial year. Actuarial gain or loss is recognised in full in the period in which they occur in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

iv)  Leave benefits
 Accumulated leave balance, which is expected to be utilised within the next twelve months, is treated as short term 

employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it 
expects to incur as a result of unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

(l) Income taxes
 Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid 

to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to 
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

 Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting 
income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured 
based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets 
are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. In situations where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation 
or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing 
evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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 At each balance sheet date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrecognised 
deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be that 
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

 Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax. The Company 
recognises MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay 
normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the 
year in which the Company recognises MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for 
Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income Tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of 
credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT credit 
entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing 
evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

(m) Earnings per share
 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 

(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equity shares.

 (n) Provisions & Contingencies
 A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an 

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable 
estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate 
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted 
to reflect the current best estimates.

 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present 
obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised 
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence 
in the financial statements.

 (o) Cash and cash equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term 

investments with original maturity of three months or less.

(p) Share based payments
 In case of stock appreciation rights, measurement and disclosure of the employee share-based payment plan is done 

in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments, issued by the ICAI. The 
Company measures compensation cost relating to stock appreciation rights using the fair value method. Compensation 
expense is amortised over the vesting period of the option on a straight line basis.

(q) Borrowing costs
 Ancillary borrowing costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings are amortised over the tenure of the 

respective borrowings except with respect to expenses incurred on issue of debt securities, which are debited against 
securities premium account in accordance with Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(r) Loan origination costs
 Loan origination costs such as credit verification, contact point verification, agreement stamping and direct selling agents 

commission are recognised as expense over the contractual tenor of the loan agreements in proportion to the interest 
accrued during the year. For the agreements foreclosed or transferred through assignment, the unamortised portion of 
the loan acquisition costs are recognised as charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss at the time of such foreclosure/
transfer through assignment/securitisation.
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(s) Operating cycle
 Assets and Liabilities are classified as current and non-current based on the operating cycle which has been estimated to 

be 12 months. All assets and liabilities which are expected to be realised and settled, within a period of 12 months from the 
date of Balance Sheet have been classified as current and other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

(t) Cash flow statement
 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/(loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted 

for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or 
payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated based on the 
available information.

(u) Commercial papers issued
 Commercial papers issued by the Company are recognised at redemption value net of unamortised finance charges. 

The difference between redemption value and issue value is amortised on a time basis and is disclosed separately under 
finance charges.

2.2 Change of accounting estimates:

a. The Reserve Bank of India vide circular No. DBR.No.BP.BC.37/21.04.048/2016-17 dated 21 November 2016 and DBR.
No.BP.BC.49/21.04.048/2016-17 dated 28 December 2016 has provided a dispensation on prudential norms in the form 
of short-term deferment of classification of loan accounts as sub-standard. Accordingly, the Holding Company has 
availed the said dispensation for certain categories of its loan products whereby loan accounts aggregating H 17,602 lakhs 
continue to be classified as standard assets as at March 31, 2017. 

       However, the Company has performed a qualitative assessment of its loan portfolio and accordingly, revised its estimates 
of provisioning for standard assets. Had the Company applied the estimates followed in the previous year, the profit 
before tax for the year would have been higher by H 16,327 lakhs.

b. During the current year, the subsidiary company FIHFC has revised the estimate of provision on standard assets. Had the 
Company used the estimate applicable in previous year the provision on standard assets would have been lower by H 260 
lakhs.

2.3  Change of accounting policy:

 During the year, the Company has changed the policy of recognition of borrowing expenses incurred in connection with the 
issuance of debentures, from amortisation over the tenure of debentures issued to adjusting the same against securities 
premium account. 

 Accordingly, debenture issue expenses aggregating H 2,519 lakhs (net of tax of H 1,333 lakhs) have been adjusted against 
securities premium account. Had the Company applied the policy followed till the previous year, the profit before tax for the 
year would have been lower by H 657 lakhs.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of H10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one 
vote per share.

Any dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. Dividend declared and paid would be in Indian rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, 
after distribution of all the preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders.

(c) Shares held by holding /ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates

Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding Company, ultimate holding Company and their subsidiaries/
associates are as below:

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Angelica Investments Pte Ltd, Singapore, the holding company and its nominees

1,894,815,162 (31 March 2016: 1,835,905,000) equity shares of H10 each fully paid)  189,482  183,591

Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte Ltd, Singapore,

holding company of Angelica Investments Pte Ltd

85,256,357 (31 March 2016: 85,256,357) equity shares of H10 each fully paid)  8,526  8,526

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Authorised Shares

2,500,000,000 (31 March 2016: 2,500,000,000) equity shares of H10 each  250,000  250,000

 250,000  250,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares

1,980,071,519 (31 March 2016: 1,921,161,357) equity shares of H10 each  198,007  192,116

198,007  192,116

3. Share Capital

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity Shares 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

No. of Shares B lakhs No. of Shares B lakhs

At the beginning of the year  1,921,161,357  192,116  1,858,661,357  185,866

Issued during the year  58,910,162  5,891 62,500,000  6,250

Outstanding at the end of year  1,980,071,519 198,007  1,921,161,357 192,116
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(d) Shares issued for consideration other than cash

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Equity shares of B 10 each allotted to Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte Ltd., the holding 
Company of erstwhile Fullerton Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., for consideration other than cash, 
pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation approved by the Honorable High Court, Bombay.

 85,256,357  85,256,357

(e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

No. of Shares % holding in the class No. of Shares % holding in the class

 Equity shares of H 10 each fully paid

Angelica Investments Pte. Ltd, 
Singapore, the holding company

 1,894,815,162 95.69%  1,835,905,000 95.56%

 As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders 
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

General Reserve  96  96

 (A)  96  96

Capital Reserve  349  349

 (B)  349  349

Securities Premium Account

Balance as per the last financial statements  9,446  696

Add: Securities premium on issue of shares  14,108  8,750

Less: Utilisation towards debenture issue expenses (refer note 23)  (2,519) -

Closing Balance  (C)  21,035 9,446

Reserve Fund under Section 45 - IC of the RBI Act, 1934

Balance as per the last financial statements  21,910  13,958

Add: Amount transferred from surplus balance in the

statement of profit and loss  4,286  7,952

Closing Balance  (D)  26,196  21,910

Surplus/(Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss

Balance as per the last financial statements  (12,872)  (44,178)

Add: Profit for the year 20,211  39,258

Less: Transferred to Statutory Reserve (@ 20% of profit after tax

as required by section 45-IC of The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934)  (4,286)  (7,952)

Net Surplus/(Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss (E) 3,053  (12,872)

Total reserves and surplus (A+B+C+D+E)  50,729  18,929

4. Reserves and Surplus

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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(B lakhs)

Particulars  Non Current portion  Current Maturities

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Term Loans

Indian rupee loan from banks (secured)*  342,151  350,701  133,946  174,333 

Indian rupee loan from banks (unsecured)  -    -    -    11,500 

Debentures

Debentures (secured)**  418,430  273,300  48,800  23,690 

Debentures (unsecured)  69,100  62,000  -    -   

Total  829,681  686,001  182,746  209,523 

The above amount includes

Secured Borrowings  760,581  624,001  182,746  198,023 

Unsecured Borrowings  69,100  62,000  -    11,500 

Less: Amount disclosed under the head  
other current liabilities (refer note 9)

 -    -    182,746  209,523 

Total  829,681 686,001  -  -

Term loan outstanding as on 31 March 2017 : B1,833 Lakhs; 31 March 2016 : B3,465 Lakhs.

* Indian rupee loan from banks are secured by first pari passu charge over all loan receivables except specific charge on 
specific loan receivables for one of the financial institution.

**  Debentures are secured by first pari passu charge over all loan receivables and immovable property.

5. Long Term Borrowings

Terms of repayment of term loans as on 31 March 2017

Original maturity of loan 
(in no. of days)

Rate of 
Interest

Due within 1 Year Due 1 to 2 Year Due 2 to 3 Years More than 3 Years Total

 No. of 
installments

H Lakhs  No. of 
installments

H Lakhs  No. of 
installments

H Lakhs  No. of 
installments

H Lakhs H Lakhs

Monthly repayment schedule

More than 1460 09% - 11%  12  1,632  1  201  -    -    -    -    1,833 

Quarterly repayment schedule

731-1095 09% - 11%  6  4,500  -    -    -    -    -    -    4,500 

1096-1460 09% - 11%  12  15,417  8  3,333  8  3,333  4  1,667  23,750 

More than 1460
08% - 09%  22  25,037  22  25,037  21  23,370  17  19,537  92,980 

09% - 11%  36  29,778  34  29,944  33  31,944  17  15,035  106,701 

Half yearly repayment schedule

731-1095
08% - 09%  1  1,667  -    -    -    -    -    -    1,667 

09% - 11%  3  1,875  9  5,583  9  5,042  -    -    12,500 

1096-1460
08% - 09%  1  2,500  -    -    -    -    -    -    2,500 

09% - 11%  1  1,875  2  3,750  1  1,875  -    -    7,500 

More than 1460
08% - 09%  4  8,750  8  10,375  11  14,708  15  14,417  48,250 

09% - 11%  11  26,917  18  34,917  17  30,000  9  17,083  108,917 

Yearly repayment schedule

731-1095 09% - 11%  -    -    1  500  2  1,000  -    -    1,500 

1096-1460 08% - 09%  1  5,000  -    -    -    -    -    -    5,000 

More than 1460
08% - 09%  3  7,500  2  5,000  2  3,333  2  1,667  17,500 

09% - 11%  1  1,500  2  6,500  2  6,500  2  11,500  26,000 

Bullet repayment schedule

731-1095 08% - 09%  -    -    -    -    1  10,000  -    -    10,000 

1096-1460 08% - 09%  -    -    -    -    1  5,000  -    -    5,000 

Total  114  133,947  107  125,140  108  136,106  66 80,905  476,098 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 
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5. Long Term Borrowings (Contd.)

Terms of repayment of term loans as on 31 March 2016

Original maturity of loan 
(in no. of days)

Rate of 
Interest

Due within 1 Year Due 1 to 2 Year Due 2 to 3 Years More than 3 Years Total

 No. of 
installments

H Lakhs  No. of 
installments

H Lakhs  No. of 
installments

H Lakhs  No. of 
installments

H Lakhs H Lakhs

Monthly repayment schedule

1096-1460 11% - 12%  6  25,000  -    -    -    -    -    -    25,000 

More than 1460 09% - 11%  12  1,632  12  1,632  1  201  -    -    3,465 

Quarterly repayment schedule

731-1095 09% - 11%  10  8,362  6  4,500  -    -    -    -    12,862 

1096-1460 09% - 11%  37  48,873  8  13,750  -    -    -    -    62,623 

More than 1460 09% - 11%  29  22,466  50  41,569  50  45,736  69  55,729  165,500 

Half yearly repayment schedule

731-1095 09% - 11%  2  3,333  1  1,667  -    -    -    -    5,000 

1096-1460 09% - 11%  2  5,000  1  2,500  -    -    -    -    7,500 

More than 1460 09% - 11%  11  28,167  18  40,083  21  42,667  25  39,667  150,584 

Yearly repayment schedule

1096-1460 09% - 11%  1  5,000  1  5,000  -    -    -    -    10,000 

More than 1460 09% - 11%  3  6,500  3  6,500  4  11,500  6  23,000  47,500 

Bullet repayment schedule

1096-1460
09% - 11%  1  11,500  1  15,000  -    -    -    -    26,500 

11% - 12%  2  20,000  -    -    -    -    -    -    20,000 

Total  116  185,833  101  132,201  76  100,104  100 118,396  536,534 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Terms of repayment of NCD as on 31 March 2016

Original maturity of loan 
(in no. of days)

Rate of Interest Due within 1 Year Due 1 to 2 Year Due 2 to 3 Year More than 3 Years Total

H Lakhs H Lakhs H Lakhs H Lakhs H Lakhs

Issued at par and redeemable at par

366-730
08% - 09%  2,500  3,950  -    -    6,450 

09% - 11%  -    3,350  -    -    3,350 

731-1095 09% - 11%  8,800  33,000  1,700  -    43,500 

1096-1460
08% - 09%  -    -    11,500  -    11,500 

09% - 11%  11,390  7,500  5,500  -    24,390 

More than 1460
09% - 11%  1,000  1,000  32,500  210,300  244,800 

11% - 12%  -    -    11,190  13,810  25,000 

Total  23,690  48,800  62,390  224,110  358,990 

Terms of repayment of NCD as on 31 March 2017

Original maturity of loan 
(in no. of days)

Rate of Interest Due within 1 Year Due 1 to 2 Year Due 2 to 3 Year More than 3 Years Total

H Lakhs H Lakhs H Lakhs H Lakhs H Lakhs

Issued at par and redeemable at par

366-730
08% - 09%  3,950  -    -    -    3,950 

09% - 11%  3,350  -    -    -    3,350 

731-1095
08% - 09%  -    25,000  25,000  -    50,000 

09% - 11%  33,000  1,700  -    -    34,700 

1096-1460
08% - 09%  -    11,500  106,500  12,500  130,500 

09% - 11%  7,500  5,500  10,000  -    23,000 

More than 1460

08% - 09%  -    -    -    19,930  19,930 

09% - 11%  1,000  32,500  51,500  160,900  245,900 

11% - 12%  -    11,190  -    13,810  25,000 

Total  48,800  87,390  193,000  207,140  536,330 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

5. Long Term Borrowings (Contd.)

Particulars of Secured Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures:

Particulars Face Value  

(H Lakhs)

Quantity Date of Redemption 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

10.45% Series 27C 5  500 3/Nov/2023  2,500  2,500 

9.85% Series 24 10  400 22/May/2023  4,000  4,000 

10.60% Series 22 10  750 28/Apr/2023  7,500  7,500 

8.99% Series 49 10  500 July 15, 2022  5,000  -   

9.16% Series33C 10  230 20/May/2022  2,300  2,300 

10.00% Series 29AII 5  1,800 30/Dec/2021  9,000  9,000 

8.25% Series 53 10  713 November 22, 2021  7,130  -   

9.20% Series32II 10  1,500 28/May/2021  15,000  15,000 

8.95% Series 42 10  100 10/May/2021  1,000  -   

8.95% Series 41 10  180 29/Apr/2021  1,800  -   

9.22% Series34BII 10  700 8/Mar/2021  7,000  7,000 

9.05% Series34F 10  100 18/Jan/2021  1,000  1,000 

9.25% Series33DIII 10  1,000 30/Dec/2020  10,000  10,000 

9.05% Series36A 10  1,500 30/Dec/2020  15,000  15,000 

9.50% Series37 10  4,000 15/Dec/2020  40,000  40,000 

9.10% Series34DII 10  250 30/Nov/2020  2,500  2,500 

9.05% Series35 10  1,500 28/Nov/2020  15,000  15,000 

8.00% Series 55 10  1,250 April 30, 2020  12,500  -   

9.85% Series 29AI 5  1,200 14/Apr/2020  6,000  6,000 

9.30% Series 30DII 10  250 29/Jan/2020  2,500  2,500 

9.42% Series 30B 10  500 9/Dec/2019  5,000  5,000 

9.10% Series34DI 10  400 29/Nov/2019  4,000  4,000 

8.59% MS001 10  5,000 November 23, 2019  50,000  -   

8.90% Series 47 10  500 September 16, 2019  5,000  -   

8.45% Series 52 10  1,000 August 12, 2019  10,000  -   

8.35% Series 50 10  1,500 August 2, 2019  15,000  -   

8.79% Series 51 10  250 July 23, 2019  2,500  -   

8.80% Series 48 10  2,000 July 8, 2019  20,000  -   

9.90% Series 28 5  3,000 24/Jun/2019  15,000  15,000 

8.90% Series 46 10  250 7/Jun/2019  2,500  -   

9.10% Series32I 10  1,500 28/May/2019  15,000  15,000 

9.73% Series 44 10  1,000 27/May/2019  10,000  -   

8.90% Series 45 10  200 24/May/2019  2,000  -   

8.90% Series 39(ii) 10  50 29/Apr/2019  500  -   

8.85% Series 40 10  1,550 19/Apr/2019  15,500  -   

8.90% Series 38 10  600 4/Apr/2019  6,000  -   

8.90% Series 39(i) 10  250 3/Apr/2019  2,500  -   

7.97% Series 54 10  1,250 March 22, 2019  12,500  -   

9.30% Series 30DI 10  250 29/Jan/2019  2,500  2,500 

10.90% Series 27F 5  1,000 7/Jan/2019  5,000  5,000 

8.95% Series34E 10  150 17/Dec/2018  1,500  1,500 

11.00% Series 27E 5  1,000 10/Dec/2018  5,000  5,000 

8.90% Series34C 10  1,000 15/Oct/2018  10,000  10,000 

8.90% Series 43 10  1,250 17/Sep/2018  12,500  -   

9.10% Series34BI 10  150 7/Sep/2018  1,500  1,500 

9.30% Series 25 10  500 14/Jun/2018  5,000  5,000 

9.11% Series33DII 10  170 25/May/2018  1,700  1,700 

9.50% Series 23 10  1,000 8/May/2018  10,000  10,000 

9.05% Series33A 10  400 30/Apr/2018  4,000  4,000 
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5. Long Term Borrowings (Contd.)

Particulars of Secured Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures:

Particulars Face Value  

(H Lakhs)

Quantity Date of Redemption 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

10.05% Series 31A 10  500 12/Mar/2018  5,000  5,000 

9.20% Series 30C 10  250 23/Jan/2018  2,500  2,500 

10.00% Series 20E 10  100 15/Jan/2018  1,000  1,000 

9.00% Series34A 10  1,050 7/Aug/2017  10,500  10,500 

9.11% Series33F 10  1,250 17/Jul/2017  12,500  12,500 

9.06% Series33E 10  220 6/Jul/2017  2,200  2,200 

9.05% Series31C 10  1,000 30/May/2017  10,000  10,000 

9.11% Series33DI 10  115 24/May/2017  1,150  1,150 

8.98% Series31B 10  395 11/Apr/2017  3,950  3,950 

10.29% Series 27G 5  360 27/Jan/2017  -    1,800 

10.00% Series20D 10  100 15/Jan/2017  -    1,000 

8.96% Series33B 10  250 9/Jan/2017  -    2,500 

10.80% Series 27D 5  500 7/Nov/2016  -    2,500 

10.95% Series 27A 5  200 18/Oct/2016  -    1,000 

10.95% Series 26 5  3,000 7/Oct/2016  -    7,890 

10.30% Series 27I 5  240 16/May/2016  -    1,200 

10.34% Series 27H 5  160 18/Apr/2016  -    800 

10.25% Series 27J 5  1,000 18/Apr/2016  -    5,000 

Total  467,230  296,990 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars of Unsecured Redeemable Non Convertible Debenture (subordinated debt)

Particulars Face Value  

(H Lakhs)

Quantity Date of Redemption 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

9.25% SubdebtsSeries 10 10  250 March 23, 2026  2,500  2,500 

9.30% SubdebtsSeries 9II 10  250 February 25, 2026  2,500  2,500 

9.50% SubdebtsSeries 7I 10  1,000 October 13, 2025  10,000  10,000 

9.50% SubdebtsSeries 5I 10  250 June 10, 2025  2,500  2,500 

9.60% Subdebts Series 4 10  500 December 26, 2024  5,000  5,000 

10.50% Subdebts Series 3 5  1,000 October 28, 2023  5,000  5,000 

9.30% SubdebtsSeries 9I 10  250 April 25, 2023  2,500  2,500 

11.40% Subdebts Series 2C 10  500 October 28, 2022  5,000  5,000 

9.40% SubdebtsSeries 7II 10  500 October 13, 2022  5,000  5,000 

11.40% Subdebts Series 2B 10  400 September 28, 2022  4,000  4,000 

11.40% Subdebts Series 1B 10  481 September 14, 2022  4,810  4,810 

9.40% SubdebtsSeries 6II 10  250 August 3, 2022  2,500  2,500 

9.40% SubdebtsSeries 5II 10  200 June 10, 2022  2,000  2,000 

9.50% SubdebtsSeries 8 10  250 June 25, 2021  2,500  2,500 

11.25% Subdebts Series 2A 10  100 June 27, 2018  1,000  1,000 

11.25% Subdebts Series 1A 10  519 June 14, 2018  5,190  5,190 

9.30% Subdebts Series 11 10  210 April 30, 2026  2,100  -   

8.75% Subdebts Series 12(i) 10  250 April 26, 2024  2,500  -   

8.75% Subdebts Series 12(ii) 10  250 April 25, 2025  2,500  -   

Total  69,100  62,000 
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6. Other Long Term Liabilities

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Interest accrued but not due on debentures  2,084  1,969 

Employee benefits payable  1,112  1,157 

Unamortised income

 Unamortised loan processing fees  7,561  5,136 

 Unamortised income on securitisation  7  42 

Others  185  187 

Total  10,949  8,491 

(B lakhs)

Particulars Long Term Short Term

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity (refer note 33)  22  10  -    35 

Provision for superannuation  -    -    1  -   

Provision for leave benefits  -    -    57  26 

Other provisions

Provision for standard assets (refer note 2.2)  15,922  5,727  8,419  2,742 

Provision for sub-standard assets  12,087  7,350  -    -   

Provision for securitised loans  2  10  32  24 

Provision for security deposits  86  86  -    -   

Total  28,119  13,183  8,509  2,827 

7. Provisions

8. Short Term Borrowings
(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Loan repayable on demand

Cash credit from banks (unsecured)  9,963  7,503 

Other loans and advances

Indian rupee loan from banks (unsecured)  -    5,000 

Commercial paper (unsecured)*  109,748  109,187 

Total  119,711  121,690 

The above amount includes

Unsecured borrowings  119,711  121,690 

Total  119,711  121,690 

*Commercial paper carries interest in the range of 6.90% to 8.70% p.a. and tenure of 182 to 365 days repayable in bullet payment.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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9. Other Current Liabilities
(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Other liabilities
Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 5)  182,746  209,523 
Expenses and other payable  9,620  9,186 
Employee benefits payable  6,410  5,567 
Bank balances (Book overdraft)  24,341  41,014 
Interest accrued but not due
 On debentures  27,576  15,093 
 On bank loans  708  763 
Undisputed statutory dues payable  765  971 
Payable towards asset assignment / securitisation  3,273  4,024 
Others  8,169  7,713 
Unamortised income
 Unamortised loan processing fees  5,063  7,810 
 Unamortised income on securitisation  35  91 
Total  268,706  301,755 

Particulars Office 
Equipments

Furniture 
& Fixtures

 Computers & 
Accessories

 Leasehold 
Improvements

Vehicles Land & 
Building*

Leased 
Assets

Total

 Cost 
 At 1 April 2015  2,765  2,485  4,344  3,268  88  6  125  13,080 

 Addition  559  458  774  419  -    -    13  2,223 

 Disposals  131  152  157  138  -    -    -    578 

 At 31 March 2016  3,193  2,791  4,961  3,549  88  6  138  14,725 
 Addition  737  595  1,618  439  85  -    -    3,475 

 Disposals  200  312  78  438  -    -    -    1,028 

 At 31 March 2017  3,730  3,074  6,501  3,550  173  6  138  17,172 
 Depreciation  -   
 At 1 April 2015  2,034  2,115  3,524  2,868  27  -    42  10,611 

 Charge for the year  426  283  579  357  16  -    34  1,696 

 Disposals  128  146  156  134  -    -    -    564 

 At 31 March 2016  2,332  2,252  3,947  3,092  44  -    76  11,742 
 Charge for the year  512  346  850  249  26  -    34  2,017 

 Disposals  195  300  77  436  -    -    -    1,008 

 At 31 March 2017  2,649  2,298  4,720  2,905  70  -    110  12,751 
Impairment  -
At 1 April 2015  8  14  3  13  -    -    -    38 

Additions  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Charge/(release) for the year  (8)  (14)  (3)  (13)  -    -    -    (38)

At 31 March 2016  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Additions  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Charge/(release) for the year  (8)  (14)  (3)  (13)  -  -  -  (38)

At 31 March 2017  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -
Net Block
At 31 March 2016  860  539  1,014  457  44  6  62  2,983 
At 31 March 2017  1,081  776  1,781  645  103  6  28  4,421 
The Company does not have any other leasehold assets except as disclosed above.

All assets have been recognised at cost

Capital Work in Progress
At 31 March 2016  6  2  266  1  -    -    -    276 
At 31 March 2017  133  55  104  -    -    -    -    292 
* Mortgaged as security deposit against secured  non-convertible debentures

10. Tangible Assets 
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11. Intangible Assets

12. Non-Current Investments
(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Non Trade Investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Investment in equity instruments (unquoted)

a ) Others

 50,000 (31 March 2016: 50,000) equity shares of H 10 each  5  5

 fully paid-up in Alpha Micro Finance Consultants Private Limited

  8,397 (31 March 2016: Nil ) equity shares of H10 each  100 -

  fully paid-up in DigiLend Analytics and Technology Pvt. Ltd. 

Net Value 105 5

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  105 5

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Deferred tax liability

Unamortised ancillary cost of borrowings  345  1,346 

Unamortised loan origination costs  3,248  3,184 

Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/ 
amortisation charged for the financial reporting

 7  3 

Gross deferred tax liability (A)  3,600  4,533 

13. Deferred Tax Asset (Net)

(B lakhs)

Particulars Computer Software Total

Gross block
At 1 April 2015  6,159  6,159 
Additions  1,940  1,940 
Disposals  325  325 
At 31 March 2016  7,774  7,774 
Additions  1,380  1,380 
Disposals  -    -   
At 31 March 2017  9,154  9,154 
Amortisation
At 1 April 2015  5,062  5,062 
Charge for the year  742  742 
Deductions  71  71 
At 31 March 2016  5,733  5,733 
Charge for the year  782  782 
Deductions  -    -   
At 31 March 2017  6,515  6,515 
Net block
At 31 March 2016  2,040  2,040 
At 31 March 2017  2,639  2,639 
Capital Work in Progress
At 31 March 2016  113  113 
At 31 March 2017  68  68 
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(B lakhs)

Particulars Non Current Current

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

 A Portfolio loans

  a. Secured, considered good*

   Loans  464,318  456,051  73,129  57,432 

  b.  Secured, considered doubtful**

   Loans  32,270  16,314  -    -   

  c.  Unsecured, considered good*

   Loans  288,066  277,784  311,921  293,400 

  d.  Unsecured, considered doubtful**

   Loans  5,519  5,178  -    -   

  Sub-Total  790,173  755,327  385,050  350,832 

 B Security deposits

  Unsecured, considered good  1,739  1,594  91  102 

  Unsecured, considered doubtful  86  86  -    -   

  Sub-Total  1,825  1,680  91  102 

C Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

  Unsecured, considered good  384  645  5  -   

 Sub-Total  384  645  5  -   

14. Loans And Advances

13. Deferred Tax Asset (Net) (Contd.)

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Deferred tax assets

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year but 
allowed for tax purposes on payment basis

 234  175 

Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/ 
amortisation charged for the financial reporting

 1,644  1,853 

Provision for diminution in the value of investments  140  32 

Provision for standard assets,doubtful debts and advances  11,684  5,476 

Provision for security deposits  30  30 

Unamortised loan processing fees  4,369  4,480 

Provision for expenses disallowed as per Income-tax Act, 1961  415  554 

Interest income on non-performing loans recognised for tax purposes  1,128  554 

Provision for Gratuity (FIHFCL)  6  1 

Unabsorbed carried forward losses (FIHFCL)  289  78 

Preliminary expenses (FIHFCL)  49  -   

 Gross deferred tax asset                                                      (B)  19,987  13,232 

 Net deferred tax asset                                                      (B-A)  16,387  8,699 

 Net deferred tax asset recognised (refer note below)  15,804  8,613 

Note:
The subsidiary, FIHFCL, has not recognised net deferred tax asset amounting to B583 Lakhs in the absence of virtual certainity 
supported by convincing evidence that sufficient taxable income will be available in future years against which such deferred tax 
assets can be realised.
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(B lakhs)

Particulars Non Current Current

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

D  Other loans and advances

  Retained interest receivable on securitisation  15  52  33  106 

  Advance Income Tax (net of provision for tax )  2,210  1,322  -    -   

  MAT credit entitlement (refer note 35)  6,126  12,677  -    -   

  Prepaid expenses  6  16  1,149  812 

  Loans and advances to employees  25  7  8  9 

  Others  10  6  11,062  989 

  Sub-Total  8,392  14,080  12,252  1,916 

E  Capital advances

  Unsecured, considered good  375  552  -    -   

  Sub-Total  375  552  -    -   

Total (A+B+C+D+E)  801,149  772,284  397,398  352,850 

* Represents standard assets in accordance with the Company’s asset classification policy (refer note 2.1 (g) and 2.2)

** Represents non-performing assets in accordance with the Company’s asset classification policy (refer note 2.1 (g))

14. Loans And Advances (Contd.)

(B lakhs)

Particulars Non Current Current

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Non Current bank balances (refer note 18)  9,896  224  -    -   
Unamortised ancillary cost of borrowings  652  2,707  346  1,183 
Unamortised loan origination costs  6,397  6,013  2,989  3,188 
Surplus in gratuity fund  -    -    106  -   
Interest accrued and due
 On secured loans  -    -    629  542 
 On unsecured loans  -    -    3,227  683 
Interest Accrued but not due
 On deposits placed with banks  2  -    2,532  2,464 
 On government securities  -    -    271  -   
 On debentures and bonds  -    -    1,027  168 
 On secured loans  -    -    5,161  5,713 
 On unsecured loans  -    -    8,981  7,975 
Other Assets  -    -    2  2 
Total  16,947  8,944  25,271  21,918 

15. Other Assets

16. Current Investments
(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Current Investments (valued at lower of cost and fair value, unless stated otherwise)
a) Quoted: Government securities

2,000,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units 7.61 % 2030 Government Securities 2,072 -

7,000,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units 7.59 % 2026 Government Securities 7,337 -

3,500,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units 6.97 % 2026 Government Securities 3,567 -

7,500,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units 0% INR GOI TB 18/01/2018 7,089 -

5,000,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units 0% INR GOI TB 01/06/2017 4,938 -

b) Unquoted: Certificate of deposits 

15,000 (31 March 2016: 22,500) units of H100,000 each of Axis Bank Limited 14,414 21,759

16,500 (31 March 2016: 17,500) units of H100,000 each of ICICI Bank Limited 16,116 16,966

19,500 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H100,000 each of NABARD 18,509 -

20,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H100,000 each of Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 19,322 -

 5,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H100,000 each of IndusInd Bank Limited 4,783 -

11,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H100,000 each of IDFC Bank Limited 13,726 -
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(B lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

 5,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H100,000 each of SIDBI 8,456 -

 2,500 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H100,000 each of HDFC Bank 2,472 -

 2,500 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H100,000 each of Credit Sussie 2,470 -

Nil (31 March 2016: 10,000) units of H100,000 each of Canara Bank - 9,312

Nil (31 March 2016: 7,500) units of H100,000 each of IDBI Bank Limited - 7,363

Nil (31 March 2016: 2,500) units of H100,000 each of DCB Bank - 2,466

Nil (31 March 2016: 5,000) units of H100,000 each of State Bank of Hyderabad - 4,666

c)  Unquoted: Investment in Commercial Papers

3,000 (31 March 2016: 4,000) units of Rs 500,000 each of Housing Development Finance Corporation Ltd. 14,594 19,644

d) Unquoted: Mutual funds (At net asset value) 

191,330.67 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H1,000 each in Tata Money Market Fund Option - Direct Plan - Growth 4,904 -

14,296,676.46 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H10 each in Sundaram Money Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 4,903 -

318,378.27 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H1,000 each in DSP BlackRock Liquidity Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 7,405 -

154,897.41 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H1,000 each in SBI Premier Liquid Fund - Direct Plan -Growth 3,953 -

271,860.71 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H1,000 each in Axis Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option 4,902 -

273,651.25 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H1,000 each in HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option 8,781 -

Nil (31 March 2016: 624,183.35) units of H10 each in ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund - Direct Growth - 1,308

Nil (31 March 2016: 218,036.11) units in Birla Sun Life Cash Plus - Growth - Direct Plan - 531

Nil (31 March 2016: 24,480.17) units DSP BlackRock Liquidity Fund - Direct Plan -Growth - 531

Nil (31 March 2016: 22,644.38) units in Reliance Liquid Fund - Cash Plan - Direct Plan -Growth - 554

Nil (31 March 2016: 16,786.28) units in Franklin India Treasury Management Account - Super Institutional - Direct 

- Growth

- 380

e) Quoted: Investment in Corporate Bonds

1,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of 8.57% Bond H5,00,000 each fully paid up in HDFC Ltd. 5,063 -

 1,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of 8.29% NCD H1,000,000 each fully paid up in NABARD. 10,156 -

500 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of 8.40% NCD H1,000,000 each fully paid up in PFC Ltd. 5,073 -

f) Unquoted: Investment in Corporate Bonds

Nil (31 March 2016: 150) units of 9.84% NCD H1,000,000 each fully paid up in Housing Development Finance 

Corporation Ltd

- 1,510

Nil (31 March 2016: 250) units of 9.75% NCD H1,000,000 each fully paid up in LIC Housing Finance Ltd. - 2,525

Nil (31 March 2016: 250) units of 8.28% NCD H1,000,000 each fully paid up in Rural Electrification Corporation Limited - 2,507

g) Unquoted: Investment in equity shares

6,68,328 (31 March 2016: 6,68,328) equity shares of H10 each fully paid-up in SWAWS Credit Corporation India 

Private Limited 

67 67

h) Unquoted: Investment in debentures

22,278 (31 March 2016: 22,278) units of H100 each fully paid-up  12% Optionally Convertible Debentures in 

SWAWS Credit Corporation India Private Limited

22 22

   (A) 195,094 92,111

Less: Provision for diminution in value  (B) (89) (89)

Net Value   ((A)-(B)) 195,005 92,022

Aggregate Amount of quoted investment (at Cost Price:Rs 45,000 lacs , (31 March 2016:Nil)) 45,292 -

Aggregate Amount of unquoted investment (at Cost Price Rs 1,49,501, (31 March 2016: Rs 92,022)) 149,713 92,022

16. Current Investments (Contd.)

(B lakhs)

Particulars Non Current Current

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Other receivable
Unsecured, considered good  -  -  381  657 
Total  -  -  381  657 

17. Trade Receivables
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19. Revenue From Operations
(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Interest income on loans  229,135  193,234 

Income from asset assignment and securitisation  3,156  1,161 

Interest on bank deposits  5,822  5,270 

Interest on investments  3,458  5,388 

Other operating revenue

Processing fees  13,783  12,049 

Ancillary income from operations  4,808  4,255 

Total  260,162  221,357 

20. Other Income
(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Profit on sale of investments  3,296  3,918 

Profit on sale of fixed assets (net)  18  22 

Miscellaneous income  3,232  2,628 

Total  6,546  6,568 

18. Cash and Bank Balances

(B lakhs)

Particulars Non Current Current

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Cash and cash equivalents:

 Cash on hand  -  -  948  1,127 

 Balances with Banks

 - On Current accounts  7,714  12,093 

  - Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months  -  -  1,100  -   

(A)  -  -  9,762  13,220 

Other bank balances

  - Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months*  9,896  224  40,823  52,491 

  - Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months*  -    -    4,346  16,576 

  but less than 12 months

(B)  9,896  224  45,169  69,067 

 9,896  224  54,931  82,287 

Less: amount disclosed under non current assets 
(refer note15) (C)

 (9,896)  (224)  -    -   

Total   ((A)+(B)+(C))  -    -    54,931  82,287 

* H 224 lakhs (31 March 2016 : H 224 lakhs) pledged as cash collateral in connection with securitisation of loan portfolio.
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21. Employee Benefit Expense
(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Salaries, bonus and allowances  41,654  33,595 
Contribution to provident and other funds  1,607  1,103 
Gratuity expense (refer note 33)  438  351 
Staff welfare expenses  1,436  1,162 
Total  45,135  36,211 

22. Other Expenses
(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Printing and stationery  1,187  1,003 
Rent  3,365  2,712 
Rates and taxes  349  606 
Insurance  8  36 
Business promotion expenses  304  1,028 
Commission, Brokerage and Lead Generation  6,521  6,141 
Legal charges  226  242 
Professional charges  6,651  6,165 
Collection expenses  3,599  4,145 
Courier charges  475  414 
Repairs and maintenance
 Office premises  1,397  1,446 
 Others  891  727 
Directors' sitting fees  48  33 
Travelling expenses  2,316  1,978 
Telecommunication expenses  1,099  866 
Payment to auditors (refer details below)  64  62 
Electricity charges  778  732 
Security charges  259  181 
Recruitment expenses  223  193 
Training expenses  387  397 
Fees and subscription  49  37 
Corporate social responsibility expenses  613  518 
Miscellaneous expenses  879  1,232 
Write off of fixed assets and intangible assets  4  265 
Total  31,692  31,160 
Payment to auditors
As auditor:
Audit fee  43  41 
Tax audit fee  7  6 
Limited review  6  5 
In other capacity:
Certification matters  4  7 
Reimbursement of expenses  4  3 
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23. Finance Costs
(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Interest

 On loans from banks  51,364  49,671 

 On debentures  44,433  31,557 

Premium on redemption of debentures  -    65 

Discount on commercial papers  7,043  11,449 

Amortisation of ancillary borrowing costs  590  1,490 

Bank charges and others  654  844 

Total  104,084  95,076 

24. Provisions and Write Offs
(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Bad debts written off during the year (net of recoveries)  30,151  14,371 

Provision against assigned loans  21  3 

Provision against standard assets  15,871  3,305 

Provision against sub standard assets  4,738  2,856 

Provision for diminution in value of investments  -    (9)

Unrealised loss on investments  314  -   

Total  51,095  20,526 

25. Earnings Per Equity Share
(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Profit after Tax  20,211  39,258 

Weighted average number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share  1,921,645,550  1,882,568,461 

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS  1,921,645,550  1,882,568,461 

Earnings per Share :

 Basic (H)  1.05  2.09 

 Diluted (H)  1.05  2.09 

 [Nominal value of shares H 10 each (Previous Year : H 10)]

26. Segment Information
 The Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e. financing, which has similar risks and returns for the purpose of AS 

- 17 on ‘Segment Reporting’ specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rules 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The 
Company operates in single geographical segment, i.e. domestic.
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27. Related Party Disclosures
Names and other details of related parties

Ultimate Holding Company Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited

Holding Companies
Angelica Investments Pte Ltd, Singapore (‘Angelica’)
Fullerton Financials Holdings Pte Ltd (Holding Company of Angelica)

Fellow Subsidiary
Fullerton Securities & Wealth Advisors Ltd.
Fullerton Financial Holdings (International) Pte Ltd
Temasek International (Private) Limited

Key Management Personnel Mr. Shantanu Mitra, Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

(B lakhs)

Transactions during the year Holding 
Companies

Subsidiaries Key Management 
Personnel

Fellow Subsidiary Total

31 March 
2017

31 March 
2016

31 March 
2017

31 March 
2016

31 March 
2017

31 March 
2016

31 March 
2017

31 March 
2016

31 March 
2017

31 March 
2016

Reimbursement for expenses incurred on 
behalf of the Company 

 3  2  -    -    -    -    10  15  13  17 

Expenses incurred by the Company on behalf 
of others

 -    -    -    -    -    -    1  1  1  1 

Issue of Share capital (including securities 
premium)

 20,000  15,000  -    -    -    -    -    -    20,000  15,000 

Salary and employee benefits 

 Mr. Shantanu Mitra  -    -    -    -    1,172  674  -    -    1,172  674 

28. Leases
a) Where the Company is the lessee:
 Premises are obtained on operating lease. The lease term ranges from 11 months to 134 months and are renewable/

cancellable at the option of the Company. Certain lease agreements contain clause for escalation of lease payments. 
There are no restrictions imposed by lease arrangements. There are no subleases. Lease payments during the year are 
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of future rentals payable on operating leases.

(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Operating lease payments recognized during the year 3,812 3,063

Minimum Lease Obligations

Not later than one year 3,539 2,755

Later than one year but not later than five years 10,198 7,473

Later than five years 4,419 2,246
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28. Leases (Contd.)

29. Cash and Cash Equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement

(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Cash and Bank Balance (refer note 18 ) 54,931 82,287 

Less: Other bank balances (refer note 18) (45,169) (69,067)

Balance considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents for Cash Flow Statement 9,762 13,220 

30. Contingent liability and Commitments
a) Contingent liabilities:

(B lakhs)

Description of the Liability Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Credit enhancement provided by the Company for the loans under securitisation 
arrangements (including cash collaterals and interest subordination)

270 282 

Contingent liability for litigations pending against the Company 23 36 

b) Capital and other commitments
(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for as at 31 March 2017 

is H 1,848 Lakhs (31 March 2016: H 1,922 Lakhs).

(ii) Loans sanctioned not yet disbursed as at 31 March 2017 were H 2,911 Lakhs (31 March 2016: H 4,593 Lakhs).

c)  The Company’s pending litigations, having an impact on the financial position, comprise certain proceedings pending with 
Income Tax and Service Tax authorities.  The Company has reviewed all such pending litigations and proceedings and has 
adequately provided wherever considered necessary.

 In addition, the Company is involved in other legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of 
business. The Company’s management does not reasonably expect that these legal actions, when ultimately concluded 
and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations or financial condition.
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b) Where the Company is the lessor:
 The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement for servers which form part of the tangible assets. This 

lease has a non-cancellable arrangement of 3 years. This lease contains a clause to enable upward revision of the rental 
charges on an annual basis according to prevailing market conditions.
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(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Operating lease rental recognized during the year 35 32
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Later than five years - -

Fullerton India Credit 
Company Limited
Annual Report 2016-17

Opportunities
Innovations
Transformation



31. Expenditure in Foreign Currency

32. Employee Stock Appreciation Rights
 The Company has an Employee Share based payment scheme, under which grants were made as per details provided below:

Grant 1 Grant 2 Grant 3 Grant 4 Grant 5 Grant 6
Date of Grant 30 Nov 2011 1 April 2013 1 April 2013 1 April 2014 1 April 2015 1 April 2016

Value of the Grant B 568 Lakhs B 706 Lakhs B 741 Lakhs B 750 Lakhs B 800 Lakhs B 935 Lakhs

Performance 

Condition
Achievement of Profit before tax (PBT) and Return on Equity (ROE) targets as per approved business plan

Graded Vesting 

(subject to 

achievement of 

performance 

condition given above)

Tranche I: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2013

Tranche I: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2015

Tranche I: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2016

Tranche I: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2017

Tranche I: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2018

Tranche I: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2019

Tranche II: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2014

Tranche II: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2016

Tranche II: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2017

Tranche II: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2018

Tranche II: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2019

Tranche II: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2020

Tranche III: 34% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2015

Tranche III: 34% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2017

Tranche III: 34% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2018

Tranche III: 34% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2019

Tranche III: 34% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2020

Tranche III: 34% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2021

Vesting period 

(including 

performance period)

Tranche I: 2 years Tranche I: 2 years 

8 months

Tranche I: 3 years 

8 months

Tranche I: 3 years 

8 months

Tranche I: 3 years 

8 months

Tranche I: 3 years 

8 months

Tranche II: 3 years Tranche II: 3 years 

8 months

Tranche II: 4 years 

8 months

Tranche II: 4 years 

8 months

Tranche II: 4 years 

8 months

Tranche II: 4 years 

8 months

Tranche III: 4 

years

Tranche III: 4 

years 8 months

Tranche III: 5 

years 8 months

Tranche III: 5 

years 8 months

Tranche III: 5 

years 8 months

Tranche III: 5 

years 8 months

Exercise period Within 30 days from each vesting date but not later than 2 years from the date of last vesting.

Method of Settlement Cash Payout

The estimated fair value of the grant at a notional value of H 10 per unit (as at the date of grant) is as below:

Particulars Grant 1 Grant 2 Grant 3 Grant 4 Grant 5 Grant 6
As at 31 March 2017 H 27.56 H 19.97 H 19.97 H 17.01 H 13.74 H 10.89
As at 31 March 2016 H 24.97 H 18.22 H 18.22 H 15.52 H 12.54 Nil
As at 31 March 2015 H 19.49 H 14.53 H 14.53 H 12.38 Nil Nil
As at 31 March 2014 H 15.36 H 11.74 H 11.74 Nil Nil Nil
As at 31 March 2013 H 12.78 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
As at 31 March 2012 H 10.42 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Exercise price Vest 1 H 12.78 H 14.53 H 18.22 Nil Nil Nil
Exercise price Vest 2 H 15.36 H 18.22 Nil Nil Nil Nil
Exercise price Vest 3 H 19.49 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Fair value is computed using the method provided in the scheme for estimating the valuation of the grant which is linked to the Net 
Book Value of the business.
Adjustment has been made for the resignations during the year ended 31 March 2017 and the consequential impact of forfeiture of 
the grant.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(B lakhs)
Expenditure in Foreign Currency Year ended 

31 March 2017
Year ended 

31 March 2016
Travelling expenses 20 21
Ancillary borrowing costs 1,015 450
Training expenses 52 43
Repairs and maintenance 17 10
Directors sitting fees and commission 36 12
Bank charges and Others - 1
Total 1,140 537
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33. Retirement and Other Employee Benefits
 The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a 

gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service.
 The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the 

amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the plan.

Statement of Profit and Loss
Gratuity expense (recognised in Employee benefit expense):

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Current service cost 173 243

Interest cost on benefit obligation 90 69

Expected return on plan assets (87) (56)

Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year 261 95

Past service cost - -

Net Benefit Expense 437 351

Actual return on plan assets 178 41

32. Employee Stock Appreciation Rights (Contd.)

The movement of the stock appreciation rights during the year is as under: 
Year ended 31 March 2017

Particulars (No. of Options) Grant - 1 Grant - 2 Grant - 3 Grant - 4 Grant - 5 Grant - 6 Total H Lakhs

Grants outstanding at the beginning of the year  1,022,000  4,168,400  4,630,000  6,350,000  7,475,000  -    23,645,400  2,365 

Grants made during the year  -    -    -    -    -    9,350,000  9,350,000  935 

Grants forfeited on resignation of employees  -    314,900  500,000  800,000  750,000  1,000,000  3,364,900  336 

Grants vested  -    92,400  99,000  -    -    -    191,400  19 

Grants exercised  880,400  1,976,700  1,032,900  -    -    -    3,890,000  389 

Grants outstanding – unvested at the end of the year  -    1,428,000  2,767,100  5,550,000  6,725,000  8,350,000  24,820,100  2,482 

Grants outstanding – vested and exercisable  141,600  448,800  330,000  -    -    -    920,400  92 

Expense arising from the grants made till 31 March 
2017(Rupees Lakhs)

 4  90  144  231  245  218  931  931 

Year ended 31 March 2016

Particulars (No. of Options) Grant - 1 Grant - 2 Grant - 3 Grant - 4 Grant - 5 Total H Lakhs

Grants outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,399,800 4,920,000 5,030,000 7,300,000 - 18,649,800  1,865 

Grants made during the year         -                       -   -                     -   8,000,000 8,000,000  800 

Grants forfeited on resignation of employees 34,000 200,500 400,000 950,000 525,000 2,109,500  211 

Grants vested 1,108,400 1,590,600        -              -                 -   2,699,000  270 

Grants exercised 343,800 551,100                -       -             -   894,900  89 

Grants outstanding – unvested at the end of the year               -   3,128,900 4,630,000 6,350,000 7,475,000 21,583,900  2,158 

Grants outstanding – vested and exercisable 1,022,000 1,039,500 -                     -                          -   2,061,500  206 

Expense arising from the grants made till 31 March 
2016 (Rupees Lakhs)

87 276 236 236 207 1,041  1,041 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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Balance Sheet
Details of Provision for gratuity:

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Defined benefit obligation 1,639 1,155

Fair value of plan assets 1,723 1,110

Less: Unrecognised Past Service Cost - -

Plan asset/(liability) 84 (45)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Opening defined benefit obligation               1,154 861 

Interest cost                 90 69 

Current service cost               173 243 

Transfer (out)/in                 - -

Benefits paid                (131)  (99)

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation                 353 80 

Closing defined benefit obligation            1,639 1,154 

33. Retirement and Other Employee Benefits (Contd.)

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Opening fair value of plan assets               1,110               691 

Expected return                 87                 56 

Contributions by employer               565               477 

Benefits paid                (131)                (99)

Actuarial gains/(losses)                92                (15)

Closing fair value of plan assets            1,723            1,110 

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Investments with insurer % 100 100

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date applicable to the 
period over which obligation is to be settled. There has been a significant change in the expected rate of return on assets due to the 
stock market scenario.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity liability for the Company’s plans are shown below:  (B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Discount rate 7.22% 7.80%
Expected rate of return on assets 7.22% 7.80%

Employee Turnover Category 1 - For basic upto H1.2 lakhs
Upto 4 yrs 42.30% and 5 yrs & above 2% at 
each age
Category 2 - For basic more than H1.2 lakhs
Upto 4 yrs 25.3% and 5 yrs & above 2% at 
each age

Category 1 - For basic upto H1.2 lakhs
Upto 4 yrs 40.50% and 5 yrs & above 2% at 
each age
Category 2 - For basic more than H1.2 lakhs
Upto 4 yrs 23.1% and 5 yrs & above 2% at 
each age

Future Salary rise 10% 10%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other 
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Amounts for the current period and previous periods are as follows:
(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2015 31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Defined benefit obligation 1,639 1,154 861 581 253

Plan assets 1,723 1,110 691 310 172

Surplus/(deficit) (84) (45) (170) (271) (81)

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 215 (13) 498 117 64

Experience adjustments on plan assets 92 (15) 475 (5) -

34. The Company identifies suppliers registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) 
by obtaining confirmations from all suppliers. Based on the information received by the Company, some of the suppliers have 
confirmed to be registered under MSMED Act, 2006. Accordingly the disclosure relating to amount unpaid as at the year ended 
together with interest paid/payable is disclosed below:

(B lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

1 The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) 
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

69 38

2 The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro Small 
and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006, along with the amounts of the 
payment made  to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting 
year  

- -

3 The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 
adding the interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development 
Act, 2006.

- -

4 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid  at the end of each accounting 
year;

- -

5 The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small 
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as  a deductible expenditure under 
section 23 of the Micro small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

- -

33. Retirement and other employee benefits (Contd.)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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35. During the year FICCL has utilised MAT credit entitlement of H6,551 lakhs against provision for current tax of H18,883 lakhs 
(including adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods).

36. The subsidiary, FIFSED has made an application to the Regional Director, Western Region, Ministry of Corporate Affairs for its 
conversion into a private limited company; vide application dated 29 April 2016.

 The outcome of the application is awaited as at the balance sheet date.

37. Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 
2016 as required by notification no. G.S.R 308 (E) dated March 30, 2017 

 (i)   Fullerton India Credit Company Limited
(B lakhs)

Particulars SBNs Other 
denomination 

Notes

Total

Closing cash in hand as on November 8, 2016 2,718 596 3,314

(+) Permitted receipts - 42,300 42,300

(+) Non-permitted receipts (refer Note 2 below) 3,151 - 3,151

(-) Permitted payments - 1,609 1,609

(-) Amount deposited in Banks 5,868 40,373 46,241

Closing cash in hand as on December 30, 2016 - 914 914

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

a)  In the ordinary course of business, the Group collected cash in Specified Bank Notes against loan obligations of the Group 
aggregating B2,857 lakhs and in addition, loan borrowers of the Group have directly deposited cash towards their loan 
repayments into the collection bank accounts of the Group with various banks, aggregating B289 lakhs, during the period from 
November 9, 2016 to December 30, 2016. The Group has relied on the denomination wise details provided by its banks for the 
disclosure of Specified Bank Notes.

b)  The Group had issued an advisory to its collection team and branches on November 9, 2016 to refrain from collection of 
Specified Bank Notes. A major portion of amount mentioned in note a) above relates to collections made before such advisory 
was issued and represent customer loan repayments in rural branches across the country where collections normally occur, 
through field collection teams.
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Name of the Entity Net Assets (Total Assets minus 
Total Liabilities)

Share in Profit or Loss

As % of 
consolidated 

net assets

Amount 

(B lakhs)

As % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

Amount 

(B lakhs)

Parent subsidiaries
Indian
1) Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited 14.6%  47,031 (6.0%)  (1,218)
2) Fullerton India Foundation for Social and Economic 
Development

0.0%  2 0.0%  -   

Total 14.6%  47,034 (6.0%)  (1,218)

(B lakhs)

Amount spent 
in cash

Yet to be paid 
in cash

Total

i)  Construction / acquistion of any asset  - -  -

ii)  On purpose other than (i) above  614 -  614

39. CSR Expenses

 i) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year H613 Lakhs
 ii) Amount spent during the year:

40. The Group has reclassified/regrouped previous year figures to conform to current year’s classification, where applicable.

38. Additional disclosures required by Schedule III of the Act

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fullerton India Credit Company Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Gan Chee Yen Shantanu Mitra 
Chairman  CEO and Managing Director 

Sd/-
Pankaj Malik  
Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : 18 May 2017

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 
statements of Fullerton India Credit Company Limited 
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash 
Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified 
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone 
financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into 

account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 
standards and matters which are required to be included in 
the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the 
Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give 
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made 
by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone 
financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the standalone financial 
statements give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2017, its profit 
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

To the Members of Fullerton India Credit Company Limited

Fullerton India Credit 
Company Limited
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 

2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, 
we give in the Annexure 1 a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2016;

(e) On the basis of written representations received 
from the directors as on March 31, 2017, and taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2017, from 
being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 
(2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(g)  With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given 
to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position in 
its financial statements – Refer Note 30 to the 
standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv. The Company has provided requisite disclosures 
in Note 38 in the financial statements as to the 
holding of Specified Bank Notes on November 
8, 2016 and December 30, 2016 as well as 
dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the 
period from November 9, 2016 to December 30, 
2016. Based on our audit procedures and relying 
on the management representation regarding 
the holding and nature of cash transactions, 
including those in Specified Bank Notes, we 
report that these disclosures are in accordance 
with the books of accounts maintained by 
the Company and as produced to us by the 
management. However, as stated in note 38 in 
the financial statements and as represented 
to us by the Management, the Company has 
received amount aggregating H31,50,61,500 
from transactions which are not permitted

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
ICAI Firm’s Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
per Viren H. Mehta
Partner
Membership Number: 048749

Mumbai
18 May 2017
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Re: Fullerton India Credit Company Limited
(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records 

showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the 
management during the year and no material 
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given 
by the management, the title deeds of immovable 
properties included in fixed assets are held in the 
name of the Company.

(ii) The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, 
accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(ii) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured 
or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3 (iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company and hence not commented 
upon.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments, 
guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which 

provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable 
and hence not commented upon.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within 
the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as 
amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the 
Order are not applicable.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the 
Central Government has not specified the maintenance 
of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for the 
services of the Company.

(vii) (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with 
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues 
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, 
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, 
duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other 
statutory dues applicable to it.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given 
to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of 
excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory 
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period 
of more than six months from the date they became 
payable.

(c) According to the records of the Company, the dues 
outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,  

Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 
“Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our 
report of even date
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Name of the Statute Nature of dues Amount under 
dispute (H)

Due Date Period to which 
it relates

 Forum where 
dispute is pending

Chapter V of the 
Finance Act, 1994

Service tax 416,282 Various Dates Various Dates Commissioner 
of Central Excise 
(Appeals)

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given by the management, the Company 
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a 
financial institution, bank or dues to debenture holders.

(ix) According to the information and explanations given by 
the management, the Company has not raised any money 
by way of initial public offer or further public offer, hence 
not commented upon.

 Further, monies raised by the Company by way of debt 
instrument and term loans were applied for the purpose 
for which those were raised, though idle/surplus funds 
which were not required for immediate utilization were 
gainfully invested in liquid assets payable on demand.

 (x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the 
purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial 
statements and according to the information and 
explanations given by the management, we report that no 
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by the 
officers and employees of the Company has been noticed 
or reported during the year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given by 
the management, the managerial remuneration has 
been paid and provided in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197, read 
with Schedule V to the Act.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. 
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company and hence not commented 
upon.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by 
the management, transactions with the related parties 

are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act 
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in 
the notes to the financial statements, as required by the 
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet, 
the Company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year and hence, reporting 
requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the 
Company and, not commented upon.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given by 
the management, the Company has not entered into 
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him as referred to in section 192 of 
Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, 
we report that the Company has registered as required, 
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
ICAI Firm’s Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
per Viren H. Mehta
Partner
Membership Number: 048749

Mumbai
18 May 2017

duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading 
“Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our 
report of even date

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of Fullerton India Credit Company Limited (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of 
the standalone financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards 
on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, 
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is 
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.

Report on Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

To the Members of Fullerton India Credit Company Limited
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
ICAI Firm’s Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
per Viren H. Mehta
Partner
Membership Number: 048749

Mumbai
18 May 2017
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(B lakhs)

Notes 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Equity and Liabilities
Shareholders’ funds
 Share capital 3  198,007  192,116 
 Reserves and surplus 4  52,395  19,377 
Non-current liabilities
 Long-term borrowings 5  798,681  686,001 
 Other long term liabilities 6  10,336  8,464 
 Long-term provisions 7  27,624  13,164 
Current liabilities
 Short-term borrowings 8  117,335  121,690 
 Other current liabilities 9  254,490  300,912 
 Short-term provisions 7  8,478  2,826 
TOTAL  1,467,346  1,344,550 
Assets
Non-current assets
 Fixed assets
   Tangible assets 10  4,368  2,949 
   Intangible assets 11  2,627  2,040 
   Assets under development 10 & 11  360  389 
 Non-current investments 12  36,105  6,005 
 Deferred tax asset (Net) 13  15,804  8,613 
 Long-term loans and advances 14  754,911  769,898 
 Other non-current assets 15  12,111  8,929 
Current assets
 Current investments 16  166,332  89,496 
 Trade receivables 17  381  657 
 Cash and bank balances 18  53,327  80,862 
 Short-term loans and advances 14  396,182  352,810 
 Other current assets 15  24,838  21,902 
TOTAL  1,467,346  1,344,550 
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017

S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm Registration number : 301003E/E300005 Fullerton India Credit Company Limited
Chartered Accountants

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
per Viren H. Mehta Gan Chee Yen Shantanu Mitra
Partner Chairman  CEO and Managing Director
Membership No. 048749
 Sd/-
 Pankaj Malik
 Chief Financial Officer and
 Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 18 May 2017 Date : 18 May 2017
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(B lakhs)

Notes 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Income

Revenue from operations 19  257,937  221,246 

Other income 20  6,320  6,448 

Total revenue (I)  264,257  227,694 

Expenses

Employee benefit expense 21  43,613  35,942 

Other expenses 22  30,691  30,712 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 10&11  2,778  2,434 

Finance costs 23  103,437  95,076 

Provisions and write-offs 24  50,617  20,516 

Total expenses (II)  231,136  184,680 

Profit before tax (III) =(I)-(II)  33,121  43,014 

Tax expenses

Current tax  18,641  11,869 

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods  242  -   

Deferred tax credit  (7,191)  (8,613)

Total tax expense (IV)  11,692  3,256 

Profit for the year (III)-(IV)  21,429  39,758 

Earnings per equity share ( H) 25

Basic (Computed on the basis of total profit for the year)  1.12  2.11 

Diluted (Computed on the basis of total profit for the year)  1.12  2.11 
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year ended 31 March 2017

S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm Registration number : 301003E/E300005 Fullerton India Credit Company Limited
Chartered Accountants

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
per Viren H. Mehta Gan Chee Yen Shantanu Mitra
Partner Chairman  CEO and Managing Director
Membership No. 048749
 Sd/-
 Pankaj Malik
 Chief Financial Officer and
 Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 18 May 2017 Date : 18 May 2017
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Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended 31 March 2017

(B lakhs)

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

A. Cash flow from operating activities:

 Net profit before taxation  33,121  43,014 

 Adjustment for computing operating profit before working capital changes:

 Depreciation and amortisation  2,778  2,434 

 Interest on fixed deposits and bonds  (6,340)  (5,309)

 Interest on investments  (2,798)  (5,264)

 Profit on sale of fixed assets  (18)  (22)

 Write off of fixed assets and intangible assets  4  265 

 Profit on sale of investments  (3,060)  (3,798)

 Unrealised (profit)/loss on investments  314  -   

 Provision for standard/sub standard assets and bad debts written off  50,303  20,526 

 Provision for employees benefits  (42)  (189)

 Amortisation of ancillary borrowing costs  586  1,490 

 Operating profit before working capital changes  74,848  53,146 

 Movements in working capital :

 (Increase)/decrease in long term loans and advances  (2,165)  (179,694)

 (Increase)/decrease in short term loans and advances  (53,635)  (80,108)

 (Increase)/ decrease in other non current assets  (104)  (1,485)

 (Increase)/decrease in other current assets  (2,633)  (2,938)

 (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables  276  (403)

 Increase/(decrease) in current liabilities  (18,690)  23,652 

 Increase/(decrease) in other long term liabilities  1,872  1,950 

 Cash generated from operations  (231)  (185,880)

 Income taxes paid  (10,548)  (10,603)

 Net cash from operating activities (A)  (10,779)  (196,483)

B. Cash flow from investing activities:

 Purchase of fixed assets and intangibles  (4,304)  (3,636)

 Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  39  28 

 Purchase of non-current investments  (100)  -   

 Investment in subsidiary company  (30,000)  (5,000)

 Purchase of current investments  (2,482,833)  (2,276,966)

 Sale/maturity of investments  2,401,165  2,246,402 

 Fixed deposit placed during the year  (50,641)  (69,446)

 Fixed deposit matured during the year  68,502  46,125 

 Interest received on fixed deposits and bonds  5,456  4,168 

 Interest received on investments  185  820 

 Net cash from investing activities (B)  (92,531)  (57,505)
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(B lakhs)

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

C. Cash flow from financing activities

 Proceeds from issuance of share capital (including share premium)  20,000  15,000 

 Proceeds from long term borrowings from banks and financial institutions  310,030  441,300 

 Proceeds from short term borrowings from banks and financial institutions  115,500  119,967 

 Repayment of long term borrowings from banks and financial institutions  (225,376)  (227,564)

 Repayment of short term borrowings from banks and financial institutions  (119,855)  (88,692)

 Payment of ancillary borrowing costs  (1,491)  (2,307)

 Net cash used in financing activities (C )  98,808  257,703 

 Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)+(C)  (4,502)  3,715 

 Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year  12,660  8,945 

 Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  8,158  12,660 

 (refer note 29 )

 Components of cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

 Cash and cheques on hand  948  1,127 

 With banks - on current account  7,210  11,533 

 Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  8,158  12,660 
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended 31 March 2017

S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm Registration number : 301003E/E300005 Fullerton India Credit Company Limited
Chartered Accountants

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
per Viren H. Mehta Gan Chee Yen Shantanu Mitra
Partner Chairman  CEO and Managing Director
Membership No. 048749
 Sd/-
 Pankaj Malik
 Chief Financial Officer and
 Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 18 May 2017 Date : 18 May 2017
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1. Corporate Information

 Fullerton India Credit Company Limited (‘the Company’) is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under 
the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company is a non-banking financial company (‘NBFC’) registered with the Reserve 
Bank of India (‘RBI’). The Company provides loans to small and medium enterprises for working capital and growth, loans for 
commercial vehicles and two-wheelers, home improvement loans, loans against property, personal loans, working capital 
loans for urban salaried and self-employed and loans for rural livelihood advancement and financing of various rural micro 
enterprises.

2. Basis of Preparation
 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 

in India (‘Indian GAAP’). The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the 
Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and the provisions of the RBI as 
applicable to an NBFC. The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost 
convention except as detailed in note 2.1(i). The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are 
consistent with those of the previous year, except for the change in accounting policy mentioned in point 2.3.

2.1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

 (a) Use of estimates
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make judgements, 

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent liabilities at the end of reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management’s knowledge 
of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring 
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in future periods.

(b) Tangible fixed assets
 All tangible assets are carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost includes 

purchase price and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

 Gain or loss arising from de-recognition of a fixed asset is measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is 
derecognised.

(c) Intangible assets
 Costs relating to acquisition and development of computer software are capitalized in accordance with the AS 26 

‘Intangible Assets’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) and are amortised using the straight 
line method over a period of five years, which is the management’s estimate of its useful life.

(d) Depreciation on tangible fixed assets
 Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided using the Straight Line Method (‘SLM’) as per the useful life of the asset 

estimated by the management.
 Useful life estimated by the Company

Useful life estimated by the 
Company (in years)

Useful Life as per Schedule II 
(in years)

Building 50 60

Computer Server and Other Accessories 4 6

Computer Desktop and Laptops 3 3

Furniture and Fixtures 5 10

Office Equipments 5 5

Handheld devices 2 5

Vehicles 4 8

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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 Leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of the lease subject to a maximum lease period of 66 months.
 Tangible assets having an original cost up to H 5,000 individually are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

(e) Impairment
 The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment, based 

on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the asset.

 After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

(f) Investments
 Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which 

such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term 
investments. Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined in 
accordance with the NBFC directions. Investments in the units of mutual funds in the nature of current investments 
are valued at the net asset value declared by the mutual fund in respect of each particular scheme, in accordance with 
the NBFC directions. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to 
recognise a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.

(g) Asset classification and Provisioning/write-off of Assets
(i) Loans are classified as standard and non-performing assets in accordance with Company’s policy. A loan is  

cla ssified as NPA, where interest/installment is overdue for a period of 90 days and above, from the day it 
becomes due.

(ii) Loans are provided for/written off, in accordance with Company’s policy, subject to the minimum provision   required 
as per Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking 
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

 (h) Leases
 Where the Company is the lessor
 Assets given on operating leases are included in fixed assets. Lease income is recognised in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation are recognised as an expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognised immediately in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Where the Company is the lessee
 Lease arrangements where the Lessor effectively retains, substantially, all the risks and benefits of ownership of the 

leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Revenue recognition
 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 

revenue can be reliably measured.

i) Interest Income
 Interest income on loans given is recognised under the internal rate of return method. 
 Such interest, where installments are overdue for 90 days and above, is recognised only when actually realised. Any 

such income, recognised and remaining unrealised after the installments have become overdue for 90 days and 
above, is reversed.

 Interest income on deposits with banks is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount 
outstanding and the applicable interest rate.

ii) Income from assignment / securitisation of loans and receivables
 Profit/premium arising at the time of securitisation / assignment of loan portfolio is amortised over the life of the 

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 
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underlying loan portfolio/securities and any loss arising therefrom is accounted for immediately. Income from 
interest strip (excess income spread) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss net of any losses when 
redeemed in cash. Interest retained under assignment of loan receivables is recognised on realization basis over the 
life of the underlying loan portfolio.

iii) Fee income
 Loan processing fee/document fee/stamp fee are recognised over the term of the loan in proportion to the interest 

accrued during the year. For the agreements foreclosed or transferred through assignment/securitisation, the 
unamortised portion of the fee is recognised as income to the Statement of Profit and Loss at the time of such 
foreclosure/transfer through assignment.

 Additional charges such as penal, dishonour, foreclosure charges, etc. are recognised on realisation basis.

iv) Income on discounted instruments
 Income on discounted instruments is recognised over the tenor of the instrument on straight line basis.

v) Commission and brokerage income
 Commission and brokerage income earned for the services rendered are recognised on accrual basis.

vi) Dividend Income
 Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established by the balance sheet 

date.

vii)  Profit/Loss on sale of investments

 Profit/loss on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis. On disposal of an investment, the difference 
between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(j)  Foreign currency transactions

i) Initial recognition
 Foreign currency transactions are recorded at exchange rate prevailing on date of transaction.

ii) Conversion
 Foreign currency monetary balances are reported using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.
 Non-monetary balances, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are 

reported using the exchange rate on the date of the transaction.

iii) Exchange differences
 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary balances or on the restatement of the Company’s 

monetary balances at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in 
the previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as expense in the year in which they arise.

(k) Retirement and Other Employee benefits

i)  Short Term Employee Benefits
 All short term employee benefits are accounted on undiscounted basis during the accounting period based on 

services rendered by employees.

ii)  Defined Contribution Plans
a) The contributions as specified by law are made to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and charged to 

the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contribution to the respective fund is due. There are no 
other obligations other than contribution payable to the provident fund.

b) Superannuation is provided for on accrual basis, in accordance with the Company’s policy.

iii)  Defined Benefit Plans
 Gratuity liability is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end 

of each financial year. Actuarial gain or loss is recognised in full in the period in which they occur in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 
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iv)  Leave benefits
 Accumulated leave balance, which is expected to be utilised within the next twelve months, is treated as short term 

employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it 
expects to incur as a result of unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

 (l) Income taxes

 Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid 
to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to 
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

 Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting 
income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured 
based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets 
are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. In situations where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation 
or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing 
evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits. 

 At each balance sheet date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrecognised 
deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be that 
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

 Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax. The Company 
recognises MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay 
normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the 
year in which the Company recognises MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for 
Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income Tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of 
credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT credit 
entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing 
evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

(m) Earnings per share

 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equity shares.

 (n) Provisions & Contingencies

 A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable 
estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate 
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted 
to reflect the current best estimates.

 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present 
obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised 
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence 
in the financial statements.
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 (o) Cash and cash equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term 

investments with original maturity of three months or less.

(p) Share based payments
 In case of stock appreciation rights, measurement and disclosure of the employee share-based payment plan is done 

in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments, issued by the ICAI. The 
Company measures compensation cost relating to stock appreciation rights using the fair value method. Compensation 
expense is amortised over the vesting period of the option on a straight line basis.

(q) Borrowing costs
 Ancillary borrowing costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings are amortised over the tenure of the 

respective borrowings except with respect to expenses incurred on issue of debt securities, which are debited against 
securities premium account in accordance with Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(r) Loan origination costs
 Loan origination costs such as credit verification, contact point verification, agreement stamping and direct selling agents 

commission are recognised as expense over the contractual tenor of the loan agreements in proportion to the interest 
accrued during the year. For the agreements foreclosed or transferred through assignment, the unamortised portion of 
the loan acquisition costs are recognised as charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss at the time of such foreclosure/
transfer through assignment/securitisation.

(s) Operating cycle
 Assets and Liabilities are classified as current and non-current based on the operating cycle which has been estimated to 

be 12 months. All assets and liabilities which are expected to be realised and settled, within a period of 12 months from the 
date of Balance Sheet have been classified as current and other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

(t) Cash flow statement
 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/(loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted 

for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or 
payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the 
available information.

(u) Commercial papers issued
 Commercial papers issued by the Company are recognised at redemption value net of unamortised finance charges. 

The difference between redemption value and issue value is amortised on a time basis and is disclosed separately under 
finance charges.

2.2 Change of accounting estimates:
 The Reserve Bank of India vide circular No. DBR.No.BP.BC.37/21.04.048/2016-17 dated 21 November 2016 and DBR.No.BP.

BC.49/21.04.048/2016-17 dated 28 December 2016 has provided a dispensation on prudential norms in the form of 
short-term deferment of classification of loan accounts as sub-standard. Accordingly, the Company has availed the said 
dispensation for certain categories of its loan products whereby loan accounts aggregating H17,602 lakhs continue to be 
classified as standard assets as at March 31, 2017.

 However, the Company has performed a qualitative assessment of its loan portfolio and accordingly, revised its estimates of 
provisioning for standard assets. Had the Company applied the estimates followed in the previous year, the profit before tax 
for the year would have been higher by H16,327 lakhs.

2.3 Change of accounting policy:
 During the year, the Company has changed the policy of recognition of borrowing expenses incurred in connection with the 

issuance of debentures, from amortisation over the tenure of debentures issued to adjusting the same against securities 
premium account.

 Accordingly, debenture issue expenses aggregating H2,519 lakhs (net of tax of H 1,333 lakhs) have been adjusted against 
securities premium account. Had the Company applied the policy followed till the previous year, the profit before tax for the 
year would have been lower by H657 lakhs.
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(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Authorised Shares

2,500,000,000 (31 March 2016: 2,500,000,000) equity shares of H10 each  250,000  250,000

 250,000  250,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares

1,980,071,519 (31 March 2016: 1,921,161,357) equity shares of H10 each  198,007  192,116

198,007  192,116

3. Share Capital

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity Shares 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

No. of Shares B Lakhs No. of Shares B Lakhs

At the beginning of the year  1,921,161,357  192,116  1,858,661,357  185,866

Issued during the year  58,910,162  5,891  62,500,000  6,250

Outstanding at the end of year  1,980,071,519 198,007   1,921,161,357 192,116

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of H10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one 
vote per share.

Any dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. Dividend declared and paid would be in Indian rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, 
after distribution of all the preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders.

(c)  Shares held by holding /ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates

Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding Company, ultimate holding Company and their subsidiaries/
associates are as below:

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Angelica Investments Pte Ltd, Singapore, the holding company and its nominees

1,894,815,162 (31 March 2016: 1,835,905,000) equity shares of H10 each fully paid)  189,482  183,591

Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte Ltd, Singapore,

holding company of Angelica Investments Pte Ltd  8,526  8,526

85,256,357 (31 March 2016: 85,256,357) equity shares of H10 each fully paid)

(d) Shares issued for consideration other than cash

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Equity shares of H10 each allotted to Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte Ltd., the holding 
Company of erstwhile Fullerton Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., for consideration other than cash, 
pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation approved by the Honorable High Court, Bombay.

 85,256,357  85,256,357
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(e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

No. of Shares % holding in the class No. of Shares % holding in the class

Equity shares of H10 each fully paid

Angelica Investments Pte. Ltd, 
Singapore, the holding company 

 1,894,815,162 95.69%  1,835,905,000 95.56%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders 
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

General Reserve  96  96

 (A)  96  96

Capital Reserve  349  349

 (B)  349  349

Securities Premium Account

Balance as per the last financial statements  9,446  696

Add: Securities premium on issue of shares 14,108 8,750

Less: Utilisation towards debenture issue expenses (2,519) -

Closing Balance  (C)  21,035  9,446

Reserve Fund under Section 45 - IC of the RBI Act, 1934

Balance as per the last financial statements 21,910  13,958

Add: Amount transferred from surplus balance in the

statement of profit and loss 4,286  7,952

Closing Balance  (D)  26,196 21,910

Surplus/(Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss

Balance as per the last financial statements  (12,424)  (44,230)

Add: Profit for the year  21,429  39,758

Less: Transferred to Statutory Reserve (@ 20% of profit after tax

as required by section 45-IC of The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934)  (4,286)  (7,952)

Net Surplus/(Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss  (E)  4,719  (12,424)

Total reserves and surplus (A+B+C+D+E)  52,395 19,377

4. Reserves and Surplus
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(B lakhs)

Particulars  Non Current portion  Current Maturities

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Term Loans

Indian rupee loan from banks (secured)*  311,151  350,701  132,696  174,333

Indian rupee loan from banks (unsecured)  -  -  -  11,500

Debentures

Debentures (secured)**  418,430  273,300  48,800  23,690

Debentures (unsecured)  69,100  62,000  -  -

Total  798,681  686,001  181,496  209,523

The above amount includes

Secured Borrowings  729,581  624,001  181,496  198,023

Unsecured Borrowings  69,100  62,000  -  11,500

Less: Amount disclosed under the head

other current liabilities (refer note 9) - - 181,496 209,523

Total  798,681  686,001  -  -

*Indian rupee loan from banks are secured by first pari passu charge over all loan receivables except specific charge on specific loan 
receivables for one of the financial institution.

** Debentures are secured by first pari passu charge over all loan receivables and immovable property.

5. Long Term Borrowings

Terms of repayment of term loans as on 31 March 2017

Original maturity 
of loan 

(in no. of days)

Rate of 
Interest

Due within 1 Year Due 1 to 2 Year Due 2 to 3 Years More than 3 Years Total

 No. of 
installments

H Lakhs  No. of 
installments

H Lakhs  No. of 
installments

H Lakhs  No. of 
installments

H Lakhs H Lakhs

Monthly repayment schedule

More than 1460 09% - 11%  12  1,632  1  201  -  -  -  -  1,833

Quarterly repayment schedule

731-1095 09% - 11%  6  4,500  -    -    -    -    -    -    4,500 

1096-1460 09% - 11%  12  15,417  8  3,333  8  3,333  4  1,667  23,750 

More than 1460
08% - 09%  22  25,037  22  25,037  21  23,370  17  19,537  92,980 

09% - 11%  36  29,777  34  29,944  33  31,944  17  15,035  106,700 

Half yearly repayment schedule

731-1095
08% - 09%  1  1,667  -    -    -    -    -    -    1,667 

09% - 11%  1  625  2  1,250  1  625  -    -    2,500 

1096-1460
08% - 09%  1  2,500  -    -    -    -    -    -    2,500 

09% - 11%  1  1,875  2  3,750  1  1,875  -    -    7,500 

More than 1460
08% - 09%  4  8,750  4  8,750  4  8,750  1  2,500  28,750 

09% - 11%  11  26,917  16  34,500  15  29,583  7  16,667  107,667 

Yearly repayment schedule

1096-1460 08% - 09%  1  5,000  -    -    -    -    -    -    5,000 

More than 1460
08% - 09%  3  7,500  2  5,000  2  3,333  2  1,667  17,500 

09% - 11%  1  1,500  2  6,500  2  6,500  2  11,500  26,000 

Bullet repayment schedule

731-1095 08% - 09%  -    -    -    -    1  10,000  -    -    10,000 

1096-1460 08% - 09%  -    -    -    -    1  5,000  -    -    5,000 

Total  112  132,697  93  118,265  89  124,314  50 68,571  443,847 
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Terms of repayment of NCD as on 31 March 2017

Original maturity of loan 
(in no. of days)

Rate of Interest Due within 1 Year Due 1 to 2 Year Due 2 to 3 Year More than 3 Years Total

H Lakhs H Lakhs H Lakhs H Lakhs H Lakhs

Issued at par and redeemable at par

366-730
08% - 09%  3,950  -    -    -    3,950 

09% - 11%  3,350  -    -    -    3,350 

731-1095
08% - 09%  -    25,000  25,000  -    50,000 

09% - 11%  33,000  1,700  -    -    34,700 

1096-1460
08% - 09%  -    11,500  106,500  12,500  130,500 

09% - 11%  7,500  5,500  10,000  -    23,000 

More than 1460

08% - 09%  -    -    -    19,930  19,930 

09% - 11%  1,000  32,500  51,500  160,900  245,900 

11% - 12%  -    11,190  -    13,810  25,000 

Total  48,800  87,390  193,000  207,140  536,330 

Terms of repayment of NCD as on 31 March 2016

Original maturity of loan 
(in no. of days)

Rate of Interest Due within 1 Year Due 1 to 2 Year Due 2 to 3 Year More than 3 Years Total

H Lakhs H Lakhs H Lakhs H Lakhs H Lakhs

Issued at par and redeemable at par

366-730
08% - 09%  2,500  3,950  -    -    6,450 

09% - 11%  -    3,350  -    -    3,350 

731-1095 09% - 11%  8,800  33,000  1,700  -    43,500 

1096-1460
08% - 09%  -    -    11,500  -    11,500 

09% - 11%  11,390  7,500  5,500  -    24,390 

More than 1460
09% - 11%  1,000  1,000  32,500  210,300  244,800 

11% - 12%  -    -    11,190  13,810  25,000 

Total  23,690  48,800  62,390  224,110  358,990 

5. Long Term Borrowings (Contd.)
Terms of repayment of term loans as on 31 March 2016

Original maturity 
of loan 

(in no. of days)

Rate of 
Interest

Due within 1 Year Due 1 to 2 Year Due 2 to 3 Years More than 3 Years Total
 No. of 

installments
H Lakhs  No. of 

installments
H Lakhs  No. of 

installments
H Lakhs  No. of 

installments
H Lakhs H Lakhs

Monthly repayment schedule
1096-1460 11% - 12%  6  25,000  -    -    -    -    -    -    25,000 
More than 1460 09% - 11%  12  1,632  12  1,632  1  201  -    -    3,465 
Quarterly repayment schedule
366-720 09% - 11%  -   
731-1095 09% - 11%  10  8,362  6  4,500  -    -    -    -    12,862 
1096-1460 09% - 11%  37  48,873  8  13,750  -    -    -    -    62,624 
More than 1460 09% - 11%  29  22,465  50  41,569  50  45,736  69  55,729  165,500 
Half yearly repayment schedule
731-1095 09% - 11%  2  3,333  1  1,667  -    -    -    -    5,000 
1096-1460 09% - 11%  2  5,000  1  2,500  -    -    -    -    7,500 
More than 1460 09% - 11%  11  28,167  18  40,083  21  42,667  25  39,667  150,583 
Yearly repayment schedule
1096-1460 09% - 11%  1  5,000  1  5,000  -    -    -    -    10,000 
More than 1460 09% - 11%  3  6,500  3  6,500  4  11,500  6  23,000  47,500 
Bullet repayment schedule
Less than 365 09% - 11%  1  11,500  1  15,000  -    -    -    -    26,500 
1096-1460 11% - 12%  2  20,000  -    -    -    -    -    -    20,000 
Total  116  185,833  101  132,201  76  100,104  100 118,396  536,534 
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Particulars of Secured Redemable Non-Convertible Debentures

Particulars Face Value  
(H Lakhs)

Quantity Date of  
Redemption

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

10.45% Series 27C 5  500 November 3, 2023  2,500  2,500 

9.85% Series 24 10  400 May 22, 2023  4,000  4,000 

10.60% Series 22 10  750 April 28, 2023  7,500  7,500 

8.99% Series 49 10  500 July 15, 2022  5,000  -   

9.16% Series 33C 10  230 May 20, 2022  2,300  2,300 

10.00% Series 29A II 5  1,800 December 30, 2021  9,000  9,000 

8.25% Series 53 10  713 November 22, 2021  7,130  -   

9.20% Series 32II 10  1,500 May 28, 2021  15,000  15,000 

8.95% Series 42 10  100 May 10, 2021  1,000  -   

8.95% Series 41 10  180 April 29, 2021  1,800  -   

9.22% Series 34BII 10  700 March 8, 2021  7,000  7,000 

9.05% Series 34F 10  100 January 18, 2021  1,000  1,000 

9.25% Series 33DIII 10  1,000 December 30, 2020  10,000  10,000 

9.05% Series 36A 10  1,500 December 30, 2020  15,000  15,000 

9.50% Series 37 10  4,000 December 15, 2020  40,000  40,000 

9.10% Series 34DII 10  250 November 30, 2020  2,500  2,500 

9.05% Series 35 10  1,500 November 28, 2020  15,000  15,000 

8.00% Series 55 10  1,250 April 30, 2020  12,500  -   

9.85% Series 29A I 5  1,200 April 14, 2020  6,000  6,000 

9.30% Series 30DII 10  250 January 29, 2020  2,500  2,500 

9.42% Series 30B 10  500 December 9, 2019  5,000  5,000 

9.10% Series 34DI 10  400 November 29, 2019  4,000  4,000 

8.59% MS001 10  5,000 November 23, 2019  50,000 

8.90% Series 47 10  500 September 16, 2019  5,000  -   

8.45% Series 52 10  1,000 August 12, 2019  10,000  -   

8.35% Series 50 10  1,500 August 2, 2019  15,000  -   

8.79% Series 51 10  250 July 23, 2019  2,500  -   

8.80% Series 48 10  2,000 July 8, 2019  20,000  -   

9.90% Series 28 5  3,000 June 24, 2019  15,000  15,000 

8.90% Series 46 10  250 June 7, 2019  2,500  -   

9.10% Series 32I 10  1,500 May 28, 2019  15,000  15,000 

9.73% Series 44 10  1,000 May 27, 2019  10,000  -   

8.90% Series 45 10  200 May 24, 2019  2,000  -   

8.90% Series 39(ii) 10  50 April 29, 2019  500  -   

8.85% Series 40 10  1,550 April 19, 2019  15,500  -   

8.90% Series 38 10  600 April 4, 2019  6,000  -   

8.90% Series 39(i) 10  250 April 3, 2019  2,500  -   

7.97% Series 54 10  1,250 March 22, 2019  12,500  -   

9.30% Series 30DI 10  250 January 29, 2019  2,500  2,500 

10.90% Series 27F 5  1,000 January 7, 2019  5,000  5,000 

8.95% Series 34E 10  150 December 17, 2018  1,500  1,500 

11.00% Series 27E 5  1,000 December 10, 2018  5,000  5,000 

8.90% Series 34C 10  1,000 October 15, 2018  10,000  10,000 

8.90% Series 43 10  1,250 September 17, 2018  12,500  -   

9.10% Series 34BI 10  150 September 7, 2018  1,500  1,500 

9.30% Series 25 10  500 June 14, 2018  5,000  5,000 

9.11% Series 33DII 10  170 May 25, 2018  1,700  1,700 

9.50% Series 23 10  1,000 May 8, 2018  10,000  10,000 

9.05% Series 33A 10  400 April 30, 2018  4,000  4,000 

10.05% Series 31A 10  500 March 12, 2018  5,000  5,000 

5. Long Term Borrowings (Contd.)
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Particulars of Secured Redemable Non-Convertible Debentures

Particulars Face Value  
(H Lakhs)

Quantity Date of  
Redemption

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

9.20% Series 30C 10  250 January 23, 2018  2,500  2,500 

10.00% Series 20E 10  100 January 15, 2018  1,000  1,000 

9.00% Series 34A 10  1,050 August 7, 2017  10,500  10,500 

9.11% Series 33F 10  1,250 July 17, 2017  12,500  12,500 

9.06% Series 33E 10  220 July 6, 2017  2,200  2,200 

9.05% Series 31C 10  1,000 May 30, 2017  10,000  10,000 

9.11% Series 33DI 10  115 May 24, 2017  1,150  1,150 

8.98% Series 31B 10  395 April 11, 2017  3,950  3,950 

10.29% Series 27G 5  360 January 27, 2017  -    1,800 

10.00% Series 20D 10  100 January 15, 2017  -    1,000 

8.96% Series 33B 10  250 January 9, 2017  -    2,500 

10.80% Series 27D 5  500 November 7, 2016  -    2,500 

10.95% Series 27A 5  200 October 18, 2016  -    1,000 

10.95% Series 26 5  3,000 October 7, 2016  -    7,890 

10.30% Series 27I 5  240 May 16, 2016  -    1,200 

10.34% Series 27H 5  160 April 18, 2016  -    800 

10.25% Series 27J 5  1,000 April 18, 2016  -    5,000 

Total  467,230  296,990 

Particulars of Unsecured Redeemable Non Convertible Debenture (subordinated debt)

Particulars Face Value 
(H Lakhs)

Quantity Date of Redemption 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

9.30% Subdebts Series 11 10  210 April 30, 2026  2,100  -   

9.25% Subdebts Series 10 10  250 March 23, 2026  2,500  2,500 

9.30% Subdebts Series 9II 10  250 February 25, 2026  2,500  2,500 

9.50% Subdebts Series 7I 10  1,000 October 13, 2025  10,000  10,000 

9.50% Subdebts Series 5I 10  250 June 10, 2025  2,500  2,500 

8.75% Subdebts Series 12(ii) 10  250 April 25, 2025  2,500  -   

9.60% Subdebts Series 4 10  500 December 26, 2024  5,000  5,000 

8.75% Subdebts Series 12(i) 10  250 April 26, 2024  2,500  -   

10.50% Subdebts Series 3 5  1,000 October 28, 2023  5,000  5,000 

9.30% Subdebts Series 9I 10  250 April 25, 2023  2,500  2,500 

11.40% Subdebts Series 2C 10  500 October 28, 2022  5,000  5,000 

9.40% Subdebts Series 7II 10  500 October 13, 2022  5,000  5,000 

11.40% Subdebts Series 2B 10  400 September 28, 2022  4,000  4,000 

11.40% Subdebts Series 1B 10  481 September 14, 2022  4,810  4,810 

9.40% Subdebts Series 6II 10  250 August 3, 2022  2,500  2,500 

9.40% Subdebts Series 5II 10  200 June 10, 2022  2,000  2,000 

9.50% Subdebts Series 8 10  250 June 25, 2021  2,500  2,500 

11.25% Subdebts Series 2A 10  100 June 27, 2018  1,000  1,000 

11.25% Subdebts Series 1A 10  519 June 14, 2018  5,190  5,190 

Total  69,100  62,000 

5. Long Term Borrowings (Contd.)
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6. Other Long Term Liabilities

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Interest accrued but not due on debentures  2,084  1,969 

Employee benefits payable  1,027  1,157 

Unamortised income

 Unamortised loan processing fees  7,034  5,109 

 Unamortised income on securitisation  7  42 

Others  184  187 

Total  10,336  8,464 

(B lakhs)

Particulars Long Term Short Term

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity (refer note 33)  -    -    -    34 

Provision for superannuation  -    -    1  -   

Provision for leave benefits  -    -    41  26 

Other provisions

Provision for standard assets (refer note 2.2)  15,460  5,718  8,404  2,742 

Provision for sub-standard assets  12,076  7,350  -    -   

Provision for securitised loans  2  10  32  24 

Provision for security deposits  86  86  -    -   

Total  27,624  13,164  8,478  2,826 

7. Provisions

8. Short Term Borrowings
(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Loan repayable on demand

Cash credit from banks (unsecured)  9,963  7,503 

Other loans and advances

Indian rupee loan from banks (unsecured)  -    5,000 

Commercial paper (unsecured)*  107,372  109,187 

Total  117,335  121,690 

The above amount includes

Unsecured borrowings  117,335  121,690 

Total  117,335  121,690 

*Cash Credit from banks  and Indian rupee loan from bank is secured by first pari passu charge over all loan receivables
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9. Other Current Liabilities
(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Other liabilities
Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 5)  181,496  209,523 
Expenses and other payable

(refer note 34 for details of dues to Micro Small and Medium Enterprises )

 9,153  9,079 

Employee benefits payable  6,109  5,514 
Bank balances (Book overdraft)  12,717  40,367 
Interest accrued but not due
 On debentures  27,576  15,093 
 On bank loans  640  763 
Undisputed statutory dues payable  680  949 
Payable towards asset assignment / securitisation  3,273  4,024 
Others  7,808  7,706 
Unamortised income
 Unamortised loan processing fees  5,003  7,803 
 Unamortised income on securitisation  35  91 
Total  254,490  300,912 

Particulars Office 
Equipments

Furniture 
& Fixtures

 Computers & 
Accessories

 Leasehold 
Improvements

Vehicles Land & 
Building*

Leased 
Assets

Total

Cost

At 1 April 2015  2,765  2,485  4,344  3,268  88  6  125  13,080 

Addition  559  458  736  419  -    -    13  2,186 

Deductions  131  152  157  138  -    -    -    578 

At 31 March 2016  3,193  2,791  4,924  3,549  88  6  138  14,688 

Addition  737  580  1,594  439  85  -    -    3,436 

Deductions  200  312  78  438  -    -    -    1,028 

At 31 March 2017  3,730  3,059  6,440  3,550  173  6  138  17,096 

Depreciation

At 1 April 2015  2,034  2,115  3,524  2,868  27  -    42  10,611 

Charge for the year  426  283  576  357  16  -    34  1,692 

Deductions  128  146  156  134  -    -    -    564 

At 31 March 2016  2,332  2,252  3,943  3,092  44  -    76  11,739 

Charge for the year  512  344  833  249  26  -    34  1,998 

Deductions  195  300  78  436  -    -    -    1,009 

At 31 March 2017  2,649  2,295  4,699  2,905  70  -    110  12,728 

Impairment

At 1 April 2015  8  14  3  13  -    -    -    38 

Additions  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Charge (release) for the year  (8)  (14)  (3)  (13)  -    -    -    (38)

At 31 March 2016  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Additions  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Charge/(release) for the year  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

At 31 March 2017  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Net Block

At 31 March 2016  860  539  980  457  44  6  62  2,949 

At 31 March 2017  1,081  763  1,741  645  104  6  28  4,368 

The Company does not have any other leasehold assets except as disclosed above.

All assets have been recognised at cost

Capital Work in Progress

At 31 March 2016  6  2  266  1  -    -    -    276 

At 31 March 2017  133  55  104  -    -    -    -    292 

* Mortgaged as security against secured non-convertible debentures

10. Tangible Assets (B lakhs)
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11. Intangible Assets

Particulars Computer Software Total

H Lakhs H Lakhs

Gross block
At 1 April 2015  6,159  6,159 
Additions  1,940  1,940 
Disposals  325  325 
At 31 March 2016  7,774  7,774 
Additions  1,367  1,367 
Disposals  -    -   
At 31 March 2017  9,141  9,141 
Amortisation
At 1 April 2015  5,062  5,062 
Charge for the year  742  742 
Deductions  71  71 
At 31 March 2016  5,733  5,733 
Charge for the year  781  781 
Deductions  -    -   
At 31 March 2017  6,514  6,514 
Net block
At 31 March 2016  2,040  2,040 
At 31 March 2017  2,627  2,627 
Capital Work in Progress
At 31 March 2016  113  113 
At 31 March 2017  68  68 

12. Non-Current Investments

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Non Trade Investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Investment in equity instruments (unquoted)

a) Wholly owned subsidiaries

 195,273,443 (31 March 2016: 57,619,048) equity shares of H10 each  36,000  6,000 

 fully paid-up in Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

 23,575 (31 March 2016: 23,575) equity shares of H10 each  2  2 

 fully paid-up in Fullerton India Foundation For Social & Economic Development

b ) Others

 50,000 (31 March 2016: 50,000) equity shares of H 10 each  5  5 

 fully paid-up in Alpha Micro Finance Consultants Private Limited

 8,397 (31 March 2016: Nil ) equity shares of H10 each  100  -   

 fully paid-up in DigiLend Analytics and Technology Pvt. Ltd.

  (A)  36,107  6,007 

Less: Provision for diminution in value  (B)  (2)  (2)

Net Value ((A)-(B))  36,105  6,005 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  36,107  6,007 
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(B lakhs)
Particulars Non Current Current

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
A Portfolio loans

 a. Secured, considered good*

  Loans  418,174  453,678  71,993  57,382 

 b.  Secured, considered doubtful**

  Loans  32,196  16,314  -    -   

 c.  Unsecured, considered good*

  Loans  288,066  277,784  311,921  293,400 

 d.  Unsecured, considered doubtful**

  Loans  5,519  5,178  -    -   

 Sub-Total  743,955  752,954  383,914  350,782 

B Security deposits

 Unsecured, considered good  1,739  1,594  91  102 

 Unsecured, considered doubtful  86  86  -    -   

 Sub-Total  1,825  1,680  91  102 

C Advances recoverable in cash or in

 kind or for value to be received  380  644  -    -   

 Unsecured, considered good  380  644  -    -   

 Sub-Total  380  644  -  -

D  Other loans and advances

 Retained interest receivable on securitisation  15  52  33  106 

 Advance Income Tax (net of provision for tax )  2,200  1,310  -    -   

 MAT credit entitlement  6,126  12,677  -    -   

14. Loans And Advances

13. Deferred Tax Asset (Net)
(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Deferred tax liability

Unamortised ancillary cost of borrowings  326  1,346 

Unamortised loan origination costs  3,136  3,179 

Gross deferred tax liability  3,462  4,525 

Deferred tax assets

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year but 
allowed for tax purposes on payment basis

 228  175 

Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/ 
amortisation charged for the financial reporting

 1,644  1,853 

Provision for diminution in the value of investments  140  32 

Provision for doubtful debts and advances  11,515  5,472 

Provision for security deposits  30  30 

Unamortised loan processing fees  4,166  4,469 

Provision for expenses disallowed as per Income-tax Act, 1961  415  554 

Interest income on non-performing loans recognised for tax purposes  1,128  554 

Gross deferred tax asset  19,266  13,138 

Net deferred tax asset  15,804  8,613 

Net deferred tax asset recognised  15,804  8,613 

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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(B lakhs)
Particulars Non Current Current

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
 Prepaid expenses  6  16  1,133  807 

 Advances to employees  25  7  8  9 

 Others  10  6  11,003  1,004 

 Sub-Total  8,382  14,068  12,177  1,926 

E  Capital advances

 Unsecured, considered good  369  552  -    -   

 Sub-Total  369  552  -    -   

Total (A+B+C+D+E)  754,911  769,898  396,182  352,810 

14. Loans And Advances (contd.)

(B lakhs)

Particulars Non Current Current

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Non Current bank balances (refer note 18)  5,396  224  -    -   
Unamortised ancillary cost of borrowings  611  2,707  332  1,183 
Unamortised loan origination costs  6,102  5,998  2,960  3,186 
Surplus on gratuity fund  -    -    106  -   
Interest accrued and due
On secured loans  -    -    606  542 
On unsecured loans  -    -    3,227  683 
Interest Accrued but not due
On deposits placed with banks  2  -    2,487  2,464 
On government securities  -    -    271  -   
On debentures and bonds  -    -    1,027  168 
On secured loans  -    -    4,841  5,701 
On unsecured loans  -    -    8,981  7,975 
Total  12,111  8,929  24,838  21,902 

15. Other Assets

16. Current Investments

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Current investments (valued at lower of cost and fair value, unless stated otherwise)

a) Quoted: Government securities and Treasury Bills

2,000,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units 7.61 % 2030 Government Securities  2,072  -   

7,000,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units 7.59 % 2026 Government Securities  7,337  -   

3,500,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units 6.97 % 2026 Government Securities  3,567  -   

7,500,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units 0% INR GOI TB 18/01/2018  7,089  -   

5,000,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units 0% INR GOI TB 01/06/2017  4,938  -   

b)  Unquoted: Certificate of deposits

12,500 (31 March 2016: 22,500) units of H100,000 each of Axis Bank Limited  11,944  21,759 

9,000 (31 March 2016: 17,500) units of H100,000 each of ICICI Bank Limited  8,791  16,966 

14,500 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H100,000 each of NABARD  13,776  -   

17,500 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H100,000 each of Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited  16,851  -   

5,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H100,000 each of IndusInd Bank Limited  4,783  -   

11,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H100,000 each of IDFC Bank Limited  10,761  -   

5,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H100,000 each of SIDBI  4,689  -   

Nil (31 March 2016: 10,000) units of H100,000 each of Canara Bank  -    9,312 

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

*   Represents standard assets in accordance with the Company’s asset classification policy (refer note 2.1 (g) and 2.2)
** Represents non-performing assets in accordance with the Company’s asset classification policy (refer note 2.1 (g))
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(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Nil (31 March 2016: 7,500) units of H100,000 each of IDBI Bank Limited  -    7,363 

Nil (31 March 2016: 2,500) units of H100,000 each of DCB Bank  -    2,466 

Nil (31 March 2016: 5,000) units of H100,000 each of State Bank of Hyderabad  -    4,666 
c) Unquoted: Investment in Commercial Papers

3,000 (31 March 2016: 4,000) units of Rs 500,000 each of Housing Development Finance Corporation Ltd.  14,594  19,644 
d) Unquoted: Mutual funds (At net asset value)

191,330.67 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H1,000 each in Tata Money Market Fund Option - Direct Plan - Growth  4,904  -   

14,296,676.46 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H10 each in Sundaram Money Fund - Direct Plan - Growth  4,903  -   

318,378.27 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H1,000 each in DSP BlackRock Liquidity Fund - Direct Plan - Growth  7,405  -   
154,897.41 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H1,000 each in SBI Premier Liquid Fund - Direct Plan -Growth  3,953  -   

271,860.71 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H1,000 each in Axis Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option  4,902  -   

273,651.25 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of H1,000 each in HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option  8,781  -   

Nil (31 March 2016: 371,071.51) units of H10 each in ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund - Direct Growth  -    778 

e) Quoted: Investment in Corporate Bonds

1,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of 8.57% Bond H5,00,000 each fully paid up in HDFC Ltd.  5,063  -   

1,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of 8.29% NCD H1,000,000 each fully paid up in NABARD  10,156  -   

500 (31 March 2016: Nil) units of 8.40% NCD H1,000,000 each fully paid up in PFC Ltd.  5,073  -   

f) Unquoted: Investment in Corporate Bonds

Nil (31 March 2016: 150) units of 9.84% NCD H1,000,000 each fully paid up in Housing Development Finance 

Corporation Ltd

 -    1,510 

Nil (31 March 2016: 250) units of 9.75% NCD H1,000,000 each fully paid up in LIC Housing Finance Ltd.  -    2,525 

Nil (31 March 2016: 250) units of 8.28% NCD H1,000,000 each fully paid up in Rural Electrification Corporation 

Limited

 -    2,507 

g) Unquoted: Investment in equity shares

6,68,328 (31 March 2016: 6,68,328) equity shares of H10 each fully paid-up in SWAWS Credit Corporation India 

Private Limited

 67  67 

h) Unquoted: Investment in debentures

22,278 (31 March 2016: 22,278) units of H100 each fully paid-up 12% Optionally Convertible Debentures in SWAWS 

Credit Corporation India Private Limited

 22  22 

   (A)  166,421  89,585 

Less: Provision for diminution in value (B)  (89)  (89)

Net Value {(A)-(B)}  166,332  89,496 

Aggregate Amount of quoted investment (at Cost Price : Rs 45,000 , (31 March 2016 : Nil))  45,293  -   

Aggregate Amount of unquoted investment (at Cost Price : Rs 1,20,828 , (31 March 2016 : Rs 87,434))  121,040  89,496 

16. Current Investments (contd.)

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(B lakhs)

Particulars Non Current Current

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

 Other receivable

 Unsecured, considered good  -  -  381  657 

 Total  -  -  381  657 

17. Trade Receivables

(B lakhs)
Particulars Non Current Current

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Cash and cash equivalents:

 Cash on hand  -    -    948  1,127 

 Balances with Banks

 - On Current accounts  -    -    7,210  11,533 

(A)  -    -    8,158  12,660 

18. Cash and Bank Balances
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18. Cash and Bank Balances (contd.)

19. Revenue From Operations

(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Interest income on loans  227,042  193,213 

Income from asset assignment and securitisation  3,156  1,161 

Interest on bank deposits  5,697  5,184 

Interest on investments  3,442  5,388 

Interest on loan to subsidiary  104  -   

Other operating revenue

Processing fees  13,749  12,048 

Ancillary income from operations  4,747  4,252 

Total  257,937  221,246 

20. Other Income
(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Profit on sale of investments  3,060  3,798 

Profit on sale of fixed assets (net)  18  22 

Miscellaneous income  3,242  2,628 

Total  6,320  6,448 

21. Employee Benefit Expense
(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Salaries, bonus and allowances  40,223  33,340 

Contribution to provident and other funds  1,564  1,094 

Gratuity expense (refer note 33)  425  348 

Staff welfare expenses  1,401  1,160 

Total  43,613  35,942 

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(B lakhs)
Particulars Non Current Current

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Other bank balances

- Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months*  5,396  224  40,823  52,491 

- Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but 

less than 12 months

 -    -    4,346  15,711 

(B)  5,396  224  45,169  68,202 

 5,396  224  53,327  80,862 

Less: amount disclosed under non current assets (refer note15)  (5,396)  (224)  -    -   

Total ((A)+(B))  -    -    53,327  80,862 

* H 224 lakhs (31 March 2016 : H224 lakhs) pledged as cash collateral in connection with asset securitisation.
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22. Other Expenses
(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Printing and stationery  1,175  1,002 

Rent  3,365  2,712 

Rates and taxes  349  364 

Insurance  8  36 

Business promotion expenses  228  995 

Commission, Brokerage and Lead Generation  6,482  6,140 

Legal charges  210  226 

Professional charges  6,325  6,111 

Collection expenses  3,599  4,145 

Courier charges  475  414 

Repairs and maintenance

 Office premises  1,394  1,446 

 Others  890  726 

Directors' sitting fees  32  28 

Travelling expenses  2,266  1,967 

Telecommunication expenses  1,094  866 

Payment to auditors (refer details below)  53  52 

Electricity charges  778  732 

Security charges  259  181 

Recruitment expenses  199  181 

Training expenses  383  396 

Fees and subscription  48  37 

Corporate social responsibility expenses  613  518 

Miscellaneous expenses  462  1,172 

Write off of fixed assets and intangible assets  4  265 

Total  30,691  30,712 

Payment to auditors

As auditor:

Audit fee  35  34 

Tax audit fee  6  5 

Limited review  6  5 

In other capacity:

Certification matters  3  5 

Reimbursement of expenses  3  3 

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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23. Finance Costs
(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Interest

 On loans from banks  50,798  49,671 

 On bonds & debentures  44,434  31,557 

Premium/discount on redemption of debentures  -    65 

Discount on commercial papers  6,984  11,449 

Amortisation of ancillary borrowing costs  586  1,490 

Bank charges and others  635  844 

Total  103,437  95,076 

24. Provisions and Write Offs

(B lakhs)
Particulars Year ended 

31 March 2017
Year ended 

31 March 2016
Bad debts written off during the year (net of recoveries)  30,151  14,371 

Provision against assigned loans  21  3 

Provision against standard assets  15,404  3,295 

Provision against sub standard assets  4,727  2,856 

Provision for diminution in value of investments  -    (9)

Unrealised loss on investments  314  -   

Total  50,617  20,516 

25. Earnings Per Share
(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Profit after Tax  21,429  39,758 

Weighted average number of shares used in computing

basic earnings per share  1,921,645,550  1,882,568,461 

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating

diluted EPS  1,921,645,550  1,882,568,461 

Earnings per Share :

 Basic (H)  1.12  2.11 

 Diluted (H)  1.12  2.11 

 [Nominal value of shares H 10 each (Previous Year : H 10)]

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

26. Segment Information
 The Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e. financing, which has similar risks and returns for the purpose of AS 

- 17 on ‘Segment Reporting’ specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rules 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The 
Company operates in single geographical segment, i.e. domestic.
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Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
27. Related Party Disclosures
Names and other details of related parties

Ultimate Holding Company Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited

Holding Companies
Angelica Investments Pte Ltd, Singapore (‘Angelica’)

Fullerton Financials Holdings Pte Ltd (Holding Company of Angelica)

Fellow Subsidiary

Fullerton Securities & Wealth Advisors Ltd.

Fullerton Financial Holdings (International) Pte Ltd

Temasek International (Private) Limited

Subsidiary
Fullerton India Foundation for Social & Economic Development (Not for profit Company)

Fullerton India Home Finance Company Ltd. 

Key Management Personnel Mr. Shantanu Mitra, Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

(B lakhs)

Transactions during the year Holding 
Companies

Subsidiaries Key Management 
Personnel

Fellow  
Subsidiary

Total

31 March 
2017

31 March 
2016

31 March 
2017

31 March 
2016

31 March 
2017

31 March 
2016

31 March 
2017

31 March 
2016

31 March 
2017

31 March 
2016

Reimbursement for expenses incurred on 
behalf of the Company 

 3 2  35  -    -    -    10  15  48  17 

Expenses incurred by the Company on behalf 
of others

 -    -    -    -    -    -    1  1  1  1 

Issue of Share capital (including securities 
premium)

 20,000 15,000  -    -    -    -    -    -    20,000  15,000 

Investment in equity shares  -    -    30,000  5,000  -    -    -    -    30,000  5,000 
Income as per Resource sharing agreement - -  432  56 - - - -  432  56 
Inter corporate loan given - -  5,000 - - - - -  5,000  -   
Inter corporate loan repaid - -  5,000 - - - - -  5,000  -   
Interest income earned on intercorporate 
loan

- -  104 - - - - -  104  -   

Fee for committed credit line - -  11 - - - - -  11  -   
Salary and employee benefits - - - - - - - - - -
Mr. Shantanu Mitra  -    -    -    -   1,172  674  -    -    1,172  674 
Balance outstanding as at the year end
Investment in equity shares 
Fullerton India Home Finance Company Ltd  -    -    36,000  6,000  -    -    -    -    36,000  6,000 
Fullerton India Foundation for Social & 
Economic Development

 -    -    2  2  -    -    -    -    2  2 

Other Receivables
Fullerton India Home Finance Company Ltd  -    -    124  34  -    -    -    -    124  34 
Other Payable
Fullerton India Home Finance Company Ltd  -    -    71  6  -    -    -    -    71  6 

28. Leases
a) Where the Company is the lessee:
 Premises are obtained on operating lease. The lease term ranges from 11 months to 134 months and are renewable/

cancellable at the option of the Company. Certain lease agreements contain clause for escalation of lease payments. 
There are no restrictions imposed by lease arrangements. There are no subleases. Lease payments during the year are 
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of future rentals payable on operating leases.
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Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Operating lease payments recognised during the year 3,812 3,063

Minimum Lease Obligations

Not later than one year 3,539 2,755

Later than one year but not later than five years 10,198 7,473

Later than five years 4,419 2,246

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Operating lease rental recognised during the year 35 32

Minimum Lease Obligations   

Not later than one year 24 35

Later than one year but not later than five years 11 34

Later than five years                            -                              -   

b) Where the Company is the lessor:
 The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement for servers which form part of the tangible assets. This 

lease has a non-cancellable arrangement of 3 years. This lease contains a clause to enable upward revision of the rental 
charges on an annual basis according to prevailing market conditions.

 The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of future rentals receivable on operating leases were 
company is a lessor:

29. Cash and Cash Equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Cash and Bank Balance (refer note 18) 53,327 80,862

Less: Other bank balances (refer note 18) (45,169) (68,202)

Balance considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents for Cash Flow Statement 8,158 12,660

30. Contingent liability and commitments
a) Contingent liabilities:

(B lakhs)

Description of the Liability 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Credit enhancement provided by the Company for the loans under securitisation 
arrangements (including cash collaterals and interest subordination)

 270  282 

Contingent liability for litigations pending against the Company  23 36

28. Leases (contd.)
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Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
30. Contingent liability and commitments (contd.)

b) Capital and other commitments

(i)  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for as at 31 March 2017 is 
H1,846 Lakhs (31 March 2016: H1,922 Lakhs).

(ii)  Loans sanctioned not yet disbursed as at 31 March 2017 were H1,104 Lakhs (31 March 2016: H4,501 Lakhs).

(iii) Committed credit lines given to wholly owned subsidiary (FIHFC) as at 31 March 2017 was H10,000 Lakhs (31 March 2016: 
HNil).

c)  The Company’s pending litigations, having an impact on the financial position, comprise certain proceedings pending with 
Income Tax and Service Tax authorities.  The Company has reviewed all such pending litigations and proceedings and has 
adequately provided wherever considered necessary. 

 In addition, the Company is involved in other legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of 
business. The Company’s management does not reasonably expect that these legal actions, when ultimately concluded and 
determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations or financial condition.

31. Expenditure in Foreign Currency

(B lakhs)

Expenditure in Foreign Currency Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Travelling expenses  20 21

Ancillary borrowing costs  1,016 450

Training expenses  52 43

Repairs and maintenance  17 10

Directors sitting fees and commission  27 12

Bank charges and Others  -   1

Total  1,132 537

32. Employee Stock Appreciation Rights
 The Company has an Employee Share based payment scheme, under which grants were made as per details provided below:

Grant 1 Grant 2 Grant 3 Grant 4 Grant 5 Grant 6
Date of Grant 30 November 

2011

1 April 2013 1 April 2013 1 April 2014 1 April 2015 1 April 2016

Value of the Grant  H 568 Lakhs  H 706 Lakhs  H 741 Lakhs  H 750 Lakhs H 800 Lakhs H 865 Lakhs
Performance 

Condition

Achievement of Profit before tax (PBT) and Return on Equity (ROE) targets as per approved business plan

Graded Vesting 

(subject to 

achievement of 

performance 

condition given above)

Tranche I: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2013

Tranche I: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2015

Tranche I: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2016

Tranche I: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2017

Tranche I: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2018

Tranche I: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2019
Tranche II: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2014

Tranche II: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2016

Tranche II: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2017

Tranche II: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2018

Tranche II: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2019

Tranche II: 33% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2020
Tranche III: 34% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2015

Tranche III: 34% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2017

Tranche III: 34% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2018

Tranche III: 34% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2019

Tranche III: 34% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2020

Tranche III: 34% 

vesting on 1st 

December 2021
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32. Employee Stock Appreciation Rights (contd.)

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Grant 1 Grant 2 Grant 3 Grant 4 Grant 5 Grant 6
Vesting period 

(including 

performance period)

Tranche I: 2 years Tranche I: 2 years 

8 months

Tranche I: 3 years 

8 months

Tranche I: 3 years 

8 months

Tranche I: 3 years 

8 months

Tranche I: 3 years 

8 months
Tranche II: 3 years Tranche II: 3 years 

8 months

Tranche II: 4 years 

8 months

Tranche II: 4 years 

8 months

Tranche II: 4 years 

8 months

Tranche II: 4 years 

8 months

Tranche III: 4 

years

Tranche III: 4 

years 8 months

Tranche III: 5 

years 8 months

Tranche III: 5 

years 8 months

Tranche III: 5 

years 8 months

Tranche III: 5 

years 8 months
Exercise period Within 30 days from each vesting date but not later than 2 years from the date of last vesting.
Method of Settlement Cash Payout

The estimated fair value of the grant at a notional value of H10 per unit (as at the date of grant) is as below:

Particulars Grant 1 Grant 2 Grant 3 Grant 4 Grant 5 Grant 6
As at 31 March 2017 H 27.56 H 19.97 H 19.97 H 17.01 H 13.74 H 10.89
As at 31 March 2016 H 24.97 H 18.22 H 18.22 H 15.52 H 12.54 Nil
As at 31 March 2015 H 19.49 H 14.53 H 14.53 H 12.38 Nil Nil
As at 31 March 2014 H 15.36 H 11.74 H 11.74 Nil Nil Nil
As at 31 March 2013 H 12.78 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
As at 31 March 2012 H 10.42 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Exercise price Vest 1 H 12.78 H 14.53 H 18.22 Nil Nil Nil
Exercise price Vest 2 H 15.36 H 18.22 Nil Nil Nil Nil
Exercise price Vest 3 H 19.49 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Fair value is computed using the method provided in the scheme for estimating the valuation of the grant which is linked to the Net 
Book Value of the business.

Adjustment has been made for the resignations during the year ended 31 March 2017 and the consequential impact of forfeiture of 
the grant. 
The movement of the stock appreciation rights during the year is as under:  (Year ended 31 March 2017)

Particulars (No. of Options)   Grant - 1 Grant - 2 Grant - 3 Grant - 4 Grant - 5 Grant - 6 Total H Lakhs

Grants outstanding at the beginning of the year  1,022,000  4,168,400  4,630,000  6,350,000  7,475,000  -    23,645,400  2,365 

For employee transferred to subsidiary  -    187,600  300,000  400,000  400,000  -    1,287,600  129 

Grants made during the year                     -     -    -    -    -    8,650,000  8,650,000  865 

Grants forfeited on resignation of employees                   -     314,900  500,000  800,000  750,000  1,000,000  3,364,900  336 

Grants vested -  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Grants exercised  880,400  1,884,300  933,900  -    -    -    3,698,600  370 

Grants outstanding – unvested at the end of the year                    -     1,332,800  2,566,100  5,150,000  6,325,000  7,650,000  23,023,900  2,302 

Grants outstanding – vested and exercisable  141,600  448,800  330,000   -       -     -  920,400  92 

Expense arising from the grants made till 31 March 2017 
(H Lakhs)

4 81 129 212 230 200 857 857

  (Year ended 31 March 2016)

Particulars (No. of Options)   Grant - 1 Grant - 2 Grant - 3 Grant - 4 Grant - 5 Total H Lakhs

Grants outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,399,800 4,920,000 5,030,000 7,300,000 - 18,649,800  1,865 

Grants made during the year -       -   -  -   8,000,000 8,000,000  800 

Grants forfeited on resignation of employees 34,000 200,500 400,000 950,000 525,000 2,109,500  211 

Grants vested 1,108,400 1,590,600 - -            -   2,699,000  270 

Grants exercised 343,800 551,100 -   -            -   894,900  89 

Grants outstanding – unvested at the end of the year              -   3,128,900 4,630,000 6,350,000 7,475,000 21,583,900  2,158 

Grants outstanding – vested and exercisable 1,022,000 1,039,500      -     -        -   2,061,500  206 

Expense arising from the grants made till 31 March 2016 
(H Lakhs) 

87 276 236 236 207 1,041  1,041 
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Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Balance Sheet
Details of Provision for gratuity:

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Defined benefit obligation 1,617 1,144

Fair value of plan assets 1,721 1,110

Less: Unrecognised Past Service Cost - -

Plan asset/(liability) 106 (34)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Opening defined benefit obligation               1,144               861 

Interest cost                 89                 69 

Current service cost               168               239 

Transfer (out)/in                 -                 (6)

Benefits paid                (131)                (99)

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation                 347                 80 

Closing defined benefit obligation            1,617            1,144 

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Opening fair value of plan assets               1,110               691 

Expected return                 87                 55 

Contributions by employer               563               477 

Benefits paid                (131)                (99)

Actuarial gains/(losses)                92                (15)

Closing fair value of plan assets            1,721            1,110 

33. Retirement and Other Employee Benefits
 The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a 

gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service.
 The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the 

amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the plan.

Statement of Profit and Loss
Gratuity expense (recognised in Employee benefit expense):

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Current service cost 168 239

Interest cost on benefit obligation 89 69

Expected return on plan assets (87) (55)

Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year 255 95

Past service cost - -

Net Benefit Expense 425 348

Actual return on plan assets 178 41
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33. Retirement and Other Employee Benefits (CONTD.)

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Investments with insurer % 100 100

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date applicable to the 
period over which obligation is to be settled. There has been a significant change in the expected rate of return on assets due to the 
stock market scenario.

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity liability for the Company’s plans are shown below:

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Discount rate 7.22% 7.80%

Expected rate of return on assets 7.22% 7.80%

Employee Turnover Category 1 - For basic upto H1.2 lakhs 
Upto 4 yrs 42.30% and 5 yrs & above 2% 
at each age

Category 1 - For basic upto H1.2 lakhs 
Upto 4 yrs 40.50% and 5 yrs & above 2% 
at each age

Category 2 - For basic more than H 1.2 
lakhs Upto 4 yrs 25.3% and 5 yrs & above 
2% at each age

Category 2 - For basic more than H 1.2 
lakhs Upto 4 yrs 23.1% and 5 yrs & above 
2% at each age

Future Salary rise 10% 10%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other 
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Amounts for the current period and previous periods are as follows:

(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2015 31 March 2014 31 March 2013

Defined benefit obligation 1,617 1,144 861 581 253

Plan assets 1,721 1,110 691 310 172

Surplus/(deficit) 106 (34) (170) (271) (81)

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 215 (13) 498 117 64

Experience adjustments on plan assets 92 (15) 475 (5) -

34. The Company identifies suppliers registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) 
by obtaining confirmations from all suppliers. Based on the information received by the Company, some of the suppliers have 
confirmed to be registered under MSMED Act, 2006. Accordingly the disclosure relating to amount unpaid as at the year ended 
together with interest paid/payable is disclosed below:

(B lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

1 The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) 
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

69 38

2 The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro Small 
and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006, along with the amounts of the 
payment made  to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting 
year  

- -
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34. (contd.)

38. Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 
2016 as required by notification no. G.S.R 308 (E) dated March 30, 2017

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

35. During the year the company has utilised MAT credit entitlement of B6,551 lakhs against provision for current tax of B18,883 
lakhs (including adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods).

36. CSR expenses

i)  Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year H 613 Lakhs
ii)  Amount spent during the year:

(B lakhs)

Amount spent in 
Cash

Yet to be paid in 
Cash

Total

i) Construction / acquistion of any asset  -  -  -

ii) On purpose other than (i) above  614  - 614

(B lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

3 The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 
adding the interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development 
Act, 2006.

- -

4 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid  at the end of each accounting 
year;

- -

5 The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small 
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as  a deductible expenditure under 
section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

- -

37.  Cost Sharing
During the year, the Company leased its premises to its subsidiary, Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited to carry out its 
operations. The Company has entered into resource sharing agreement with the Subsidiary Company, as per which the Company 
has agreed to share premises and other resources and thereby to facilitate achieve economies of scale and avoid duplication. 
The reimbursement of cost is calculated on the basis of number of employees, area occupied, time spent by employees for other 
companies, actual identification, etc.

During the year the Company has charged B432 lakhs (including service tax) (Previous year B56 lakhs) on account of above 
mentioned arrangement.
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38. (contd.)

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(B lakhs)

Particulars SBNs Other 
denomination 

Notes

Total

Closing cash in hand as on November 8, 2016 2,718 598 3,314

(+) Permitted receipts - 42,294 42,294

(+) Non-permitted receipts (refer Note 2 below) 3,151 - 3,151

(-) Permitted payments - 1,609 1,609

(-) Amount deposited in Banks 5,868 40,367 46,235

Closing cash in hand as on December 30, 2016 - 914 914

(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Amount involved  51 74

Amount recovered  28 22

Amount written off / provided  23  52 

Balance  -    -   

a)  In the ordinary course of business, the Company collected cash in Specified Bank Notes against loan obligations of the 
Company aggregating B2682 lakhs and in addition, loan borrowers of the Company have directly deposited cash towards their 
loan repayments into the collection bank accounts of the Company with various banks, aggregating B289 lakhs, during the 
period from November 9, 2016 to December 30, 2016. The Company has relied on the denomination wise details provided by 
its banks for the disclosure of Specified Bank Notes.

b)  The Company had issued an advisory to its collection team and branches on Novemeber 9, 2016 to refrain from collection of 
Specified Bank Notes. A major portion of amount mentioned in note a) above relates to collections made before such advisory 
was issued and represent customer loan repayments in rural branches across the country where collections normally occur, 
through field collection teams

39. As required by the RBI circular no DNBS.PD.CC. No. 256 /03.10.042 / 2011-12 dated 2 March, 2012 the details of frauds noticed / 
reported are as below:
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41. Additional Disclosures required by the RBI
i)  Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (‘CRAR’)

(B lakhs)

Items Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

i) CRAR (%) 22.54% 21.90%

ii) CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 16.28% 16.14%

iii) CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) 6.26% 5.76%

iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-II capital  69,100  62,000 

ii)  Details of investments with movement in provision for depreciation
(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

A Value of Investments

 (i) Gross Value of Investments

  (a) In India  202,528  95,592 

  (b) Outside India,  -    -   

 (ii) Provisions for Depreciation

  (a) In India  91  91 

  (b) Outside India,  -    -   

 (iii) Net Value of Investments

  (a) In India  202,437  95,501 

  (b) Outside India,  -    -   

B Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments

 (i) Opening balance  91  1,028 

 (ii) Add : Provisions made during the year  -    -   

 (iii) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year  -  937 

 (iv) Closing balance  91  91 

iii)  Derivatives
 The Company has not entered into any forward rate agreements, interest rate swaps, exchange traded interest rate 

derivatives. Hence, no disclosure is made for the same.

iv)  Securitisation
 a. During the year the Company has transferred loans through securitisation. The information on securitisation activity 

of the Company as an originator is given below:

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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iv)  Securitisation (contd.)

(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Total number of loans securitised  -  751

Total book value of the loans securitised  - 2,243

Total book value of the loans securitised including loans placed as collateral  - 2,243

Sale consideration received for the loan asset securitised  - 2,243

Excess interest spread recognised in the statement of profit and loss  117 11

(B lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2017

As at 
31 March 2016

Credit enhancements provided and outstanding (Gross):

Interest subordination  3  18

Cash Collateral  224 224

Corporate Guarantee  40 40

 The information on securitisation of the Company as an originator in respect of outstanding amount of assets securitised 
under par structure is given below:

(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

No. of SPVs Sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions  1  1

Total Amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored by the NBFC  905 2,243

Total amount of exposures retained by the company to comply with MRR as on the date of 
balance sheet

- -

a)  Off-balance sheet exposures  -

 First loss  -  -

 Others  -  -

b)  On-balance sheet exposures  -  -

 First loss  224 224

 Others  -  -

Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR

a)  Off-balance sheet exposures

 i)  Exposure to own Securitisation

 First loss  -  -

 Others  40 40

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

 ii)  Exposure to third party Securitisation transactions

 First loss  -  -

 Others  -  -

b) On-balance sheet exposures

 i)  Exposure to own securitisation

 First loss  -  -

 Others  -  -

 ii)  Exposure to third party Securitisation transactions

 First loss  -  -

 Others  -  -

v)  Assignment

Details of assignment transactions undertaken by the Company during the year.

(B lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

No. of accounts  1  5

Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold  14,868  50,949

Aggregate consideration 14,868  50,949

Additional consideration realised in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years  -  -

Aggregate gain / loss over net book value  -  -

(B lakhs)

Particulars Upto 30/31 days Over 1 month 
upto 2 months

Over 2 months 
upto 3 months

Over 3 months & 
upto 6 months

Advances*  36,754  38,262  37,292  103,705 

 (22,123)  (32,487)  (32,636)  (92,296)

Investments**  183,484  7,869  4,583  5,932 

 (104,417)  (2,574)  (3,558)  (7,688)

Borrowings  9,866  22,781  18,270  86,363 

 (31,653)  (31,767)  (41,381)  (45,696)

vi)  Asset Liability Management Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities:
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(B lakhs)

Particulars Over 6 months 
& upto 1 year

Over 1 year & 
upto 3 years

Over 3 years & 
upto 5 years

Over 5 years Total

Advances*  167,901  334,976  133,520  263,383  1,115,793 

 (171,241)  (340,175)  (123,573)  (281,856)  (1,096,386)

Investments**  12,120  5,398  0  36,105  255,492 

 (39,461)  (224)  -    -    (157,923)

Borrowings  161,551  472,970  244,001  81,710  1,097,512 

 (180,715)  (343,495)  (245,896)  (96,610)  (1,017,213)

vi)  Asset Liability Management Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities: (contd.)

* Represents interest bearing loans **Investments include deposit with banks.
Figures in bracket pertain to the previous year.

vii) Exposures
a) Exposure to Real Estate Sector

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

A. Direct exposure

i) Residential Mortgages - Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property 
that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented

9,076   10,826

ii) Commercial Real Estate - Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates 
(office buildings, retail space, multi-purpose commercial premises, multi-family 
residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse 
space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc.). Exposure would 
also include non-fund based limits

 -  -

iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures - - -

 Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector  9,076  10,826

 The Company provides loans which are fully collateralised against property, in accordance with the approved policy of the 
Company which includes credit assessment of financial statements and cash flow of the customers. The end use of the 
loan may be business in the case of business customers or could be personal in case of salaried individuals. Accordingly, 
there is no direct real estate exposure except as disclosed above.

b) Exposure to capital market
 The Company has no exposure to the capital markets directly or indirectly in the current and previous year.

c)  Details of financing of parent company products
 The Company does not finance any of it’s holding/parent company products.

d)  Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC
 The Company has not lent / invested / lent and invested in any borrower / group of borrower in excess of limits prescribed 

by the RBI.

e)  Unsecured advances
 Refer note 14 for unsecured advances. The Company has not given any advances against the rights, licenses, 

authorisations, etc.
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viii) Registration with other financial sector regulator

(B lakhs)

Name of Regulator Status Registration Details

Insurance Regulatory and Development 
Authority (IRDA)

Corporate Agent License No. CA0098 
Valid till 31 March 2019

ix) No penalties were imposed by RBI and other regulators during the current and previous year.

x) Refer note 27 for related party transactions during the current and previous year.

xi) Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

Particulars 2016-2017 2015-2016

ICRA India Rating CARE ICRA India Rating CARE

LT

NCD / SD ICRA AA+with Stable 
Outlook

IND AA+ with Stable 
Outlook

CARE AAA with 
stable outlook

ICRA AA+ with 
Stable Outlook

IND AA+ with Stable 
Outlook

CARE AAA with 
stable outlook

TL ICRA AA+with Stable 
Outlook

IND AA+ with Stable 
Outlook

CARE AAA with 
stable outlook

ICRA AA+ with 
Stable Outlook

IND AA+ with Stable 
Outlook

-

PTC - - AA with Stable 
Outlook

- - AA with stable 
outlook

ST

STD ICRA A1+ IND A1+ - ICRA A1+ IND A1+ -

CP ICRA A1+ IND A1+ - ICRA A1+ - -

Company Ratings -

LT ICRA AA+ with 
Stable Outlook

IND AA+ with Stable 
Outlook

- ICRA AA+with Stable 
Outlook

IND AA+ with Stable 
Outlook

-

ST ICRA A1+ IND A1+ - ICRA A1+ IND A1+ -

 LT – Long Term ST – Short Term
 NCD – Non Convertible Debentures SD – Subordinated Debt
 CP – Commercial Paper TL – Term Loan
 STD – Short Term Debt PTC - Series A PTC’s
 There were no migrations of ratings during the year. All ratings are subject to annual surveillance.

xii) Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies.
 Refer Statement of Profit and Loss for profit or loss in the current and the previous year. The accounting policies followed in 

preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of the previous year.

xiii) Revenue has been recognised in accordance with the revenue recognition policy of the Company and there are no deviations 
to the same (refer note 2).
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(B lakhs)

Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head Expenditure 
in Profit and Loss Account

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Provisions for depreciation in carrying value of Investment  -    (9)

Provision towards non-performing assets  4,726  2,856 

Provision made towards income tax*  18,883  11,869 

Provision on securitised loans  21  3 

Provision for standard assets  15,404  3,295 

* Income tax is Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) and the Company has created a MAT asset for the same, hence profit before tax 
and profit after tax are same and has no impact on the statement of Profit and Loss.

xv) Draw down from reserves

 The Company has not withdrawn any amount from any of the reserves during the year ended 31 March 2017 (Previous year : Nil)

xvi) Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs
(a)  Concentration of Deposits
 The Company has not accepted any deposits during the current and previous year. Also there are no outstanding deposit 

from earlier years.

(B lakhs)

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Total advances to twenty largest borrowers  34,693  38,110 

Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the 
Company

3% 3%

(b) Concentration of Advances

(B lakhs)

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers  35,211  38,712 

Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total 
Exposure of the Company on borrowers / customers

3% 4%

(c) Concentration of Exposures

(B lakhs)

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts  5,640  5,779 

(d) Concentration of NPAs
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Sr. 
No.

Sector Percentage of NPAs to Total 
Advances in that sector

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

1 Agriculture and allied activities 0.2% 0.0%

2 MSME 7.8% 3.8%

3 Corporate borrowers* 5.8% 3.9%

4 Services 0.0% 0.0%

5 Unsecured personal loans 1.1% 0.9%

6 Auto loans (Commercial Vehicle) 4.3% 3.3%

7 Other personal loans (incl. TW, used car, Loan against property) 5.7% 3.0%

*NPA% shown above are mutually exclusive.

(e) Sector-wise NPAs

xvii) Movement of NPA’s, provision, net NPA
(B lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

(i) Net NPA to Net Advances (%) 2.29% 1.28%

(ii) Movement in Gross NPAs

(a) Opening Balance  21,492 16,685

(b)  Additions during the year 70,440 37,801

Sub Total (A) 91,932 54,486

(a) Up gradations 4,569 2,592

(b) Recoveries 8,279 6,192

(c) Write-offs 41,369 24,210

Sub Total (B) 54,217 32,994

Gross NPAs as on 31 Mar (A-B) 37,715 21,492

(iii) Movement in provisions for NPAs

(a) Opening balance 7,406 4,589

 (a) Provisions made during the year 24,622 10,377

 (b) Write off / write back of excess provisions 19,896 7,560

(b) Closing balance 12,132 7,406

(iv) Movement in Net NPAs

(a)  Opening balance 14,086 12,096

(b)  Additions during the year 45,818 27,424

(c)  Reductions during the Year 34,321 25,434

(d)  Closing balance 25,583 14,086
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xviii) The Company has not invested in any overseas assets in the current and previous year. Also there are no outstanding 
investments from earlier years.

xix) The Company has not sponsored any off-Balance Sheet SPV in the current and previous year which are required to be 
consolidated as per accounting norms. Also there are no outstanding investments from earlier years.

xx) Disclosure on complaints

(a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year  15

(b) No. of complaints received during the year 1,226

(c) No. of complaints redressed during the year 1,219

(d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year  22

42.  The Company does not have any outstanding loan against gold jewellery as at 31 March 2017 (Previous year : HNil)

43.  The Company has reclassified/regrouped previous year figures to conform to current year’s classification, where applicable.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fullerton India Credit Company Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Gan Chee Yen Shantanu Mitra 
Chairman  CEO and Managing Director 

Sd/-
Pankaj Malik  
Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : 18 May 2017
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(As required in terms of Paragraph 13 of the Non-Banking Financial (Deposit Accepting or Holding)  
Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank of India ) Directions, 2007)

(B lakhs)
Sr  
No

Particulars Amount 
Outstanding

Amount 
Overdue

Liabilities side:

1. Loans and advances availed by the Non Banking Financial Company inclusive of 
interest accrued thereon but not paid:

(a) Debentures (other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)

 Secured 493,738 -

 Unsecured 72,252 -

(b)  Deferred Credits - -

(c)  Term Loans 444,488 -

(d)  Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - -

(e)  Commercial Paper 107,372 -

(f)  Public Deposits - -

(g)  Other Loans 9,963 -

2. Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest 
accrued thereon but not paid):

(a)  In the form of Unsecured debentures - -

(b)  In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there is a 
shortfall in the value of security

- -

(c)  Other public deposits - -

Sr  
No

Particulars Amount 
Outstanding

Assets side:

3. Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those 
included in (4) below] :

(a)  Secured 522,364

(b)  Unsecured 605,505

4. Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards 
AFC activities

(i)  Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors : -

 (a)  Finance Lease -

 (b)  Operating Lease -

(ii)  Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors: -

 (a)  Assets on hire -

 (b)  Repossessed Assets -

(iii)  Other Loans counting towards AFC activities : -

 (a)  Loans where assets have been repossessed  682 

 (b)  Loans other than (a) above  79,176 
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(B lakhs)

Sr  
No

Particulars Amount 
Outstanding

5. Break-up of Investments :

Current Investments

1.  Quoted:

 (i)  Shares:

  (a)  Equity  -

  (b)  Preference  -

 (ii) Debentures and Bonds  20,291 

 (iii)  Units of mutual funds  -   

 (iv)  Government Securities  25,002 

 (v)  Others

2.  Unquoted:

 (i)  Shares:

  (a)  Equity  -

  (b)  Preference  -

 (ii)  Debentures and Bonds -

 (iii)  Units of mutual funds  34,849 

 (iv)  Government Securities  -   

 (v)  Others – Certificate of Deposits  71,597 

     – Commercial papers  14,594 

Long Term Investments

1.  Quoted:

 (i)  Shares:

  (a)  Equity  -

  (b)  Preference  -

 (ii)  Debentures and Bonds  -

 (iii)  Units of mutual funds  -

 (iv)  Government Securities  -

 (v)  Others  -

2.  Unquoted:

 (i)  Shares:

  (a)  Equity 36,105

  (b)  Preference  -

 (ii)  Debentures and Bonds  -

 (iii)  Units of mutual funds  -

 (iv)  Government Securities  -

 (v)  Others  -
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(B lakhs)

Sr  
No

Category Amount net of Provision

Secured Unsecured Total

6. Borrower group-wise classification of all leased assets, stock-
on-hire and loans and advances :

1.  Related Parties

 (a)  Subsidiaries - - -

 (b)  Companies in the same group - - -

 (c)  Other related parties - - -

2.  Other than related parties 511,749 603,987 1,115,736

Total 511,749 603,987 1,115,736

(B lakhs)

Sr  
No

Category Market Value / 
Break up or fair 

value or NAV

Book Value (Net of 
Provisions)

7. Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long 
term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):

1.  Related Parties

 (a)  Subsidiaries  36,000  36,000 

 (b)  Companies in the same management  -    -   

 (c)  Other related parties  -    -   

2.  Other than related parties  166,438  166,438 

Total  202,438  202,438 

(B lakhs)

Sr  
No

Category Amount

8. Other Information

(i)  Gross Non-Performing Assets

 (a)  Related parties -

 (b)  Other than related parties 37,715

(ii)  Net Non-Performing Assets

 (a)  Related parties -

 (b)  Other than related parties 25,583

(iii)  Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt -
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Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/
associate companies/joint ventures (Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) 
of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

PART A : SUBSIDIARIES

Sr 
No

Particulars Fullerton India Home 
Finance Company Ltd

Fullerton India 
Foundation for Social & 
Economic Development

1. Financial years of the subsidiary Company ended on 31 March 2017 31 March 2017
2. Reporting currency INR INR
3. Shares of the subsidiary held on the above date and extent of holding

a) Equity Shares (of Rs 10 each)  195,273,443  23,575 
b) Extent of holding 100% 100%

4. Net aggregate amount of Profit/(Losses) of the Subsidiary for the period so far as 
it concerns members of Fullerton India Credit Company Limited
i) Not dealt within the accounts of the Holding Company
 a) For the financial year of the Subsidiary  (121,846,335)  -   
 b) For the previous financial years of the Subsidiary/since it became the 

Holding company's subsidiary
 (44,918,421)  -   

ii) Deal within the Holding company's accounts
 a) For the financial year of the Subsidiary Nil Nil
 b) For the previous financial years of the Subsidiary/since it became the 

Holding company's subsidiary
Nil Nil

5. Material changes if any between the end of financial year of the subsidiary 
company and that of the Holding Company

Nil Nil

6. Additional information on Subsidiary Companies
Share Capital  1,952,734,430  235,750 
Reserves and Surplus  1,480,500,828  -   
Total Assets  8,311,636,817  235,750 
Total Liabilities  4,878,401,559  -   
Investment (except in case of investment in subsidiaries)  2,867,289,572  -   
Turnover  256,544,558  -   
Profit before Taxation  (121,846,335)  -   
Provision for Taxation  -    -   
Profit after Taxation  (121,846,335)  -   
Proposed Dividend (including Dividend Distribution Tax thereon)  -    -   

7. Operation commenced  Yes  No 

No subsidiaries were sold or liquidated during the year.

PART B : ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
The Company does not have associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31 March 2017.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fullerton India Credit Company Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Gan Chee Yen Shantanu Mitra 
Chairman  CEO and Managing Director 

Sd/-
Pankaj Malik  
Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : 18 May 2017
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Fullerton India Credit Company Ltd.
Registered office address

Megh Towers, Third Floor, New No. 165, Old No. 307,

Poonamallee High Road, Maduravoyal, Chennai-600 095

Corporate office address

Floor 6, B Wing, Supreme Business Park, Supreme City,  

Behind Lake Castle, Powai, Mumbai – 400076

Email : namaste@fullertonindia.com  |  Website : www.fullertonindia.com

CIN number : U65191TN1994PLC079235 

Toll Free No: 1800 103 6001


